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Our history of profitability and capital strength has allowed us to increase total cash dividends paid per share for 27 consecutive years.
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Mercantile Bankshares Corporation

Mervcantile Bankshares Corporation was organized as a multibank holding
company in 1969 around the fundamental belief that local communitics are best served
by local banks. By leveraging the financial resonrces, specialized expertise and
rechnological capabilities of the lead bank, Mercantile-Safe Deposit and Trust Company,
our mewber banks are able to respond to the needs of
their communities with a comprehensive array of financial services
and an exceptional level of personalized service,

Mercantile Bankshares continues to build on its traditional strengths.

Local Perspective
Each bank operates with its own name, management, board of directors and historic ties
to its community. Customer-related decisions are made at the local level by employees
who know their clients and understand the local business environment.

Value-Added, Relationship Service
Relationships are based on services tailored to the particular needs of the customer
and are nurtured through all phases of the economic cycle.

Community Commitment
Each member bank works to support its community, contributing dollars
and volunteering skills to the civic and charitable organizations that make the community
a better place to live and work.

Combined Resources
Backed by Mercantile Bankshares” outstanding financial strength,
each member bank benefits from the resources of a larger organization,
offering their clients specialized wealth management and
cormunercial banking services, a wide variety of electronic banking services, plus
the convenience of an extensive network of banking offices throughout
the Baltimore-Washington region.

Headguarters, since 1970:
Two Hopleins Plaza, Baltimore, Maryland 21201




Consolidated Financial Highlights

Increase

(Dollars in thousands, except per share data) 2003 2002 (Decrease)
FOR THE YEAR
Net interest IMCOME . .. v et vvrre e i nnen $ 479,330 $ 441,804 8.5%
Netincome.. ...t 196,814 190,238 3.5
Cash dividends paid . ..................o. 95,842 81,909 17.0
Basic net income per share ................... 2.70 2.74 (1.5)
Diluted net income per share................. 2.68 2.72 (1.5)
Dividends paid per common share............ 1.29 1.18 9.3
Average loans ...l 8,088,982 7,088,844 14.1
Average investment securities ................. 2,843,079 2,367,414 201
AVETAge aSSELS ..ottt 11,971,581 10,123,457 18.3
Average deposits .......... i 8,991,854 7,632,410 17.8
Average shareholders’ equity .............. ... 1,497,145 1,257,967 19.0
AT YEAR END _
Loans, met. .. ..o $ 9,116,823 §$7,173,426 27.1%
Investment SeCUrities .............cooveuvenn... 3,172,931 2,639,583 20.2
ASSEES . e 13,695,472 10,790,376 26.9
Deposits ..o 10,262,553 8,260,940 24.2
Shareholders’ equity ....................... ... 1,841,441 1,324,358 39.0
Book value per common share ............ ... 23.08 19.24 20.0
Market value per common share.............. 45.58 38.59 18.1
RATIOS
Return on average assets ................ e 1.64% 1.88%
Return on average shareholders’ equity ....... 13.15 15.12
Average shareholders’ equity/average assets. . ... 12.51 12.43
STATISTICS
Banking offices........... ... 227 185 42
Employees ... 3,565 2,885 680
Shareholders ................................. 10,549 9,177 1,372
Weighted average common

shares outstanding . ............. ... .. ... 72,892,409 69,545,591 3,346,818
Common shares outstanding.................. 79,772,705 68,836,092 10,936,613
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To Our Shareholders

am pleased to report that, for the 28th

consecutive year, Mercantile Bankshares

Corporation reported an increase in
consolidated net income. The year 2003 also
represented our 27th consecutive year of
increased dividends. Net income for the year
was $196.8 million, a 3.5% increase over
2002. Diluted net income per share for 2003,
however, decreased by 1% to $2.68, due
largely to merger-related expenses resulting

from the acquisition of F&M Bancorp.

This past year, like the one before, presented significant
challenges for financial institutions such as ours, with a
somewhat sluggish economy and historically low interest
rates. Unlike 2002, however, there was a rebound in the
equity markets in 2003, accompanied by signs that the
macroeconomic environment may be improving.

Mercantile is dependent on lending and net interest
income for the vast majority of its revenues. The persistent
low interest rate environment, which has led to compres-
sion of our net interest margin, has put significant pressure
on earnings. Despite this challenge, our results reflect
resilience resulting from the achievement of modest loan
growth throughout our Community Banks, a repositioning
of our securities portfolio and the execution of several
Important acquisitions.

Our most visible initiative in 2003 involved an unusual-
ly attractive opportunity to build on Mercantile’s core
Maryland banking franchise. In March of last year we
announced the acquisition of F&M Bancorp, a transaction
we were able to close successtully in August. F&M is the
largest acquisition in Mercantile’s history. On the date of
the purchase, F&M had $2.2 billion in assets and $1.7 bil-
lion in deposits with 49 branches located primarily in the
attractive Frederick County market. F&M clearly comple-
ments our franchise and presents us with the opportunity
to achieve significant cost savings, but it is also an excellent
platform for growth. I am very pleased with the results of
our integration efforts, and I believe we are poised in the
next 12 months to derive substantial benefits from the
acquisition. I want to welcome all of our F&M employees
and clients to the Mercantile family.

In viewing the results of our banking business, it is
gratifying that credit quality, a hallmark of our franchise,
has remained strong relative to peers at a time when many
businesses have struggled and economic activity has been




muted. Moreover, Mercantile’s capital levels have remained
strong. As we seek to grow in what we hope to be more

hospitable conditions, we remain committed to maintain-
ing high standards for credit quality and financial strength.

With 2004 now well underway, the firm is well-
positioned to benefit from higher interest rates. The Federal
Reserve’s ultimate direction on rates, however, is far from
certain. Accordingly, we will continue to drive growth by
focusing on our core business. In particular, we will con-
centrate our efforts more intently on expanding our fran-
chise organically in the Washington area, taking advantage
of our existing footprint in the region and bringing our
service and relationship-oriented approach to banking to
this high growth area. We also will intensify our efforts to
originate more residential mortgages throughout our
Community Bank network. Additionally, although
Mercantile historically has been recognized as a leading
middle-market and small business lender, we will strive to
maximize our retail banking platform —227 branches
spread throughout some of the most attractive consumer
markets in the United States.

The other two acquisitions of significance in 2003
expanded our Investment and Wealth Management
(“IWM”) business. We believe we have done much to
improve our product plattorm. [n addition, we have made a
number of management and personnel changes in the past
year in [WM in order to assemble a team that is committed
to providing the highest level of service for our clients and
to generating increased returns for clients and our share-
holders. Our work is not completed. I am confident, how-
ever, that with improving market conditions and disciphned
execution, 2004 will be a year when our investment in
[WM should begin to show positive results.

One more comment is appropriate on the acquisition

front. The year 2004 already appears to be shaping up as an

active one for mergers among financial institutions. As I
hope we have demonstrated, Mercantile is always alert to
combinations that benefit shareholders and position us for
growth. This year, however, [ see two factors that will lead
us to be cautious on the acquisition front. First and fore-
most, we continue to be focused on completing the suc-
cessful integration of F&M so that we can fully realize the
promise of that opportunity. Secondly, current price levels
for banking franchises in our markets make transactions that
are accretive to our shareholders difficult to consummate.
We are prepared to grow through acquisitions, but we will
do so, if at all, prudently.

Finally, I would like to thank all of my colleagues at
Mercantile for their ongoing hard work and dedication to
an institution that plays such an important role in the com-
munities in which we operate. We are a service organiza-
ton, and it is through the quality of our employees that we
differentiate ourselves in the marketplace. On behalf of all
of us, I thank all of our clients and shareholders for your
continued support.

Mot /@d/

Edward J. Kelly III, Chairman
March 13, 2004




Review of Services

ercantile Bankshares Corporation was incorporated under the laws of Maryland
on May 27, 1969. It is a financial holding company and a bank holding company
registered under the Bank Holding Company Act of 1956. Mercantile Bankshares
Corporation along with its consolidated subsidiaries is referred to in this report as “Bankshares,”
“we” or “Registrant.” Bankshares, with $13.7 billion in assets for the year ended December 31,
2003, 1s a regional multibank holding company with headquarters in Baltimore, Maryland. It is
comprised of Mercantile-Safe Deposit and Trust Company (“MSD&T”) and 19 community
banks (each a “Community Bank”) and a mortgage banking company. Sixteen banks are located
in Maryland, three are in Virginia and one is in southern Delaware. Bankshares’ largest bank,

MSD&T, represents approximately 33% of total assets and operates 24 offices in Maryland, one

office in Washington, D.C., and one commercial office in Pennsylvania.

On August 12, 2003, Bankshares acquired F&M
Bancorp (“F&M?”) for a mix of cash and stock for total
consideration of $558.1 million. On the date of purchase,
F&M had total loans of $1.4 billion, total assets of $2.2
billion and total deposits of $1.7 billion. In late October,
certain assets and liabilities from F&M were allocated to
MSD&T and certain Community Banks whose market
places overlapped with F&M.

Nearly all of Bankshares’ substantial trust operations
and specialized corporate banking services are provided by
MSD&T.

Bankshares places particular emphasis on long-term
customer relationships by providing value-added services
through its extensive Community Bank nerwork. Each
Community Bank has its own name, management team
and board of directors. Perhaps most importantly, each
bank has strong historical ties to the families and businesses
in the community it serves. Through its association with
Bankshares, each bank 1s able to provide its customers with
the sophisticated banking services and financial resources
of a2 major banking o.rganization.

Bankshares directly owns all of the outstanding stock of
MSD&T and the 19 Community Banks and directly or
indirectly owns all of the outstanding stock of certain
other affiliates. For purposes of segment reporting, three
operating components have been identified. They are the
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banking division of the lead bank, MSD&T; the Investment
and Wealth Management Division of MSD&T; and the 19
Comumunity Banks.

Bankshares periodically reviews and considers possible
acquisitions of banks and other entities performing related
activities and discusses such possible acquisitions with
managements of the subject companies, and such acquisi-
tions, which may be material, may be made from time to
fime. Acquisitions are normally subject to regulatory
approval.

CONSUMER BANKING SERVICES

Personal Banking
MSD&T and all of the Community Banks offer numerous
services to meet the checking, savings, investment and
credit needs of the individuals in their communities.
Personal banking services include Individual Retirement
Accounts, certificates of deposit and various checking and
savings plans, including an indexed money market account.
The banks offer home equity loans and lines of credit, as
well as installment loans, to meet a variety of borrowing
needs.

The Community Bank network provides customers
with no-fee access to 235 ATMs, and customers can
perform many routine transactions at any of the 227 bank



offices. For added convenience, substantially all Bankshares
affiliates provide customers with toll-free telephone access
to a centralized Customer Service Center and a voice-
response account information system. BANKING TWENTY-
FOUR Online® enables customers to access their personal
accounts online to verify account balances, track recent
account activity and perform selected transactions.
Recently, online banking was enhanced with bill payment
capabilities. BANKING TWENTY-FOUR offers sole propri-
etors similar and specifically tailored capabilities to meet
their small business needs.

Home Mortgages

Residential mortgages are provided through Mercantile
Mortgage LLC, a joint venture between Mercantile Mort-
gage Corporation (*‘Mercantile Mortgage”), a subsidiary of
MSD&T, and Wells Fargo Ventures LLC. A wide variety of
competitively priced fixed- and variable-rate products are
available, including jumbo loans. Residential mortgage loans
also are available through the Community Banks.

Risks associated with residential mortgage lending
include interest rate risk, which is mitigated through the
sale of the majority of all conforming fixed-rate loans, and
default risk by the borrower, which is lessened through
underwriting procedures and credit quality standards,
among other things.

COMMERCIAL BANKING SERVICES

Lending
General Commercial Lending
With their local knowledge and focus, our Community
Banks are well-suited to meet the traditional credit needs
of businesses in their market areas. Each bank works
closely with customers to extend credit for general busi-
ness purposes, such as working capital, plant expansion
or equipment purchases, and for financing industrial and
commercial real estate. Where appropriate, the banks
employ government guarantee programs, such as those
available from the Small Business Administration.

In addition to supplying credit to the businesses in
its own market area, MSD&T works in collaboration with
other Community Banks when their customers’ credit
needs exceed the Community Bank’s lending limit or
when there is a more specialized commercial banking
need.

Specialized Lending

When local commercial customers do not qualify for
traditional financing, the Asset-Based Lending Group at
MSD&T can help them convert the value of their accounts
receivable, inventory and equipment into cash for opera-
tions. MSD&T lenders also work with the other Commu-
nity Banks to arrange more sophisticated financing in the
areas of acquisitions and management buyouts.

Real Estate Lending

The Real Estate Group at MSD&T provides land acquisi-
tion and development, construction and interim financing
to commercial real estate investors and developers. The
Community Banks also provide such lending to their cus-
tomers in their markets. Credits exceeding a predeter-
mined threshold are made in collaboration with the Real
Estate Lending Group.

Mercantile Mortgage makes loans for land acquisition,
development and construction of single-family and multi-
family housing.

Mercantile Mortgage also provides permanent financing
for multifamily projects as one of the nation’s few Fannie
Mae Delegated Underwriting and Servicing lenders.
Permanent financing for multfamily projects and long-
term, nonrecourse financing for commercial real estate are
provided through Columbia National Real Estate Finance
LLC, a subsidiary of Mercantile Mortgage. Columbia
National is a Freddie Mac Program Plus Seller Servicer. It
has correspondent relationships with approximately 12 life
insurance companies and services a loan portfolio in excess

of $5.3 billion.

Managing Credit Risk

Much of the fundamental business of Bankshares is based
on understanding, measuring and controlling credit risk.
Credit risk includes both general risks, which are part of
the lending process, and specific risk relating to each bor-
rower. With respect to commercial lending, losses as a per-
centage of outstanding loans can vary widely from period
to period and are particularly sensitive to changing eco-
nomic conditions. MSD&T and each Community Bank
carefully evaluate the credit risk presented by a customer
and often require collateral support as well as personal
guarantees of the borrower. Bankshares and each
Community Bank often have the benefit of long-standing
customer relationships, which management believes is a



key component to managing credit risk. The type of
collateral support varies but includes accounts receivable,
inventory, land, buildings, equipment, income-generating
comumercial properties and residential real estate, among
other things.

The evaluation of specific risk is a basic function of
the underwriting and loan administration in each of our
Community Banks, involving analysis of the borrower’s
ability to service debt as well as the value of pledged
collateral.

Bankshares has established a centralized independent
loan review function charged with regularly reviewing the
loan portfolio and identifying changes in the economy or
in a borrower’s circumstances that may affect the ability to
repay debt or the value of pledged collateral. On a regular
basis senior management, through the establishment of a
Credit Quality Committee, monitors the degree of risk in
the loan portfolio. In addition, lenders assign a grade to
each commercial loan based on a number of factors,
including the borrower’s capacity to service the debt and
the presence and value of the collateral for the loan. The
independent loan review function evaluates on a regular
basis the grade assigned to certain loans and analyzes the
impact on the allowance for loan losses.

Cash Management

Centered at MSD&T, Cash Management Services helps
business customers of all Community Banks collect, trans-
fer and invest their cash. Through a variety of electronic
payment and account management tools, Cash Management
also enables customers to monitor cash flows conveniently
and efficiently. Nonprofit institutions such as unions,
charities and philanthropic organizations also use Cash
Management services.

Private Equity

Bankshares, in partnership with MSD&T, began a focused
private equity investment initiative in 2000 as an alterna-
tive use of capital with the objectives of generating long-
term returns and developing additional long-term client
relationships with emerging companies in Bankshares’
footprint. The primary investments are capital commit-
ments to private equity limited partnerships located or
seeking investment opportunities within Bankshares’ geo-
graphic trade area and, to a lesser extent, direct investments
in privately held companies within the region. The private
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equity funds include small- and middle-market buyout
funds, mezzanine funds and late-stage venture funds where
the target investments of the funds are or would likely be,
in time, potential Bankshares customers. For more infor-
mation on private equity investments, see Footnote No. 9
of the financial statements.

INVESTMENT AND WEALTH MANAGEMENT SERVICES

Bankshares offers investment and wealth management
services through MSD&T and continues building on a
140-year tradition of providing investment and wealth
management services to private individuals, family groups
and institutions.

Today, Bankshares provides a range of wealth manage-
ment services. An open architecture platform gives clients
access to proprietary investment management in addition
to carefully selected outside managers. Both the open
architecture platform and proprietary investment manage-
ment offer clients a comprehensive approach to equity and
fixed-income investments complemented by alternative
investments. Bankshares’ proprietary investment platform
includes both separate account management and mutual
funds, including the Mercantile Dow Jones U.S. Portfolio
Funds, based on the Dow Jones Portfolio Indexes.
Investment and wealth management services are available
throughout the Community Bank network, Cleveland-
based Boyd Watterson Asset Management LLC (“Boyd
Watterson”) and Baltimore-based Peremel & Company,
Inc. (“Peremel”). Peremel fills an important niche by
offering brokerage capabilities and account services. At
December 31, 2003, Bankshares had $22 billion of discre-
tionary assets under management and $46 billion in assets
under administration.

Private Wealth Management

‘When managing a client’s assets as part of an investment
management or trustee relationship, Bankshares focuses
on consistent investment performance and an asset alloca-
tion that is individually designed to meet each client’s
risk/return parameters and investment objectives.
Professional investors, working in partnership with our
clients, provide access to the Mercantile funds, separately
managed accounts, nonproprietary mutual funds and a
variety of alternative investments. With the acquisition of
Peremel, our clients have access to full-service brokerage



capabilities. MSD&T provides a wide range of fiduciary
and client administrative services, including trust adminis-
tration, protection and continuity of trust structures, estate
settlement, estate advice and planning, tax advice and plan-
ning and charitable giving programs. MSD&T also acts in
a custodial capacity for its clients, providing safekeeping of
assets, transaction execution, income collection, preparation
of tax returns and record keeping.

Family Office

Designed to service the unique needs of families with sub-
stantial means, the Family Office team works with more
than 85 families whose total assets approach $5 billion.
The Family Office is comprised of professionals including
CFAs, CFPs and attorneys. The group integrates the full
range of services required to manage its clients’ complex,
multigenerational financial circumstances. MSD&T offers
family governance, family education and philanthropic
advisory programs in addition to the normal services asso-
ciated with Family Offices, such as investment manage-
ment, trust structuring and administration, tax planning,
estate planning, closely held business planning, credit, and
charitable giving and administration. The team of specialists
within Family Office also provides guidance in sophisti-
cated, nontraditional investment strategies, such as private
equity, real estate and hedge fund investing.

Private Banking

The Private Banking Group provides one point of contact
for its clients’ deposit and credit needs, ensuring that these
services are delivered within an overall asset management
plan. Private bankers can coordinate cash flows, arrange
investment of short- and long-term funds and structure
credit arrangements to meet short- to long-term needs.

Institutional Asset Management

Bankshares, through its Community Banks and Boyd
‘Watterson, works to provide businesses and charitable
organizations with sophisticated investment management
and administrative services for their employee retirement
plans, profit sharing plans and endowments. Clients
include state and local government entities, corporations,
unions, charitable organizations and military institutions.
For example, MSD&T is trustee for a group trust that
focuses on commercial real estate investments for Taft-
Hartley pension plans, MSD&T also can help nonprofit
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organizations, such as charitable and philanthropic groups,
with annual giving and capital campaigns, pooled income
funds, gift annuities and charitable remainder trusts.
Bankshares offers corporations 401{k) programs tailored
to their specific needs.

INSURANCE ACTIVITIES

Keller Stonebraker, an independent, wholly owned sub-
sidiary of Farmers & Mechanics Bank, arranges a full line
of consumer and commercial business insurance products
through offices in Hagerstown and Cumberland, Maryland,
and Keyser, West Virginia. Consumer insurance products
include annuities, homeowners, automobile, life and per-
sonal umbrellas. Commercial products include property and
casualty packages, workers’ compensation, bonds, profes-
sional liability, umbrella, and 401(k) and other benefit plans.

Potomac Basin Group Associates, Inc., Beltsville,
Maryland, operates as an independent wholly owned sub-
sidiary of Farmers & Mechanics Bank and is an indepen-
dent insurance agency specializing in corporate employee
benefit plans through its offices in Beltsville and Ellicott
City, Maryland.

OTHER NONBANKING AFFILIATES

Mercantile Agency, Inc. acts as agent in the sale of fixed-
rate annuities and offers variable-rate annuites with
Mercantile Securities, Inc.

Mercantile Securities, Inc. 1s a general securities broker-
dealer that facilitates purchases by bank customers of shares
of the Mercantile family of funds and other securities and
variable-rate annuities.

Peremel & Co., Inc. is a general securities broker-dealer
that offers discount and online brokerage services.

MBC Agency, Inc. provides as agent, under group policies,
credit life insurance in connection with extensions of credit
by MSD&T and the Community Banks. Mercantile Life
Insurance Company reinsures the insurance provided by
MBC Agency, Inc.

Mercantile Capital Advisors, Inc. is a registered invest-
ment adviser that provides investment advisory and admin-
Istrative services to investment companies, including the
Mercantile family of funds.



Management’s Discussion
and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

1. EXECUTIVE OVERVIEW

Mercantile Bankshares Corporation (“Bankshares”) recorded
its 28th consecutive year of increased net income in 2003.
Net income for Bankshares was $196.8 million for the year
ended December 31, 2003 compared to $190.2 million for
the year 2002. However, diluted net income per common
share for 2003 decreased by 1% to $2.68 compared to
$2.72 for 2002 due largely to the higher adjusted weighted
average shares outstanding for 2003. The most noteworthy
factors affecting 2003 earnings were the acquisition of
F&M Bancorp (“F&M?”), the continuing repositioning of
the Investment & Wealth Management (“IWM”) Division
of the lead bank, Mercantile-Safe Deposit and Trust
Company (“MSD&T”), and the downward pressure put
on earnings by a lower net interest margin compared to
the vear earlier.

On August 12, 2003, Bankshares completed its acquisi-
tion of F&M Bancorp, a bank holding company headquar-
tered in Frederick, Maryland. On the date of purchase,
F&M had total loans of $1.4 billion, total investment secu-
rities of $638.0 million, total earning assets of $2.0 billion,
and total deposits of $1.7 billion. There were 10.4 million
shares issued in connection with the acquisition, which
was accounted for as a purchase and resulted in total con-
sideration paid of $558.1 million (including the cash com-
ponent). F&M is the second largest affiliate bank in the
organization behind only MSD&T in total assets. The
results of operations and balances for F&M are included
in the consolidated financial statements from the merger
date forward. Bankshares recorded $400.3 million of good-
will, $36.0 million of core deposit intangible, $5.8 million
of client relationship intangibles and $1.1 million in
other identified intangible assets. The weighted average

NETINCOME

amortization period for newly acquired core deposit intan-
gible is nine years, and the client relationship and other
identified intangibles range from three to fifteen years.

[nvestment and wealth management revenues benefited
from rising equity market values and the inclusion of rev-
enues from Boyd Watterson Asset Management LLC, an
investment management firm, and Peremel & Company,
Inc., a directed and discount brokerage company, acquired
on March 1, 2003 and April 1, 2003, respectively. In the
aggregate, these companies were purchased for approxi-
mately $29 million in cash. The Boyd Watterson acquisi-
tion has a potential additional contingent payment of up to
$8.6 million based upon performance, among other factors.
The contingent payment will be recorded, assuming spe-
cific metrics are met, and become payable three years from
the acquisition date. Bankshares recorded approximately
$10.1 million of identified intangibles, mostly client rela-
tionships, as a result of these acquisitions. These intangibles
are amortized on a straight-line basis over a range of three
to eight years. Goodwill recorded on these transactions
totaled approximately $18.0 million at December 31, 2003.

A generally sluggish economy, decreases in long-term
interest rates, and Bankshares’ net asset sensitive position
combined to drive the net interest margin 31 basis points
lower for the year 2003 than for the year 2002. The net
interest margin was 4.34% for 2003, compared to 4.65%
for 2002. Approximately two-thirds, or 20 basis points, of
the decline is attributable to the lower benefit derived
from noninterest-bearing sources of funding, such as
demand deposit accounts and shareholders’ equity. On a
tax-equivalent basis, net interest income was reduced by
nearly $30 muillion as a result of the margin compression.
Management does not anticipate any significant change in
the level of interest rates in 2004 and is looking for

DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE
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improved loan growth to help offset the continuing pres-
sure on the net interest margin in the current low interest
rate environment.

Although certain statistical performance measures
declined slightly from the prior year, 2003 proved to be
another year of relatively solid performance, as indicated by
the standard industry measures of return on average assets
(ROA) and return on average shareholders’ equity (ROE).
The 2003 ROA was 1.64%, compared to 1.88% for the
year ended December 31, 2002. Bankshares” 2003 ROE
decreased to 13.15%, compared to the 15.12% reported for
2002. Average assets increased by 18% to $12.0 billion,
average deposits increased by 18% to $9.0 billion and aver-
age loans increased by 14% to $8.1 billion for the year
ended December 31, 2003, compared to the prior year.
Approximately one-half of the respective increases in the
year 2003 average balances are attributable to F&M.
Bankshares also reports net operating earnings, defined as
“GAAP” (Generally Accepted Accounting Principles)
earnings excluding the amortization of intangible assets
associated with purchase accounting for business combina-
tions; securities gains and losses; and other significant gains,
losses or expenses (such as those associated with integrating
acquired entities’ operations into Bankshares). Net operating
earnings totaled $200.3 million for the year 2003, an
increase of 5% over the $190.9 million for 2002. Diluted
net operating earnings per share for 2003 were $2.73,
compared with $2.72 for last year. A reconciliation of
GAAP basis net income to net operating earnings can be
found in Footnote No. 22 of the financial statements.

Average shareholders’ equity to average assets remained
strong at 12.51%, increasing slightly from 12.43% for 2002.
In 2003, 5,500 shares were repurchased under Bankshares’
buyback plan in open market purchases. Bankshares was

TOTAL ASSETS

not an active acquirer during 2003 mainly due to the
restrictions in place associated with our acquisition of
F&M. The buyback plan retired 1,384,200 shares through
open market purchases made during 2002.

Management believes that reporting several key mea-
sures based on tangible assets (total assets less intangible
assets) and tangible equity (total equity less intangible
assets) is important, as this 1s the basis for measuring the
adequacy of capital for regulatory purposes. For the year
2003, return on average tangible assets was 1.71%, com-
pared to 1.91% for the year 2002. The ratio of average tan-
gible equity to average tangible assets for 2003 was 10.34%
compared to 11.45% for 2002, The decline in average tan-
gible equity to average tangible assets was largely attribut-
able to the use of $124.1 million of cash (or 25% of the
consideration paid) instead of issuing only shares to acquire
F&M. For the reconciliation of GAAP to non-GAAP
measures, see Footnote No. 22 of the financial statements.

The remaining sections of Management’s Discussion
and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations will provide a more detailed explanation of the
important trends and material changes in components of
our financial statements. The discussion suggests that sus-
taining future earnings growth comparable to our experi-
ence in past years will require, among other things,
efficient generadon of loan growth in a competitive market,
while maintaining an adequate spread between vyields on
earning assets and the cost of funds. Our degree of success
in meeting these goals depends on unpredictable factors
such as possible changes in prevailing interest rates, the mix
of deposits, credit quality and general economic conditions.
This discussion and analysis should be read in conjunction
with the consolidated financial statements and other finan-
cial information presented in this report.

INTEREST YIELDS AMD RATES
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$13,695
$12.500 -
10,000 - U
// i
7,500 [ -~ -~ i ;}___‘ e man R
; |
5,000 |-~ vt P e
: ! i
2,500 - Hom e e
i I |
I
! 1
‘99 ‘00 ‘01 ‘02 ‘03

(Tax-equivalens basis)

0 Average yield earned on earning assets
£ Average rate paid on interest-bearing funds

10.0%

8.0 r,.,

60 | ~ - i —

LT 539%

4.0

2.0

‘99 ‘00 ‘01 ‘02 ‘03

& a



Critical Accounting Policies and Related Estimates

Set forth below is a discussion of the accounting policies
and related estimates that management believes are the
most critical to understanding Bankshares’ consolidated
financial statements, financial condition and results of
operations, and which involve complex management judg-
ments, uncertainties and/or estimates. Information regard-
ing Bankshares’ other accounting policies is included in
Footnote No. 1 of the financial statements.

Allowance for Loan Losses

Arriving at an appropriate level of allowance for loan losses
involves a high degree of judgment. Bankshares” allowance
for loan losses provides for probable losses based on evalua-
tions of known and inherent risks in the loan portfolio.
Management uses historical information to assess the ade-
quacy of the allowance for loan losses as well as information
about the prevailing economic and business environment
among other things. For a full discussion of Bankshares’
methodology for assessing the adequacy of the allowance
for loan losses, see “Allowance for Loan Losses” below and
Footnote No. 1 of the financial statements.

Loans on Nonaccrual Status or Deemed to Be Impaired

A loan asset will be classified and placed into nonaccrual
status when the principal or interest payments on any
loan (e.g., commercial, mortgage and construction loans)
is past due 90 days or more at the end of a calendar quar-
ter and/or the payment in full of principal or interest is
not expected. Consumer installment loans are charged
off when they become 90 days past due. Additionally, a
loan may be put on nonaccrual status sooner than 90
days if, in management’s judgment, the loan or portions
thereof are deemed uncollectible. Bankshares ceases to
accrue interest income on such loans. Subsequent receipts
on nonaccrual loans are recorded as a reduction of prin-
cipal, and interest income is recorded only once principal
recovery is reasonably assured. Generally a loan may be
restored to accruing status when all past due principal,
interest and late charges have been paid and the bank
expects repayment of the remaining contractual principal
and interest.

A loan is considered impaired, based on current infor-
mation and events, if it is probable that Bankshares will
not collect all principal and interest payments according
to the contractual terms of the loan agreement. Impaired
loans do not include large groups of smaller-balance
homogeneous loans that are evaluated collectively for
impairment (e.g., residential mortgages and consumer
installment loans). The impairment of a loan is measured
based on the present value of expected future cash flows
discounted at the loan’s effective interest rate, or the fair
value of the collateral if the repayment is expected to be
provided predominantly by the underlying collateral. A

majority of Bankshares’ impaired loans are measured by
reference to the fair value of the collateral.

Income Taxes

Bankshares recognizes deferred income tax assets and lia-
bilities for the future tax effects of temporary differences,
net operating loss carryovers and tax credits. Deferred tax
assets are subject to managements judgment, based on
available evidence, that future realization is more likely
than not. If management determines that Bankshares may
be unable to realize all or part of net deferred tax assets in
the future, then Bankshares would be required to record a
valuation allowance against such deferred tax asset. In such
an event, a direct charge to income tax expense may be
required to reduce the recorded value of the net deferred
tax asset to the expected realizable amount. Although
management has determined that a valuation allowance is
not currently required, no assurance can be given that one
will not be required in the future. For more information
regarding Bankshares” accounting for income taxes, see
Footnote No. 11 of the financial statements.

Valuation of Goodwill/Intangible Assets and Analysis

for Impairment

Bankshares has increased its market share, in part, through
the acquisition of entire financial institutions accounted for
under the business combinations method of accounting,

as well as from the purchase of other financial institutions’
branches (not the entire institution). For acquisitions under
the purchase method, Bankshares is required to record
assets acquired and liabilities assumed at their fair value,
which is an estimate determined by the use of internal or
other valuation techniques. See Footnote No. 19 of the
financial statements for further information on the
accounting for goodwill and other intangible assets.

Ii. ANALYSIS OF OPERATING RESULTS FOR 2003 TO 2002

Segment Reporting

Bankshares has identified three distinct business segments
for which financial information is segregated for use in
assessing performance and allocating resources when
reporting to the Board of Directors. This segmentation is
consistent with the reporting structure put in place at the
time Bankshares was formed. At that time the organization
consisted of a lead bank, MSD&T, with two business
segments — Banking and I'WM; and a Community Bank
segment, which has been built through acquisitions and
continued operation of independent charters. This latter
segment consists of the group of 19 community banks,
collectively, the “Community Banks.” Mortgage banking
activities are not viewed as a separate business line and,
accordingly, are included in MSD&T Banking. A schedule
disclosing the details of these operating segments can be
found in Footnote No. 15 of the financial statements.



FARMERS & MECHANICS AFFILIATE SELECTED BALANCE SHEET DATA

(Dollars in thousands)

Proforma impact
of opening balance
on averages for the

At 12 months ended
August 12,2003 December 31, 2003

INVESTMENT SECURITIES AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE . ... ..................

LOANS:

Commercial ........ ..
@FeY 13wt ol (o] s WP
Residential real estate ..o
CONSUIMIET . .ttt e
Lease inancing ......ooooveiiiiii i

Total loans . ...
Less: allowance forloan losses ..ot

Loans, net .. ...
TOTAL ASSETS .. e e

DEPOSITS:

Noninterest-bearing deposits ...........coverviniienaen. .
Interest-bearing deposits................. ...

Total deposits ...

Segment financial information is subjective and, unlike
financial accounting, is not necessarily based on GAAP.

As a result, the financial information of the reporting seg-
ments is not necessarily comparable with similar informa-
tion reported by others and may not be comparable with
Bankshares’ consolidated results. Certain expense amounts,
such as operations overhead, have been reclassified from
internal financial reporting in order to provide for proper
allocation of costs in the reported data.

Community Banks
"The addition of F&M during 2003 had a significant
impact on nearly every line of the consolidated balance
sheet and statement of consolidated income as well as the
performance of the Community Bank segment as set forth
below. Net income for the Community Banks for 2003
increased 16% to $139.1 million, compared to $119.6 mil-
lion for 2002. Net interest income for the Community
Banks increased 13% to $336.3 million for 2003 from
$297.9 million for 2002. The growth in net interest income
in 2003 was attributable to a 22% increase 1n average earn-
ing assets, which offset a 37 basis point decline in the net
interest margin from 5.05% to 4.68%. F&M contributed
over 50% to the growth in the Community Banks’ average
€arning assets.

As a reflection of the overall improvement in the
Community Banks’ credit quality trends, the Community
Banks recorded a reversal of $1.1 million in the provision
for loan losses for 2003 as compared to a provision for loan
losses of $4.6 million in 2002.

....................... $ 637,962 $248,193
....................... 176,689 68,739
....................... 114,982 44,733
....................... 824,232 320,660
....................... 248,625 96,725
....................... 1,364,528 530,857
....................... (13,205) (5,137)
....................... 1,351,323 525,720
....................... 2,174,932 846,138
....................... 301,024 117,111
....................... 1,395,758 543,007
....................... 1,696,782 660,118

Average assets for the Community Banks increased 23%
to $7.7 billion in 2003. Increases of 24% and 22% were
recorded in the investment and loan portfolios, respectively.
Average deposits for the Community Banks increased 22%
to $6.2 billion in 2003. More than half of the growth in
the Community Banks’ average balances was due to F&M.

At December 31, 2003, 63.9% of average total loans
were held by the Community Banks, compared to 60.0%
in 2002. Commercial loans, including commercial mort-
gages, accounted for 52.4% of the Community Banks’
average total loans, slightly higher than the 51.5% for
2002. These loans increased 24% from the 2002 average.
Construction and consumer loans accounted for approxi-
mately the same portion of Community Bank loans in
2003 as in 2002, at 5.7% and 21.5%, respectively.
Construction loans increased 35%, while consumer loans
increased 22%, from 2002 levels. Residential real estate
loans, which were 20.4% and 22.0% of average total loans
for 2003 and 2002, respectively, increased 13%.

The Community Banks provided 68.4% of the average
total deposit base of Bankshares, up from the 66.2% at
2002. The Community Banks generated 72.9% of average
noninterest-bearing deposits in 2003, slightly higher than
72.0% in 2002. For 2003, 66.8% of average interest-bearing
deposits were at the Community Banks, increasing from

64.3% for 2002.
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ANALYSIS OF INTEREST RATES AND INTEREST DIFFERENTIALS

The following table presents the distribution of the average consolidated balance sheets, interest income/expense and annualized yields
earned and rates paid.

2003 2002 2001
Average  Income*/ Yield*/ Average Income*/ Yield*/ Average Income*/ Yield*/
(Dollars in thousands) Balance®** Expense  Rate Balance**  Expense  Rate Balance**  Expense  Rate
Earning assets
Loans:
Commercial .................... $ 4,795,334 $276,788 5.77%  § 4,283,322 $278,995 6.51% $3,978,335 $317,769 7.99%
Construction . .................. 929,939 50,324 5.41 733,237 44,667 6.09 795,931 63,339 7.96
Reesidential real estate ........... 1,171,194 75,651 6.46 1,072,297 78,233 7.30 1,059,798 84,102 7.94
Consumer ...................... 1,192,515 74,513 6.25 999,988 71,225 7.12 998,792 82,740 8.28
Total loans.................. 8,088,982 477,276 5.90 7,088,844 473120 6.67 6,832,856 547,970 3.02
Federal funds sold, etal ........... 250,462 3,901 1.56 178,624 5,213 2.92 141,245 6,190 4.38
Securities:
Taxable securities
U.S. Treasury securities......... 1,021,513 41,233 4.04 1,478,387 67,531 4.57 1,366,245 73,633 5.39
US. Agency securities ......... 709,519 32,399 4.57 610,617 30,072 4.92 339,298 19,812 5.84
Mortgage-backed securities.. . .. 927,235 36,135 3.90 216,391 12,096 5.59 48,203 3,599 7.47
Other stocks and bonds ....... 114,924 7,788 6.78 23,220 1,397 6.02 21,934 1,650 7.52
Tax-exempt securities
States and political subdivisions. . 69,888 4,543 6.50 38,799 3,135 8.08 40,359 3,298 8.17
Total securities.............. 2,843,079 122,098 4.29 2,367,414 114,231 4,83 1,816,039 102,012 3.62
Interest-bearing deposits
in other banks............... ... 9,085 60 .66 358 15 4.12 365 18 4.98
Total earning assets.......... 11,191,608 603,335 5.39 9,635,240 592,579 6.15 8,790,505 656,190 7.46
Cash and due from banks........... 266,173 227,034 215,852
Bank premises and equipment, net. . 118,071 101,660 102,993
Otherassets..........cocovviiiin.. 543,341 300,422 260,333
Less: allowance for loan losses....... (147,612) (140,899) (142,481)
Total assets.................. $11,971,581 $10,123,457 $9,227,202
[nterest-bearing liabilities
Deposits:
Savings ... $ 1,168,074 4,702 .40 § 966,283 8,405 .87 § 853,911 12,899 1.51
Checking plus interest accounts.. 1,071,877 2,061 .19 873,497 2,908 33 771,186 5,255 68
Money market.................. 1,357,234 9,757 .72 1,096,417 14,223 1.30 846,577 21,839 2.58
Time deposits $100,000 and over 1,272,327 29,464 2.32 1,080,347 34,671 3.21 1,145,569 62,350 5.44
Other time deposits............. 1,852,622 47,206 2.55 1,759,160 62,362 3.54 1,812,589 97,360 5.37
Total interest-bearing deposits 6,722,134 93,190 1.39 5,775,704 122,569 2.12 5,429,832 199,703 3.68
Short-term borrowings ........... 851,348 5,604 .66 845,938 11,259 1.33 744,907 25,120 3.37
Long-termdebt.................. 517,386 18,451 3.57 279,471 10,754 3.85 117,823 6,702 5.69
Total interest-bearing funds.. 8,090,868 117,245 1.45 6,901,113 144,582 2.10 6,292,562 231,525 3.68
Noninterest-bearing deposits ....... 2,269,720 1,856,706 1,618,338
Other liabilities and accrued expenses 113,848 107,671 118,744
Total liabilities .............. 10,474,436 8,865,490 8,030,144
Shareholders’ equity................ 1,497,145 1,257,967 1,197,058
Total liabilities and
shareholders’ equity ....... $11,971,581 $10,123,457 $9,227,202
Net interest rate spread............. $486,090 3.94% $447 997 4.05% $424,665 3.78%
Eftect of noninterest-bearing funds .. .40 .60 1.05
Net interest margin on earning assets 4.34% 4.65% 4.83%
Taxable-equivalent adjustment
included in:
Loanincome ................... $ 4,897 $ 4,822 $ 4,950
Investment securities income . . .. 1,863 1,371 1,474
Total ... $ 6,760 $§ 6,193 § 6,424

* Presented on a tax-equivalent basis using the statutory federal corporate income tax rate of 35%.
** Average investrient securities are reported ar amortized cost and exclude pretax unrealized gains (losses) on securities available-for-sale. Nonaccrual loans are incduded in
average loans.
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MSD&T Banking

MSD&T Banking recorded net income of $61.0
million in 2003, compared to $64.1 million in 2002. Net
interest income for MSD&T decreased 3% in 2003 to
$141.8 million from $146.2 million in 2002. Although
average earning assets increased 4%, it was not enough to
offset the decline in the net interest margin from 3.81%
to 3.54%.

Due to continuing credit quality issues within MSD&T’s
commercial loan portfolio, MSD&T recorded a provision
for loan losses of $13.2 million, an increase of 13% over the
$11.7 million recorded in 2002. The allowance as a percent
of loans was 1.96% in 2003 compared to 1.72% in 2002.

Average total assets for MSD&T increased 6% to $4.4
billion in 2003 from $4.1 billion in 2002. Average invest-
ments and loans increased only 2% and 3%, respectively,
while federal funds sold and other assets accounted for the
balance of the increase in average assets. Average deposits
grew at a higher rate of 13%.

At the end of 2003 commercial loans, at 71.4%, was the
largest sector of MSD&Ts average total loans, decreasing
from 73.7% for 2002. MSD&T’s construction loans com-
prised 21.8% of MSD&T’s average total loans, up from
18.2% for 2002. Construction loans, which increased 23%
over 2002, was the only MSD&T loan category to experi-
ence any growth during 2003. Residential real estate and
consumer loans were 4.0% and 2.8% of the average total
loan portfolio, respectively, which were relatively the same
proportions to total loans as in 2002.

Iwm

The net income for IWM was $5.1 million in 2003, versus
$12.1 million in 2002. Pretax profit margins were 10.8%
and 29.6% for 2003 and 2002, respectively.

At December 31, 2003, assets under administration by
WM were $46.0 billion, an increase of $10.0 billion from
the prior year. At their respective dates of acquisition,
Boyd Watterson Asset Management LLC and Peremel and
Company, Inc. contributed approximately $3.6 billion and
$0.6 billion, respectively, to the increase in assets under
administration. Bankshares had investment management

responsibility for $21.8 billion, up 41% from the prior year.

Revenues increased 15.7% to $78.6 million in 2003.
Increased sales, the inclusion of Boyd Watterson Asset
Management LLC and Peremel & Company, Inc. for 10
and 9 months of the vear, respectively, and the increase in
the equity markets beginning in April all contributed
to the revenue increase and the growth in assets under
managelnent.

Expense growth associated with a full year of invest-
ments 1n people and new product capabilities exceeded
the increase in revenues. Additionally, expenses for 2003
included $3.6 million of severance and $0.5 million paid
to terminate a technology equipment lease, both of which
were related to the ongoing repositioning of I'WM’s

capabilities and its infrastructure. In 2002, severance
expense for IWM totaled $1.7 million.

Substantial progress was made in repositioning the
investment and wealth management business. New capa-
bilities were added, including three registered hedge fund
of funds, an expanded brokerage capability through Peremel
& Company, Inc., an open architecture investment man-
agement platform, a 401(k) program and the introduction
of the Mercantile Dow Jones U.S. Portfolio Funds.
Distribution through the Community Banks grew with
the introduction of an asset allocation platform.

Net Interest Income

Net interest income represents the largest source of
Bankshares’ revenue. It is affected by both changes in the
level of interest rates and changes in the amount and
composition of interest-earning assets and interest-bearing
liabilities. Interest rate risk represents one of the more sig-
nificant risks facing financial institutions like Bankshares.
See additional discussion under the caption “Interest Rate
Risk,” below. It is measured in terms of the effect changes
in market interest rates have on net interest income.
Bankshares is asset sensitive, with assets repricing more
quickly than liabilities in response to changes in interest
rates. In a falling rate environment, Bankshares’ net interest
margin (net interest income expressed as a percent of aver-
age earning assets) compresses, causing net interest income
to slow. Net interest income, on a fully tax-equivalent
basis, was $486.1 million for 2003. This represents an
increase of 9%, or $38.1 million, over the prior year’s
$448.0 million. In 2002, fully tax-equivalent net interest
income increased by $23.3 million, or 6%, over 2001. As
previously noted, net interest income is affected by changes
in the volume of earning assets and the net interest margin
earned thereon. The “Rate/Volume Analysis” table below
presents further details supporting this discussion.

Average earning assets increased by $1.6 billion, or
16%, in 2003, with approximately 50% of this increase
attributable to the F&M acquisition. Average total loans
grew $1.0 billion, or 14%, during 2003. As with earning
assets, approximately 50% of this growth relates to the
F&M acquisition. Despite the sluggish economy, organic
loan growth was fairly consistent throughout the year.
‘While average total loans grew by $256.0 million, or 4%,
during 2002, substantially all of the growth occurred dur-
ing the first half of the year. Average securities, the other
major component of earning assets, increased by $475.7
million, or 20%, in 2003 compared to an increase of
$551.4 million, or 30%, in the prior year. The F&M acqui-
sition accounted for slightly less than 50% of the increase
in 2003. The slowing in the growth of the investment
portfolio is attributable to the improved loan growth rate
and a slowing in the deposit growth rate, especially in the
fourth quarter of 2003. See “lII. Analysis of Financial
Condition” below for a more in-depth discussion of
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balance sheet trends. The overall growth in average earning
assets added $67.9 million to net interest income in 2003.

Offsetting the increase in net interest income from the
growth in average earning assets was a 31 basis point
decline in the net interest margin from 4.65% in 2002 to
4.34% in 2003. The decline in the net interest margin
reduced net interest income by $29.9 million. The net
interest margin declined for the third straight year. The net
interest spread also declined by 11 basis points to 3.94% in
2003 from 4.05% in 2002. The net interest spread is the
difference between the yield earned on total earning assets
and the rate paid on total interest-bearing liabilities.

In response to the slowing economy, the Board of
Governors of the Federal Reserve System (“the Federal
Reserve Board”) began taking action in 2001 to reduce
short-term interest rates. They reduced short-term rates
by 475 basis points in 2001, followed by 50 basis points in
2002 and 25 basis points in 2003. The net interest margin
declined by 43 basis points in 2001, primarily as a result
of the unprecedented drop in the level of short-term
interest rates. Since 2001, the margin has continued to
decline, not because of the additional short-term rate
reductions, but due to a decline in intermediate and long-
term interest rates. The impact of the decline in these rates
is reflected in the benefit Bankshares derives from its non-
interest-bearing sources of funding earning assets. Such
benefit declined by 45 basis points in 2002 and 20 basis
points in 2003, a combined decline of 65 basis points over
the two-year period. Approximately 28% of the funding

SOURCES OF INCOME

of average earning assets is derived from noninterest-
bearing sources.

The 11 basis point decline in the spread during 2003 is
attributable to the difficulty of further reducing the rate
paid on managed-rate deposits (savings, checking plus
interest and money market accounts} and remaining com-
petitive in the marketplace. The average yield on earning
assets declined 76 basis points to 5.39% in 2003. In com-
parison, the average rate paid on interest-bearing funds
declined only 65 basis points to 1.45% in 2003, from 2.10%
in 2002.

MSD&T’s net interest margin decreased 27 basis
points, from 3.81% in 2002 to 3.54% in 2003. The
Community Banks’ net interest margin decreased 37 basis
points, from 5.05% in 2002 to 4.68% in 2003. Over the
two-year period ended December 31, 2003, MSD&T's net
interest margin declined 50 basis points compared to a
decline of 53 basis points for the Community Banks. The
Community Banks account for most of Bankshares’ resi-
dential real estate and consumer loan portfolios. These
portfolios were most affected by the refinancing triggered
by the drop in intermediate and long-term rates. As a
result, the net interest margin contracted to a greater extent
at the Community Banks than at MSD&T.

Understanding the trend of the net interest margin
during 2003 is important when assessing the outlook for
the net interest margin in the year ahead. The net interest
margin was 4.57% for the first quarter of 2003, up 2 basis
points from the fourth quarter of 2002. During the second

USES OF INCOME

(Dollars in millions)

[ Interest and fees on loans

{7 Other interest and dividend income
[J Investment and wealth management
O Other income

$800 $772.0 §795.3 $773.2
68%
1% $730.1 61%
700  $681.2 65%
§7%
600
500
400
300 5%
13% 16%
200 15% 13%
0%
%
100 10% % 9% % T
I i
% | e % 1%
‘99 00 01 ‘02 03

(Dollars in millions)

3 Interest expense

[O Provision for loan losses

3 Salaries and employee benefits
O Other expenses

{1 Applicable income taxes

B Nectincome

795.3
$800 s1720 023 $773.2
29%
31% $730.1 15%
700 $681.2 20%
28% 2%
25%
29
600 o 2% 2
2
o - 19% 2%
5001 2% 18%

a1 ‘) AArDTYW A AITIIE YA RIIZEIEADDIFC AAANRMOAADND ATIAM AAITS ATFCFILLATC



quarter of 2003, the margin dropped 19 basis points, fol-
lowed by an additional 19 basis point decline in the third
quarter. During this six-month period, intermediate and
long-term interest rates declined, triggering a surge in
consumer and mortgage loan refinancing. During the
fourth quarter of 2003, intermediate and long-term rates
increased from their low levels, slowing the pace of refi-
nancing and improving yields on new consumer and
mortgage loans. Bankshares’ net interest margin improved
9 basis points to 4.28% for the fourth quarter of 2003.
Looking forward to 2004, management does not anticipate
an increase in short-term interest rates or overall interest
rates from where they were at the close of 2003. Normally,
this stable scenario would result in a downward movement
in the net interest margin as fixed-rate loans and invest-
ments mature and are replaced by loans and investments at
lower current yields. However, with some signs of an

improving economy beginning to emerge, management
anticipates the net interest margin will remain stable, as
improving loan growth should result in' earning assets more
heavily weighted toward higher yielding loans compared
to investment securities. For additional information
regarding interest rate sensitivity, see the discussion in the
“Interest Rate Risk” section below.

Interest Income

Fully tax~equivalent interest income amounted to §603.3
million in 2003, an increase of $10.7 million, or 2%, from
$592.6 million in 2002. This compares favorably to the
$63.6 million, or 10%, decrease in 2002 from 2001. The
slight increase in 2003 was due to a decline in market
interest rates, resulting in an $81.7 million reduction in
interest income, offset by $92.4 million in additional
interest income generated by the growth in earning assets

RATE/VOLUME ANALYSIS

A rate/volume analysis, which demonstrates changes in tax-equivalent interest income and expense for significant assets and
liabilities, appears below. The calculation of rate and volume variances is based on a procedure established for banks by the
Securities and Exchange Comumussion.

Year Ended December 31,

2003 vs. 2002

Due to variances in

2002 vs. 2001

Due to variances in

(Dollars in thousands) Total Rates  Volumes (4) Total Rates  Volumes (4)
Interest earned on:
Loans:
Commercial (1)...................... $ (2,207)  $(35,557) $33,350 $(38,774)  $(63,135)  $24,361
Construction (2)..................... 5,657 (6,326) 11,983 (18,692) (13,701) {4,991)
Residential real estate ................ (2,582) (9,797) 7,215 (5,869) (6,861) 992
Consumer ..........ooiivinnennii.. 3,288 (10,425) 13,713 {11,515) (11,614) 99
Taxable securities (3).................... 6,459 (14,751) 21,210 12,382 (18,357) 30,739
Tax-exempt securities (3)................ 1,408 (1,104) 2,512 (163) (36) (127)
Federal funds sold, etal ................. (1,312) (3,409 2,097 (977) (2,615) 1,638
Interest-bearing deposits in
otherbanks.......................... 45 {321) 366 (3) (3) -
Total interest income.............. 10,756 (81,6590) 92,446 (63,611)  (116,322) 52,711
Interest paid on:
Savings deposits. ...t (3,703) (5,458) 1,755 (4,494) (6,191) 1,697
Checking plus interest deposits.......... (847) (1,507) 660 (2,347) (3,044) 697
Money market accounts................. (4,466) (7,849) 3,383 (7,616) (14,061) 6,445
Certificates of deposit—
$100,000 and over ................... (5,207) (11,368) - 6,161 (27,679) (24,129) (3,550)
Other time deposits .............oo.o.0 .. (15,156) (18,469) 3,313 (34,998) (32,128) (2,870)
Short-term borrowings.................. (5,655) (5,727) 72 (13,861) (17,268) 3,407
Long-term debt.................o.o.. 7,697 (1,458) 9.155 4,052 (5,143) 9,195
Tortal interest expense ............. (27,337) '(51,836) 24,499 (86,943)  (101,964) 15,021
Net interest earned ........................ $ 38,093 $(29,854) $67,947 $ 23,332 $(14,358)  $37,690

(1) Tax-equivalent adjustments of $3.6 million for 2003, $3.6 million for 2002 and $4.1 million for 2001 are included in the caleulation of commercial loan
rate variances.

(2) Tax-equivalent adjustments of 1.3 million for 2003, $1.2 million for 2002 and 8867 thousand for 2001 are included in the calculation of construction
loan rate variances.

(3) Tax-equivalent adjustments of §1.9 million for 2003, $1.4 million for 2002 and $1.5 million for 2001 are included in the calculation of investment securities
rate variances.

(4) Changes attributable 1o mix (rate and volume) are included in the volume variance.
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primarily due to the addition of F&M. During 2002, the
$116.3 million reduction in interest income resulted from
the lower yield on earning assets and was only partially
offset by the $52.7 million increase derived from the
growth in earning assets.

At year-end 2003, the prime rate was 4.00%, compared
to 4.25% and 4.75% at year-end 2002 and 2001, respec-
tively. The average prime rate was 4.12% for 2003, com-
pared to 4.72% for 2002, a decline of 60 basis points. The
yield on average total loans in 2003 was 5.90%, a 77 basis
point decline from 6.67% in 2002. The commercial and
construction loan portfolios are the most sensitive to
changes in short-term interest rates, while the residential
real estate and consumer loan portfolios are mostly
affected by long-term rates. The vield on the consumer
loan portfolic declined 87 basis points and the residential
real estate portfolio declined by 84 basis points. The
commercial and construction loan portfolios declined by
74 and 68 basis points, respectively. These declines reflect-
ed the Federal Reserve Board’s 50 basis point reduction in
short-term rates during the fourth quarter of 2002 and
25 basis point reduction at the end of the second quarter
of 2003.

The yield on investment securities, at 4.29% in 2003,
declined 54 basis points from 4.83% in 2002. The yield on
the portfolio decreased 79 basis points in 2002 from 5.62%
in 2001. More than offsetting the negative impact on
interest income from reinvesting at lower vields has been
the increasing size and changing mix of the portfolio.
During 2003 Bankshares followed 2 strategy begun in
2002 to shift from U.S. Treasury to higher yielding U.S.
agency securities and mortgage-backed securities. This has
resulted in a mix of 27%, 25% and 41%, respectively, at
December 31, 2003. The other 7% of the investment
securities was comprised of 3% municipals and 4% other
investments at year end.

Interest Expense
Total interest expense in 2003 was $117.2 million, a
decrease of $27.4 million from $144.6 million in 2002.
The decrease in interest expense for 2003 was attributable
to a decrease in the rate paid on total interest-bearing
funds ot 65 basis points, which was partially offset by a
17% growth in average balances. Total interest expense in
2002 was $86.9 million less than the $231.5 million
reported in 2001. With the combination of interest rates at
record low levels and slowing deposit inflows, management
does not anticipate that it will be able to significantly
reduce the rate paid on managed rate deposits (savings,
checking plus interest and money market accounts). See
management’s discussion under “Interest Rate Risk” below
for further information regarding Bankshares’ exposure to
changes in interest rates.

The rate paid on average total interest-bearing deposits
was 1.39% in 2003, a decline of 73 basis points from
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2.12% for the prior year. The rate paid on savings, check-
ing plus interest and money market accounts declined 47
basis points, 14 basis points and 58 basis points, respectively.
Certificates of deposit-$100,000 and over declined 89 basis
points, while the rate paid on other time deposits decreased
99 basis points in 2003.

The most interest rate sensitive source of funds is short-
term borrowings. This category is comprised of federal
funds purchased, securities sold under agreement to repur-
chase and commercial paper. The duration of these funds
is very short, with most repricing daily. Reflecting the rate
environment, the rate paid on short-term borrowings
declined 67 basis points to 0.66% in 2003, after having
decreased by 204 basis points in 2002 to 1.33%. The rate
paid on long-term debt declined 28 basis points in 2003,
following a decline of 184 basis points in the prior year.
The decline is primarily related to the $200 million of 10-
year debt issued by MSD&T in the fourth quarter of 2001.
These notes, which were issued at a fixed rate of 5.70%,
were converted to a floating rate through an interest rate
swap. The notes reprice quarterly and carried an effective
cost of 2.18% during 2003. Additionally, Bankshares issued
$300 million of subordinated debt in April 2003. The
notes were issued at a fixed rate of 4.65%. Subsequently,
$150 million of this debt was converted to a floating rate
through interest rate swaps. The effect of the swap lowered
the cost on the $300 million debt to 3.96% during 2003.

Noninterest Income

Noninterest income for 2003 increased by $32.8 million,
or 23%, to $176.6 million compared to $143.8 million for
2002. The table below shows the major components of
noninterest income. Investment and Wealth Management
revenue represents the largest source of noninterest
income at 45%. Improvement in WM revenue came
principally from the inclusion of Boyd Watterson Asset
Management LLC and Peremel & Company, Inc., which
were acquired on March 1, 2003 and April 1, 2003,
respectively. Together, these acquisitions added $8.2 mil-
lion in revenues. The improved performance in equity
markets that began in the second quarter of 2003 had a
positive impact on IWM revenues, mostly in the second
half of the year. Approximately 35% of IWM’ managed
assets 1s invested in equities. Between December 31, 2002
and December 31, 2003, major equity indices rose sharply.
The S&P 500 index was up 26%, the Dow Jones Industrial
Average was up 25% and the Nasdag was up 50%. Higher
revenues also reflected increased new sales across both
mutual funds and separately managed accounts. For 2004,
revenues will benefit from a full vear of Boyd Watterson
and Peremel. Additional growth will depend on continued
new sales and increased distribution, equity and bond
market conditions and further acquisitions, if any. See the
discussion under “Segment Reporting” above for additional
information relating to IWM.



NONINTEREST INCOME

A schedule of noninterest income over the past three years is presented below:

Year Ended December 31, % Change
(Dollars in thousands) 2003 2002 2001 200372002 2002/2001
Investment and wealth management......... $ 78,933 $ 68,435 § 69,331 15.3% (1.3)%
Service. charges on deposit accounts......... 36,912 31,454 28,085 17.4 12.0
Mortgage banking related fees :
Commercial....................... ... 6,645 5,609 7,319 18.5 (23.4)
Residential ...l 4,466 4,336 5,263 3.0 (17.6)
Total mortgage banking related fees . .. 11,111 9,945 12,582 11.7 (21.0)
Investrnent securities gains.................. 7,137 846 4,248 743.6 (80.1)
Other income
Electronic banking fees .................. 16,814 15,076 13,956 11.5 8.0
Charges and fees on loans ............... 9,549 8,440 6,372 13.1 32.5
Insurance ..........coiiiiiiii i, 4,656 1,141 1,327 308.1 {14.0)
Bank-owned life insurance............... 2,003 869 - 130.5 100.0
All otherfees................ U, 9,476 7.544 9,589 25.6 (21.3)
Total other income ................... 42,498 33,070 31,244 28.5 5.8
Total ... $176,591 $143,750 $145,490 22.8% (1.2)%

Service charges on deposit accounts increased in line
with the growth in core consumer and commercial deposit
balances. This growth is a result not only of the F&M
acquisition, but also of significant growth in Bankshares’
deposits excluding F&M. The $5.5 million, or 17%, growth
in service charge income is almost equally divided between
the F&M acquisition and core deposit growth. Additionally,
a reduction in waivers of nonsufficient funds and over-
draft charges increased these fees $2.9 million, or 20%.
Commercial account analysis fees increased $600 thousand,
or 12%, primarily due to reduced earning credits on these
accounts as a result of lower interest rates during 2003,

Mortgage banking fees increased by $1.2 million to
$11.1 million in 2003. Bankshares’ mortgage banking rev-
enue is comprised of loan origination fees, which is the
largest category at 55% of total mortgage banking fees; ser-
vicing fees; and net gain on the sales of mortgage loans.
Mercantile Mortgage Corporation’s commercial loan orig-
ination and servicing fees increased by a combined $1.0
million due to the activities of its subsidiary, Columbia
National Real Estate Financing LLC. Commercial mort-
gages are sold in the secondary market with rights to ser-
vicing retained. Residential mortgage banking fees
increased by $0.2 million due to activities conducted by
F&M and by Mercantile Mortgage Corporation through
its joint venture with Wells Fargo Ventures LLC ("WEFV”}.
Mercantile Mortgage Corporation owns a 49.9% stake in
Mercantile Mortgage LLC, which has originated retail
mortgages since April 2002. Bankshares reports its share of
the net profits from the joint venture as mortgage banking
fees. The financial risk for Bankshares is the initial capital
contribution to the venture, which is minimal. As the
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primary beneficiary and managing partner, WFV is respon-
sible for consolidating the joint venture in its financial
statements. Either party may terminate the joint venture
with 60 days notice. Residential mortgages are sold in the
secondary market with rights to servicing released. During
2004, F&M’s residential mortgage business will be integrat-
ed into the joint venture. Historically, MSD&T has uti-
lized the joint venture to underwrite and close residential
mortgages on its behalf. As a result of the F&M integration,
the joint venture will be offering this service to several of
the Community Banks.

Investment securities gains mostly represent sales of
equity securities, with the balance related to the continued
restructuring of the investment securities bond portfolios
held in available-for-sale portfolios. These gains were
generated as part of a repositioning of the balance sheet
for interest rate changes that adjust portfolio yields and
duration.

Other income includes several categories. Electronic
banking fees consist of merchant card processing fees,
foreign ATM fees and debit card fees. These fees increased
to $16.8 million, up 12% from 2002. Charges and fees on
loans consist of letters of credit fees, late fees and other
assessed loan fees. Sixty percent of the increase in this
category is attributable to F&M. Letters of credit fees
decreased $1.1 million. This decrease was more than offset
by an 18% increase in late fees of $490 thousand and a
60% increase, or $1.7 million in other loan fees. Insurance
revenues are derived from fee income related to the sale
and servicing of insurance products. The $3.5 million
increase is due primarily to F&M, which operates two
wholly owned subsidiaries, Keller Stonebraker Insurance,




NONINTEREST EXPENSES

A schedule of noninterest expenses over the past three years is presented below:

Year Ended December 31, % Change
(Dollars in thousands) 2003 2002 2001 200372002 200272001
Salaries. ... $160,326 $133,200 $123,712 20.4% 7.7%
Employee benefits .................. ... 37,717 32,171 29,175 17.2 10.3
Net occupancy expense of bank premises ... 20,756 15,904 14,440 305 10.1
Furniture and equipment expense........... 31,610 24,464 24,008 292 1.9
Communication and supplies ............... 15,188 13,375 13,086 13.6 22
Other expenses
Professional services ..................... 19,500 11,221 9,479 73.8 18.4
Advertising and promotional expense .. .. 9,155 6,872 6,818 332 .8
Electronic banking fees .................. 7,657 6,937 7,000 10.4 (9
Amortization of intangible assets......... 4,943 1,972 2,082 150.7 (5.3)
All other expenses............cooviioia.. 30,595 26,492 25,087 155 5.6
Total other expenses 71,850 53,494 50,466 34.3 6.0
Noninterest expense before amortization
of goodwill.. ... 337,447 272,608 254,887 236 7.0
Amortization of goodwill ............ ... ... - - 9,072 - (100.0)
Total ..o $337,447 $272,608 $263,959 23.8% 3.3%

Inc. and Potomac Basin Group Associates, Inc. These
insurance agencies provide a full line of consumer and
commercial products. Consumer products include annu-
ities, homeowners, automobile, life and personal umbrella
insurance products. Commercial products include property
and casualty packages, workers’ compensation, bonds,
professional liability and 401(k) and other benefit plans.
Bankshares invested $50.0 million in bank-owned life
insurance (“BOLI”) during the third quarter of 2002. The
Company invested in BOLI to provide funding for future
employee benefit costs. Executive and middle management
employees are insured under the plan. Income, which
reflects changes in the cash surrender value, was $1.1 mil-
lion higher than in 2002 due to a full year’s earnings for
2003 compared to less than one-half year’s earnings in
2002. BOLI investment income is exempt from federal
and state income tax, and related costs of the insurance are
not tax deductible. The BOLI is invested primarily in high
grade corporate and government bonds and mortgage-
backed securities. All other income consists of revenues
from various sources, such as safe deposit box rent, travel-
ers’ checks, money orders and bill collection fees.

Noninterest Expenses

Noninterest expenses increased $64.8 million, or 24%,
from the 2002 level. The table above shows the major
components of noninterest expenses. The principal reason
for the year-over-year increase in each noninterest expense
category was the inclusion of F&M, Boyd Watterson Asset
Management LLC and Peremel & Company, [nc. In 2003,
$8.0 million was recorded in pretax merger-related
expenses related to the F&M acquisition. There were no

merger-related expenses recognized in 2002. For further
information regarding the various categories that merger-
related expenses affected, see Footnote No. 2 of the
financial statements.

Controlling costs and maintaining operational efficiencies
remain primary objectives for Bankshares. A key measure
that is closely monitored is Bankshares’ overall efficiency
ratio. [t is computed by dividing noninterest expenses by
the sum of net interest income on a tax-equivalent basis
and noninterest income. Bankshares’ efficiency ratio was
50.9% compared to 46.1% for the years ended December
31, 2003 and 2002, respectively. About half of the increase
in the efficiency ratio for 2003 compared to 2002 was
due to the significant investments in IWM during 2003.
The other half of the increase was due to the decline in
Bankshares’ net interest margin for 2003. On a non-GAAP
basis, the operating efficiency ratio excludes amortization
expense for intangibles, nonoperating income and expenses,
such as securities gains and losses and merger-related
expenses. Bankshares’ operating efficiency ratio was 49.5%,
compared to 45.8% for the years ended December 31,
2003 and 2002, respectively. For the reconciliation of
GAAP to non-GAAP measures, see Footnote No. 22 of
the financial statements.

Employee-related expenses, which include salaries, ben-
efits and incentive compensation, is the largest component
at 59% of noninterest expenses. F&M accounts for a sub-
stantial portion of the $32.7 million increase in employee-
related expenses for 2003 compared to 2002. The opera-
tional merger of F&M took place in the fourth quarter of
2003. Management expects employee-related expenses
associated with F&M to diminish as head-count and other



targeted cost saves are realized. Additionally, there were
approximately $0.7 muillion in pre-operational merger-
related staff costs and approximately $3.6 million in
severance expense, of which $0.8 million relates to the
accelerated vesting of restricted stock awards for employees
mn IWM whose employment was terminated. Higher
comrmissions, incentive compensation and normal merit
increases also contributed to the increase in employee-
related expenses. An increase of $4.3 million, or 58% over
the prior year, in commissions and incentive compensa-
tion is tied directly to Bankshares’ revenue and overall
performance. Stock-based compensation expense, which is
included in salary expense, increased due to stock options
and restricted stock awards granted under Bankshares’
Omnibus Stock Plan. Bankshares has expensed the cost of
stock options when granted in accordance with the fair
value provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards (SFAS) No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based
Compensation.” For further information regarding stock-
based compensation plans, see Footnote No. 14 of the
financial statements.

Net occupancy expense, which includes depreciation,
rents, maintenance and utilities, increased due to the net
additional 39 branch locations as well as the three corpo-
rate offices related to F&M, Boyd Watterson Asset Manage-
ment LLC and Peremel & Company, Inc. Additionally,
$1.2 million relating to terminating certain Community
Bank lease agreements, generally higher rental payments and
an increase in expenses associated with improvements are
reflected in the increase to net occupancy expense.

Furniture and equipment expenses include premises
depreciation, rental and maintenance expense associated
with the upkeep and improvement of hardware and com-
puter software. Pretax merger-related expenses associated
with cancellation of equipment maintenance contracts
were $372 thousand. IWM expenditures increased by $3.2
million, of which $525 thousand related to the termina-
tion of a technology equipment contract. Also adding to
the increase is furniture and equipment expense primarily
related to F&M.

Professional services, communications and supplies
and marketing expenses increased $12.4 million, or 39%.
Pretax merger-related expenses contributed $4.8 million,
or approximately one-third, of this increase. Merger-related
professional expenses included services rendered to imple-
ment system conversions, consolidation and branch closings,
employee benefits and tax consulting. Communications and
supplies and marketing merger-related expenses relate to
the increase in the supplies needed for additional branch
office locations, including brochures and operational sup-
plies, as well as increased customer information mailings
and disclosures.

Other expenses consist of travel and membership, amor-
tization, licensing and insurance, sundry losses and other
operational expenses. Travel and membership increased to

$7.2 million, or 30%, in 2003 from $5.5 million in 2002.
Amortization of other identifiable intangibles increased to
$4.9 million in 2003 from $2.0 million in 2002. Licensing
and insurance increased to $5.1 million, or 38%, in 2003
from $3.7 million in 2002. Increases in these three cate-
gories are mostly attributable to the increased activities
relating to the acquisition of F&M. Other expenses include
armored couriers service, credit and debit card charges,
check clearing and processing charges and other miscella-
neous charges. These expenses for 2003 were $22.9 million,
up 16% from $19.8 million in 2002. Management expects
2004 expenses to increase modestly due to the incremental
increase on a linked quarter basis offsetting some savings
from the integration of F&M. In particular, Bankshares
expects to make additional investments in regulatory and
compliance infrastructure and incur increased operating
expenses associated with the planned opening of de novo
branches in Washington, D.C., and Northern Virginia.

111. ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION

Investment Securities

Bankshares’ investment securities portfolio is structured to
serve both as a source of liquidity and as a key component
in the overall management of interest rate risk. At
December 31, 2003, the total investment securities portfolio
was $3.2 billion, an increase of $533.3 million, or 20%, from
$2.6 billion at December 31, 2002. The portfolio consists of
short-term and intermediate-term U.S. Treasury and U.S.
agency obligations, adjustable-rate mortgage-backed securi-
ties (ARMs) and intermediate average life agency collateral-
ized mortgage obligations (CMOs). More than 98% of the
total investment portfolio is classified as available-for-sale.

As part of a new investment portfolio strategy designed
to maintain a core amount of liquidity and to increase
portfolio yields in a low interest rate environment, Bank-
shares increased its holdings of mortgage-backed securities
over the course of 2003. Mortgage-backed securities were
purchased for the investment portfolio because they have
short or intermediate-term durations and represent a stable
source of cash-flows. As a result of this new program and
the F&M acquisition, mortgage-backed securities rose
$935.3 million to $1.3 billion during 2003. Similarly, the
proportion of mortgage-backed securities to total available-
for-sale securities increased from 13% in 2002 to 41% over
the same period in 2003. In the available-for-sale portfolio,
U.S. Treasury obligations decreased $576.1 million, or 41%,
in 2003 while U.S. agency obligations increased by $66.0
million, or 9%.

At year-end 2003, the average maturity of the bond
component of the available-for-sale portfolio was 3.0
years, a 0.6 year increase from year-end 2002. The market
value of the bond investment portfolio as of December
31, 2003, was 101% of amortized cost, compared to 104%
at December 31, 2002. At December 31, 2003, $2.2



BOND INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO

The following summary shows the maturity distribution and average tax-equivalent yields for the bond investment portfolio

at December 31, 2003.

Within 1 1-5 5-10 After 10
(Dollars in thousands) Year Years Years Years Total
Securities available-for-sale (1)
U.S. Treasury and other
U.S. Government agencies
Fairvalue ..., $567,873 $1,042,734 $ 28,666 $ 92 $1,639,365
Yield oo 4.47% 3.71% 5.02% 7.54% 3.99%
States and political subdivisions
Fairvalue ... ... ...l $ 9,399 $ 19,726 $ 41,368 $9377 § 79,870
Yield ... 1.23% 2.76% 5.04% 6.00% 4.14%
Mortgage-backed securities (2)
Fairvalue........ .. ... $ 44,856 $ 873,536 $305,044 $60,194 51,283,630
Yield ... 3.81% 3.93% 4.45% 4.18% 4.06%
Other bonds, notes and debentures
Fairvalue............................... $ - $ 6,083 $ - $ - $ 6,083
Yield ..o =% 4.04% ~% =% 4.04%
Asset-backed securities (2)
Fairvalue................ ... ... $ 6,584 $ 22,092 $ - $ - § 28,676
Yield oo 3.51% 3.09% ~% % 3.19%
Total securities available-for-sale
Fairvalue ... $628,712 $1,964,171 $375,078 $69,663  $3,037,624
Yield ... 4.36% 3.79% 4.56% 4.43% 4.02%
Securities held-to-maturity
State and political subdivisions
Amortized COSt......oiiii $ 4,179 $ 13,390 $ 8,057 $2,587 § 28,213
Yield oo 7.28% 6.63% 7.56% 7.86% 7.11%

(1) Investment securities available-for-sale are presented at estimated fair value. Yields on such securities are based on amortized cost.
(2) Maturities are reflected based on projected maturities at time of purchase. Actual maturities will vary as a result of the level of loan

repayments in the underlying mortgage pools.
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billion of these investments had unrealized gains of $47.3
million, and the remaining $§796 million of chese invest-
ment securities had unrealized losses of $12.4 million.
More information on the investment portfolio is provided
in the table above and in Footnote No. 3 of the financial
statements.

Loans

Total loans averaged $8.1 billion for the year ended
December 31, 2003, an increase of 14% over the average of
$7.1 billion for the year ended December 31, 2002. The
F&M acquisition accounted for approximately 50% of
Bankshares’ loan growth in 2003. Average loans increased
in all categories in 2003: commercial (including industrial,
financial, agricultural, leases and commercial mortgages),
residential real estate, consumer and construction. In 2003
average commercial loans grew 12%, and average residential
real estate loans grew 9%, while average consumer loans
mncreased 19% over 2002. An average balance of $930
million in construction loans reflected an increase of 27%,
compared to an average balance of $733 million in 2002.
At December 31, 2003, commercial, industrial and agricul-
tural loans constituted the largest portion, at 58%, of the
total loan portfolio, a slight decline from 60% at December
31, 2002.

Average loan growth, at 22%, for the Community Banks
reflects the F&M acquisition. MSD&T’s growth, at 3% in
2003, remained well below historical levels. The Commu-
nity Banks have a higher concentration in the residential
real estate and consumer portfolios than MSD&T. The
Community Banks have remained focused on reladonships
in local markets, and management believes this allows the
Community Banks’ management to tailor loan products.
and services to their individual communities. MSD&T is
focused more on commercial and construction loans. The
leasing portfolio at MSD&T decreased by $28.1 million, or
28%, to $74.1 million at December 31, 2003 from $102.2
million one year ago. Because of the dynamics of the
equipment leasing business, and the risk inherent therein,
management decided in the fourth quarter of 2001 to dis-
continue marketing this product line. As noted above, com-
mercial real estate experienced growth in 2003, both in
absolute terms {11%) and as a portion of total loans. A large
percentage of the commercial real estate mortgages and
construction loan balances outstanding at December 31,
2003, were for owner-occupied properties. Although it rec-
ognizes the risks associated with some types of real estate
loans, Bankshares believes it is consistent with sound bank-
ing practice to continue to extend real estate credits to
carefully selected customers. Bankshares’ historical charge-
off experience for real estate loans compares favorably with
loss experience in other portfolic segments. For further
comparative information on the components of the loan
portfolio, see the “Five-Year Selected Financial Data” table.

Sources of Funds

Bankshares’ primary source of funding for its investing
and lending activities comes from deposits gathered by the
227 branches of its banking affiliates. Raising core deposits
through the branch system is a high priority for Bankshares.
Average total deposits in 2003 were $9.0 billion, represent-
ing an increase of $1.4 billion, or 18%, over the prior year
average of $7.6 billion. The F&M acquisition accounted
for approximately 50% of this growth. For the year ended
December 31, 2003, 80.3% of the funding for average
earning assets was derived from deposits, while this ratio
was 79.2% for the year ended December 31, 2002.
Bankshares continues to promote its cash management
services to its commercial customers in order to maintain
and expand this key source of funding.

In 2003, interest-bearing deposits represented 74.8%
of average total deposits and were $6.7 billion, reflecting
growth of 16%. In 2003, the combination of savings,
checking plus interest and money market accounts
increased 23% on average. The move to these deposit
products, particularly money market accounts, reflected
customers’ shift to more conservative investments, given
the uncertainties about the economy and the equities
market. Also, the drop in yield on money market mutual
funds has made these products more competitive.
Certificates of deposit and other time deposits have
increased 10% on average in 2003 over 2002.

Although deposits are Bankshares’ primary source of
funding, advances from the Federal Home Loan Bank
(“FHLB”), other secured borrowings, as well as federal

LOAN COMPOSITION
AND GROWTH
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COMPOSITION OF EARNING ASSETS

Average Balances

(Dollars in thousands) 2003 2002 2001 2000 1999
Loans................ooi § 8,088,982 72.3% $7,088,844 73.6% §6,832,856 77.7% $6,169,632 78.2% $5,377.367 74.3%
Investment securities®. ... ... 2,852,164 23.5 2,367,772 246 1,816,404 20.7 1,694,404 214 1,842,761 255
Federal funds sold, et al ..... 250,462 2.2 178,624 1.8 141,245 1.6 29,434 4 15,762 2
Total.............. $11,191,608 100.0% $9,635,240 100.0% $8,790,505 100.0% §7,893,470 100.0% $7,235,890 100.0%
*Includes interest-bearing deposits in other banks.
DEPOSIT MiX
Average Balances
(Dollars in thousands) 2003 2002 2001 2000 1999
Noninterest-bearing deposits. . $2,269,720  25.2% $1,856,706 24.3% $1,618,838 23.0% $1,438,578 23.2% $1,334,282 22.6%
Interest-bearing deposits:
Savings................... 1,168,074 13.0 966,283 12.7 853,911 122 854,035 13.8 887,624 151
Checking plus interest.... 1,071,877 11.9 873,497 11.4 771,186 10.9 718,669 11.6 696,862 11.8
Money market ........... 1,357,234 15.1 1,096,417 14.4 846,577 12.0 773,104 125 790,589 13.4
Certificates of deposit—
$100,000 and over. .... 1,272,327 14.2 1,080,347 14.2 1,145,569 16.2 852,495 137 714,600 12.1
Other time deposits ... .. 1,852,622 20.6 1,759,160 23.0 1,812,589 257 1,559,973 252 1,472,268 250
Total............... $8,991,854 100.0% $7,632,410 100.0% $7,048,670 100.0% $6,196,854 100.0% $5,896,225 100.0%

funds purchased, provide additional funding. In 2003, the
growth in average total deposits, at 18%, was able to support
most, but not all, of the 16% increase in average earning
assets, resulting in a slight increase in short-term borrowing
needs. Short-term borrowings, which consist mainly of
securities sold under repurchase agreements, federal funds
purchased and commercial paper, averaged $851 million
during 2003, a slight increase over the 2002 level.

During 2003, $8.6 million was repaid on previously
existing long-term debt. Bankshares issued $300 million in
subordinated debt in 2003, as an additional means of fund-
ing. Of this amount, $124.1 million was used to pay the
cash portion of the consideration relating to the acquisi-
tion of F&M. The balance was invested in the Community
Banks as subordinated debt as part of a capital restructur-
ing initiative. For a more in-depth discussion of the impact
of this issuance, see “Interest Rate Risk” below.

Another key source of funding is shareholders’ equity.
Bankshares has consistently maintained a capital to asset
ratio higher than its peers, as reported in data furnished by
our regulators. Shareholders’ equity averaged $1.5 billion
during 2003, which represented an increase of $239.2
million, or 19%, over the prior year’s average. For a more
in-depth discussion of shareholders’ equity and capital ade-
quacy, see “Capital Resources and Adequacy” below and
Footnote No. 10 of the financial statements.

Risk Management

Bankshares has established an integrated risk management
structure in which senior management regularly identifies,
measures and manages risks. The Chief Risk Officer
coordinates and directs the work of several standing com-
mittees charged with managing the risks Bankshares faces
(see below) and provides regular reports to the Audit
Committee. These committees are:

» The Asset and Liability Committee (“ALCQ”), as described

in more detail below, manages interest rate risk, market risk

and liquidity risk.

» The Credit Qualiry Committee oversees the establishment

of consistent credit quality standard policies; monitors the
functioning of the newly established loan teview function;
and along with the CEO and CFO, determines the
allowance for loan and lease loss reserves and related issues.
» The Compliance Committee establishes global compliance
guidelines and ensures strict compliance with all relevant
regulatory and statutory requirements for Bankshares and
its affiliates.

» The Disclosure Committee, comprised of senior represen-
tatives of all of Bankshares business lines, reviews Bankshares
periodic disclosures and ensures compliance with the
requirements of the U.S. securities laws and best practices.
» The Technology and Operations Committee evaluates on
an ongoing basis operational risk and technology risk to
Bankshares.
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Credit Risk Analysis

Bankshares’ loans and commitments are substantially to
borrowers located in our immediate region. Bankshares
has restricted its participation in multibank credits where
Bankshares is not the managing or agent bank. Central to
the operation of a sound and successful financial institu-
tion is the balanced management of asset growth and
credit quality. Responsibility for loan underwriting and
monitoring is clearly fixed on key management personnel
in each of our affiliates and, ultimately, on the board of
directors of each affiliate. These responsibilities are
supported at the holding company level by appropriate
underwriting guidelines and effective ongoing loan
review. In addition, Bankshares has set an internal limit
for each affiliate bank, that is well below the regulatory
limit, on the maximum amount of credit that may be
extended to a single borrower.

Allowance for Loan Losses

The allowance for loan losses and the provision for loan
losses charged to expense are based on credit loss experi-
ence and estimated inherent losses in the current portfolio,
which includes evaluation of impaired loans as required by
SFAS No. 114, “Accounting by Creditors for Impairment
of a Loan” and SFAS No. 118, “Accounting by Creditors
for Impairment of a Loan-Income Recognition and
Disclosure” Also incorporated in determination of the
allowance is SFAS No. 5, “Accounting for Contingencies”;
the recent guidance contained in the Securities and
Exchange Commission’s SAB No. 102, “Loan Loss
Allowance Methodology and Documentation”; and the
Federal Financial Institutions Examination Council’s Policy
Statement on Allowance for Loan and Lease Losses
Methodologies and Documentation for Banks and Savings
Institutions. An allowance for loan losses is maintained suf-
ficient to absorb losses in the loan portfolio. The allowance
is a function of specific loan allowances, general loan
allowances based on historic loan loss experience and
current trends and, lastly, allowances based on existing eco-
nomic conditions that affect the collectibility of the loan
portfolio. These can include, but are not limited to, expo-
sure to an industry experiencing problems, changes in the
nature or volume of the portfolio, delinquency and nonac-
crual trends. The portfolio review and the calculation of
the allowance is performed by management at each affiliate
bank based on its knowledge of its loans and risk factors
prevailing in its market. Other risk factors are reviewed by
Bankshares’ Credit Quality Committee to determine their
impact on the allowance for loan losses, with final evalua-
ton done at the holding company.

Each affiliate’s reserve is dedicated to that affiliate only
and is not available to absorb losses from another affiliate.
The level and adequacy of the allowance is evaluated quar-
terly by Bankshares’ Credit Quality Committee. All loan
loss reserves are subject to annual regulatory examinations
and determination as to their methodology and adequacy.

Management believes that the allowance for loan losses s at
an adequate level to absorb losses inherent in the portfolio.
The specific allowance is based on analysis of the loan
portfolio by each affiliate bank. Each loan with an out-
standing balance in excess of a specified threshold that is
either on nonaccrual status or on the Watchlist will be
evaluated. The Watchlist represents loans identified and
closely followed by management. They possess certain
qualities or characteristics that may lead to collection and
loss 1ssues. Monitored loans, which are included in the
‘Watchlist, display characteristics suggesting they may be
classified as nonperforming loans in the near feature. The
identified loans are evaluated for potential loss by analyzing
current collateral values or present value of cash flows, as
well as the capacity of the guarantor, as applicable. The
specific allowance resulting from this review increased
184% to $14.9 million from $5.3 million at December 31,
2003 and 2002, respectively. The largest portion of this
component is from MSD&T’s portfolio, at 100% and 87%,
for 2003 and 2002, respectively. The specific reserve
increased primarily due to several commercial loans at
MSD&T that moved to nonaccrual status during 2003.
The general allowance calculation, which also is com-
pleted on a quarterly basis, begins with segmentation of the
remaining portfolio according to loan types as presented in
external reports. Historical loss factors are maintained, pro-
viding the starting point of the analysis. Historical loss fac-
tors are applied to all non-Watchlist loans. Management is
currently utilizing the past five-year loss history specific to
each major segment to perform the allocation. As to
Watchlist loans, loss factors are applied based on the severity
of the loan grade. Historical loss factors are adjusted to
reflect the point in time that management initially identified

ALLOWANCE AS A PERCENT OF PERIOD-END LOANS;
NONPERFORMING LOANS AS A PERCENT OF PERIOD-END LOANS

O Loan loss allowance as a percent of
period-end loans

O Nonperforming loans as a percent of
period-end Joans
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ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES

Year Ended December 31,

(Dollars in thousands) 2003 2002 2001 2000 1999
Allowance balance—beginning .................... $ 138,601 $ 141463 $ 138,612 $ 117,997 $ 112,423
Allowance of acquired banks ............... ... ... 13,205 — - 5,868 -
Charge-offs:
Commercial ... (5,765) (13,864) (3,799) (2,875) (3,733)
(@FeYsT 0t Lots o) TP (170) - (90) (11) (305)
Residential real estate ........................... (246) (251) (104) (322) {676)
COonNSUMET ... .ttt i e e (4,367) (3,306) (3,507) (2,998) (2,614)
Lease financing ............coiiiiiiinnnn.. (1,776) (4,800) (5,828) - (2,000)
Total. ..o (12,324) (22,221) (13,328) (6,206) (9,328)
Recoveries:
Commercial ... 1,203 347 795 1,963 1,337
CoOnsStruClON .« .o ittt e e e e 136 226 78 177 24
Residential real estate ...................c..oo... 125 128 147 144 280
COnSUMET ... et 1,970 1,570 1,725 1,438 1,205
Lease financing .............coi il 316 210 - - -
Total. ... 3,750 2,981 2,745 3,722 2,846
Net charge-offs ..o i (8,574) (19,240) (10,583) (2,484) (6,482)
Provision for loan losses . . ... i, 12,105 16,378 13,434 17,231 12,056
Allowance balance—ending........................ $ 155,337 % 138,601 § 141,463 § 138612 § 117,997
Average loans . ... $8,088,982 §7,088,844 $6,832,856 $6,169,632  $5,377,367
Percent of net charge-offs to average loans ......... _-11% _27% 15% _.04% . 12%
Period-end loans ............... ... ...l $9,272,160 $7,312,027 $6,906,246 $6,693,294  $5,712,130

Percent of allowance for loan losses
to period-end loans

ALLOGATION OF ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES

1.68%

1.90%

2.05%

The allowance for loan losses has been allocated to the various categories of loans. This allocation does not limit the amount
of the allowance available to absorb losses from any type of loan and should not be viewed as an indicator of the specific
amount or specific loan categories in which future charge-offs may ultimately occur. The table below presents this allocation
at the dates shown. For a historical analysis of the allowance for loan losses, see the Allowance for Loan Losses table above.

Allowance amount allocated as of December 31,

2003 2002 2001 2000 1999

% of Y% of % of % of % of

Total Total Total Total Total
(Dollars in thousands) Amount  Allowance Amount Allowance Amount Allowance Amount Allowance Amount Allowance
Allowance amount
allocated to:
Commercial........... $120,316 77.4% $109,386 78.9% § 79,253 56.0% $ 55,400 39.9% § 45,300 38.4%
Construction. ......... 10,806 7.0 9,644 7.0 7,124 5.0 18,000 13.0 12,600 10.7
Residential real estate. . 7,263 4.7 3,645 2.6 2,866 2.0 9,700 7.0 9,900 8.4
Consumer ............ 14,447 9.3 6,565 4.7 6,149 4.4 5,500 4.0 4,800 4.0
Lease financing........ 2,505 1.6 9,361 6.3 26,594 18.8 — — - —
Allowance amount
not allocated . ......... - - - - 19,477 13.8 50,012 36.1 45,397 38.5

Total ................ $155,337 100.0% $138,601 100.0% $141,463 100.0% $138,612 100.0% $117,997 100.0%
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COMPOSITION OF LGAN PORTFOLIO

The table below presents the percentage distribution of loan amounts in each category, at the date shown:

December 31,

2003 2002 2001 2000 1999
Commercial ......... .. . ... ... ... ... . ......... 57.3% 59.0% 58.6% 54.2% 56.1%
Construction ........ooiorii i 11.5 11.1 9.4 12.3 11.4
Residential real estate ........................... 14.4 14.6 . 154 16.3 15.4
COoNSUMEr ... ... 16.0 13.9 14.4 14.9 15.0
Lease financing ..., .8 1.4 2.2 2.3 2.1
Total. ..o 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%

a potential impairment loss in such risk-rated loans as
opposed to when such loss 15 actually taken as a charge-off
against the allowance. This adjustment is necessary as
Bankshares’ practice has generally been to work with its
borrowers through their economic difficulties. Accordingly,
historical losses may tend to lag the national and regional
economic cycles. Those loss factors are applied to all loans
within the same risk rating. Qualitative factors that may
cause credit losses to deviate from average historical experi-
ence are then developed. Thesé include but are not limited
to: changes in the volume and severity of past due loans;
changes in the volume of Watchlist loans and nonaccruals;
concentrations in a specific industry or geographic location;
administrative risk concerns that include changes in the
loan review and loan grading system; changes in lending
policies and procedures (which include underwriting, col-
lection, charge-off and recovery practices); changes in man-
agement or the staft of any previously mentioned areas; and
current economic conditions and indicators. Management’s
judgment and experience are key to this process. These fac-
tors are revised to address current conditions in the portfo-
lio. The general allowance was $140.4 million and $133.3
million at December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively.
Increases in the general allowance can be attributed to the
ongoing refinement of the methodology in quantifying risk
segments and estimation techniques used in the calculation.
The increase in allocation to the commercial loan portfolio
is related to the F&M acquisition and the trend in nonper-
formers at MSD&T. The increases in the residential real
estate and consumer allocations are related to the F&M
acquisition. The decline in the allocation to the lease
financing portfolio is a result of the charge-offs and work-
out of problems within that portfolio identified in 2001.
Allocation of a portion of the allowance does not preclude
its availability to absorb losses in other categories.

The allowance for loan losses as a percent of loans was
1.68% at December 31, 2003, compared to 1.90% at
December 31, 2002. The allowance for loan losses as a
percent of loans declined from December 31, 2002 to
December 31, 2003, principally as a result of the F&M
acquisition. F&M’s loan portfolio is more heavily weighted
towards consumer and residential real estate loans. Potential
losses in these portfolios are more predictable and quantifi-

able, generally resulting in a lower required allowance.
F&M’s allowance at date of merger was less than 1% of loans
outstanding. Reflecting this and overall credit quality trends,
the allowance within the Community Banks as a percentage
of loans outstanding declined from 2.01% at December 31,
2002 to 1.54% at December 31, 2003. In contrast, the
allowance as a percentage of loans for MSD&T increased
from 1.72% at December 31, 2002 to 1.96% at December
31, 2003. This increase is attributable to the additional spe-
cific allowance allocation at MSD&T. During 2003 the pro-
vision for loan loss expense was $12.1 million, compared to
$16.4 million in 2002. The provision at MSD&T was $13.2
million for 2003, an increase of 13% over the $11.7 million
provided in 2002. The Community Banks recorded a rever-
sal in their aggregate allowance of $1.1 million in 2003,
compared to a provision of $4.6 million in 2002. The shift
in the provisioning reflects the overall credit quality trends
within the two business segments.

Net charge-offs decreased to $8.6 million during 2003,
compared to $19.2 million during 2002. The commercial
portfolio represented the largest net charge-off amount for
2003 at $4.6 million, or 53% of total net charge-offs. Net
charge-offs as a percentage of average loans were .11%,
.27% and .15% for the years ended December 31, 2003,
2002 and 2001, respectively.

Intensive collection efforts continue after a loan is
charged off in order to maximize the recovery of amounts
previously charged off. Recoveries as a percent of loans
charged off were 30.4% in 2003, 13.4% in 2002 and
20.6% in 2001. In 2003, recoveries increased 26% over
2002, and charge-offs decreased 45%, symptomatic of the
economy stabilizing and showing some signs of improve-
ment. Recoveries in a given year may not relate to loans
charged off in that year. Further details related to the
allowance for loan losses are shown in the tables above
and in Footnote No. 4 of the financial statements.

Nonperforming Assets

Nonperforming assets consist of nonaccrual loans, renego-
tiated loans and other real estate owned (i.¢., real estate
acquired in foreclosure or in lieu of foreclosure). With
respect to nonaccrual loans, our policy is that, regardless of
the value of the underlying collateral and/or guarantees,
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NONPERFORMING ASSETS

A five-year comparison of nonperforming assets is presented below:

December 31,

(Dollars in thousands) 2003 2002 2001 2000 1999
Nonaccrual loans (1)
Commercial ... $43,932 $25,260 $23,284 $22,736 $11,076
@075 ot ot s o) TN 651 1,365 2,201 3,394 2,581
Residential real estate ...............o i, 3,721 2,479 2,251 3,123 3,373
CONSUMET ..ottt 1,224 261 408 249 258
Lease fiNancing ........oovviiiiiiniieiniienn. 824 4,006 4,775 863 1,841
Total. .o 50,352 33,371 32,919 30,365 19,129
Renegotiated loans (1) ... it - - - - -
Loans contractually past due 90 days or more
and still accruing interest........................ - - - - -
Total nonperforming loans.................... 50,352 33,371 32,919 30,365 19,129
Other real estate owned............... .ot 191 132 181 1,005 1,663
Total nonperforming assets ................... $50,543 $33,503 $33,100 $31,370 $20,792
Nonperforming loans as a percent of
period-end loans.................oo il .54% .46% 48% 45% 33%
Nonperforming assets as a percent of
period-end loans and other real estate owned . ... .55% .46% .48% 47% 36%

(1) Aggregate gross interest income of §4.1 million and 82.8 million in 2003 and 2002, respectively, on nonaccrual and renegotiated loans would have been
recorded if these loans had been accruing on their original terms throughout the period or since origination if held for part of the period. The amount of inter-
est income on the nonaccrual and renegotiated loans that was recorded totaled $2.1 million and 8641 thousand in 2003 and 2002, respectively.

Note: Management was monitoring loans estimated to aggregate $28.4 million at December 31, 2003, and $24.9 million at December 31, 2002,
that were not classified as nonaccrual or renegotiated loans. These loans had characteristics which indicated they might result in such classification in

the future.

no interest is accrued on the entire balance once either
principal or interest payments on any loan become 90 days
past due at the end of a calendar quarter. All accrued and
uncollected interest on such loans is eliminated from the
income statement and is recognized only as collected. If a
loan is impaired and has a specific loss allocation based on
an analysis under SFAS No. 114, “Accounting by Creditors
for Impairment of a Loan —an amendment of FASB
Statements No. 5 and 15, all payments are then applied
against the loan’s principal. A loan may be put on nonac-
crual status sooner than this standard if, in management’s
judgment, such action is warranted.

Nonperforming assets (nonaccrual loans and other real
estate owned) as a percent of period-end loans and other
real estate owned was .55% at December 31, 2003, com-
pared to .46% in the preceding year. At year-end 2003,
nonperforming assets were $50.5 million, compared to
$33.5 million in 2002. Nonperforming loans totaled $50.4
million at December 31, 2003, compared to $33.4 million
at December 31, 2002. Nonperforming loans increased in
three categories of the portfolio: commercial and industrial,
residential real estate and consumer. The largest dollar
increase in nonperforming loans was $18.7 mullion in the
commercial and industrial category, which accounted for

87.3% of nonperforming loans at December 31, 2003.
MSD&T’s nonperforming loans were $37.5 million at
December 31, 2003, representing 74.6% of Bankshares’
total nonperforming loans. The increase is primarily related
to three large loan relationships that migrated from moni-
tored to nonaccrual status during the year. MSD&T’s non-
performing loans amounted to $22.1 million at December
31, 2002. Nonperforming loans at the Community Banks
were $12.8 million at December 31, 2003, relatively
unchanged fiom $11.3 million at December 31, 2002.

The level of monitored loans, or loans with character-
istics suggesting that they may be classified as nonperform-
ing in the near future, increased during the year. At
December 31, 2003, monitored loans were $28.4 million,
compared to $24.9 nullion a year before. Two loans at
MSD&T contributed $19.8 million to the current total.
These loans are secured by two commercial aircraft, which
are leased to a regional commercial airline. A long-time
customer of MSD&T holds a controlling interest in the
airline. In light of the prevailing conditions in the com-
mercial airline industry, management has included these
loans in the monitored status. The balance of the portfolio
also was examined for additional exposure to this industry
and it was determined to be minimal. This exposure was
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factored into the general reserve allocation for commercial
loans.

Other real estate owned was $191 thousand at December
31,2003, compared to $132 thousand at December 31,
2002. These properties generally are sold within a short
period. Therefore, regardless of the amount, the properties
generally will have changed from year to year. Other real
estate owned is carried at the lower of cost or fair market
value. Refer to the data in the “Nonperforming Assets”
chart above, which shows the changes in the amounts of
various categories of nonperforming assets over the last
five years and sets forth the relationship between nonper-
forming loans and total loans.

Interest Rate Risk

The objective of interest rate risk management is to con-
tain the risks associated with interest rate fluctuations. The
process involves identification and management of the sen-
sitivity of net interest income to changing interest rates
and other market factors. Managing to mitigate interest
rate risk, however, is not an exact science. Not only does
the interval between repricing of assets and liabilities
change from day to day as the assets and liabilities change,
but also for some assets and liabilities, contractual maturity
and the actual cash flows experienced are not the same.
For example, residential mortgages and mortgage-backed
securities may have contractual maturities well in excess of
five years, but depending on the interest rate carried by the
specific mortgages and the then currently prevailing rate of
interest, such mortgages and securities may be prepaid
much more rapidly. Similarly, savings, checking plus inter-
est and money market deposits may be withdrawn on
seven days notice. While these contracts are extremely
short, it has been Bankshares’ experience that these fund-
ing pools, when considered as a whole, have a multiyear
duration. The “Interest Rate Sensitivity Analysis (Static
Gap)” table below reflects the expected contractual cash
flows or maturities of assets and labilities, along with the
scheduled opportunity to reset interest rates in a down-
ward rate environment. As the table reflects, at December
31, 2003, Bankshares is asset sensitive since more assets
than liabilities are subject to repricing within the next 12
months. The data in this table would suggest that net
interest income should tend to increase in a rising

interest rate environment and decrease in a declining rate
environment. The absolute change in the repricing of
products varies greatly. As noted in the discussion of net
interest income, changes in short-term interest rates by the
Federal Reserve Board result in an almost similar change
in the vield on Bankshares’ prime-rate-based loans. In
contrast, the repricing characteristics of certain managed-
rate deposits, primarily savings, checking plus interest and
money market accounts, have proven to be much less sen-
sitive during the current declining rate environment than
they were in prior rate cycles. The current experience has
been factored into the table.

&S|

EARNINGS SIMULATION MODEL PROJECTIONS

The following table summarizes the effect a positive 100 and
200 basis point change and a negative 50 basis point change in
interest rates would have on Bankshares’ net interest income
over the next 12 months.

Calculated increase/(decrease) in
projected net interest income

As of December 31,

Change in interest rates

(basis points) 2003 2002
+200 4.6% 3.0%
+100 2.4% 1.6%

-30 2.1)% (2.2)%

Because of the limitations of the Static Gap analysis,
management primarily utilizes an earnings simulation
model to monitor Bankshares’ risk exposure associated
with interest rate fluctuations. The model provides man-
agement with the tools to reflect more reasonably how
specific loan, investment, deposit and debt products will
respond to changes in market interest rates. This model
projects the effects on net income based on factors such
as changes in interest rates, the shape of the yield curve
and interest rate relationships. As seen in the “Earnings
Simulation Model Projections” table above, within a one-
year horizon, the model forecasts that, compared to the
net interest income projection under stable rates, net
interest income would increase by 2.4% and 4.6% if inter-
est rates increased by 100 and 200 basis points, respective-
ly, and that net interest income would decrease by 2.1% if
interest rates decreased by 50 basis points. Given the cur-
rent low level of interest rates, Bankshares is limiting its
modeling to the 50 basis point decline in future interest
rates. These results are not necessarily indicative of future
actual results, nor do they take into account certain actions
that management may undertake in response to future
changes in interest rates.

The Federal Reserve Board’s 75 basis point reduction in
short-term interest rates over the two-year period ended
December 31, 2003, continued to compress the net interest
margin. Beginning in 2002, management started taking
actions to reduce the magnitude of Bankshares’ risk related
to further interest rate reductions or the compression in
spreads from a sustained low interest rate environment.
These actions included expanding and repositioning the
investment portfolio and adding an indexed money market
account. This product is more rate sensitive than the
traditional money market product. Management took
advantage of the lower rate environment to secure long-
term funding through the issuance in April 2003 of $300
million in subordinated notes at Bankshares. The notes
carried a fixed rate of 4.65%, of which $150 million was
swapped to a floating rate as a fair value hedge. This result-
ed in an increase in the amount of liabilities that reprice



INTEREST RATE SENSITIVITY ANALYSIS (STATIC GAP)

Low/Falling Interest Rate Scenario
At December 31, 2003

Over Over Over
3 months 1 year 1 year 5 years and
Within through cumulative through  nonsensitive
(Dollars in thousands) : 3 months 1 year total 5 years funds Total
EARNING ASSETS
LOoans ..o e $4,986,658 §$1,067,341 $6,053,999 $2,462,977 § 755,184 § 9,272,160
Investment securities (1) ................. 206,374 373,753 580,127 1,654,685 952,702 3,187,514
Other earning assets ..................... 41,161 - 41,161 - - 41,161
Total earning assets ................ 5,234,193 1,441,094 6,675,287 4,117,662 1,707,886 12,500,835
INTEREST-BEARING LIABILITIES
Managed-rate deposits (2)
Savings. . ... 268,133 - 268,133 1,074,353 - 1,342,486
Checking plus interest................ 189,616 - 189,616 1,074,493 - 1,264,109
Money market ........... o 438,403 - 438,403 1,183,130 - 1,621,533
Time deposits .. ..oovvviiie i, 954,783 1,236,649 2,191,432 1,077,810 14,462 3,283,704
Short-term borrowings .................. 809,021 - 809,021 - - 809,021
Long-termdebt .................ooo. 348,956 7,500 356,456 98,940 192,326 647,722
Total interest-bearing :
liabilittes . . ............ o 3,008,912 1,244,149 4,253,061 4,508,726 206,788 8,968,575
Gap e $2,225,281 § 196,945 $2,422,226 $ (391,064) $1,501,098 § 3,532,260
Cumulative gap..........oooiiiiii $2,225,281  $2,422,226 $2,031,162 $ 3,532,260
Cumulative gap as a percent of
CATNING ASSELS. . .ot 17.80% 19.38% 16.25% 28.26%
Cumulative rate sensitive assets/
cumulative rate sensitive Habilities ... .. 173.96% 156.95% 123.18% 139.38%

(1) Includes interest-bearing deposits in other banks.
(2) Reflects behavior experience in a declining rate environment, which often differs from legal withdrawal provisions.

LOAN MATURITY SCHEDULE

The following table illustrates loan diversity by maturity distribution for commercial and construction loans as of
December 31, 2003.

Maturing
Over 1
1 year through Over 5
(Dollars in thousands) or less 5 years years Total
Commercial. ... ... ... . . $2,352,449 $2,439,793 $ 597,662 $ 5,389,904
CONSLIUCHON. .0ttt 416,419 580,565 67,037 1,064,021
Total oo $2,768,868 $3,020,358 $ 664,699 $ 6,453,925

Of the $3.7 billion loans maturing after one year, $1.6 billion, or 42.1%, have fixed interest rates and $2.1 billion, or 57.9%,
have variable interest rates.



within the three-month time frame. Management will
continue to pursue any combination of these strategies as
long as interest rates remain low and the economy and
customer borrowing needs remain subdued. Despite these
efforts, the increase in sensitivity from that reported at
December 31, 2002 is a function of the current low rate
environment. It reflects the inability to reduce rates on
managed deposits to match a drop in interest rates. It also
reflects Bankshares’ strong capital position.

At times, Bankshares efforts to mitigate its exposure
to changes in interest rates have resulted in loan pricing
policies that have not coincided with its commercial cus-
tomers’ preferences. As a result, MSD&T entered into a
master agreement with another bank for the purpose of
making interest rate swaps and similar interest rate protec-
tion arrangements in connection with commercial loans
made to MSD&T’s customers. This arrangement enables
MSD&T’ customers to eliminate potential volatility of
interest rates and associated risks. MSD&T will only enter
into specific interest rate protection arrangements under
the master agreement with respect to which it has
approved a corresponding credit facility with the customer,
and as to which the customer is entering into a corre-
sponding interest rate protection arrangement with
MSD&T. Management does not anticipate that these
arrangements will expose Bankshares to any risk beyond
the normal credit risks undertaken with any lending
arrangement. As of December 31, 2003, one customer had
entered into such an arrangement. This swap agreement
has not had a material impact on the financial performance
of Bankshares. Management anticipates that should interest
rates reverse course and begin to rise, customer interest in
this option will increase. As a matter of policy, Bankshares
does not use highly leveraged derivative instruments for
interest rate risk management.

Market Risk

Market risk is defined as the constraint imposed by lower
market values of assets and liabilities as interest rates and.
equity markets fluctuate. Changes in market values also
impact the fee income earned by I'WM, where a signifi-
cant portion of the fee schedule is tied to current asset
values under management or administration. Bankshares has
designated substantially all of its investment portfolio as
available-for-sale, and in accordance with financial report-
ing standards, this portfolio is reported at fair value.
Changes in fair value, net of tax, are reflected as a compo-
nent of sharcholders’ equity. Bankshares’ maintenance of
- capital ratios well above regulatory requirements (see
“Capital Resources and Adequacy,” below) provides man-
agement with the flexibility to utilize the available-for-sale
portfolio for liquidity and interest rate risk management
needs, even during a period when valuations are depressed.
Maintaining a fairly short duration in the portfolio also
mitigates market risk.

€

Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk is the possibility that Bankshares will not be
able to fund present and future financial obligations. The
objective of liquidity management is to maintain the ability
to meet commitments to fund loans, purchase securities
and repay deposits and other liabilities in accordance with
their terms. Core deposits and the available-for-sale invest-
ment portfolio are key elements in meeting this objective.
For the year ended December 31, 2003, core deposits, total
deposits less certificates of deposit—$100,000 and over,
averaged $7.7 billion. This represents a 17% increase over
the $6.6 billion average balance for 2002. The percentage
of average loans funded by core deposits improved to
95.4% in 2003 from 92.4% in 2002. Although not viewed
as core deposits, a substantial portion of short-term bor-
rowings, comprised of securities sold under agreements to
repurchase and commercial paper, originate from core
deposit relationships tied to the overnight cash manage-
ment program offered to customers.

By limiting the maturity of securities and maintaining
a conservative investment posture, management can rely
on the investment portfolio to help meet any short-term
funding needs. U.S. Treasury and agency securities aver-
aged $1.7 billion in 2003, a 17% decrease from the aver-
age of $2.1 billion the prior year. These securities provide
the greatest liquidity and represented 15% of average
earning assets for 2003, compared to 22% in 2002. In
addition to these sources, Bankshares has access to national
markets for certificates of deposit, commercial paper and
debt financing. Should it need to supplement further its
liquidity, Bankshares has $1.8 billion in lines with the
FHLB and back-up commercial paper lines of $40 million
with commercial banks. Under covenants related to its
6.72% and 6.80% unsecured senior notes, Bankshares is
required to obtain approval from these note holders if it
incrementally borrows in excess of $150 million. Increases in
borrowings as a result of businesses acquired do not count
towards the incremental borrowing limit. Bankshares has
rarely had a need to access this source of funding and
would not expect its need to exceed this threshold in the
near term.

Capital Resources and Adequacy

Maintenance of exceptional capital strength has long been
a guiding principle of Bankshares. Ample capital is neces-
sary to sustain growth, to provide a measure of protection
against unanticipated declines in asset values and to safe-
guard the funds of depositors. Capital also provides a source
of funds to meet loan demand and enables Bankshares to
manage its assets and liabilities effectively.

Shareholders’ equity increased 39% to $1.8 billion at
year-end 2003 from $1.3 billion at year-end 2002. The
increase can be attributed to the acquisition of F&M and
earnings growth offset by increased cash dividend pay-
ments. Book value per share was $23.08 at December 31,
2003, compared to $19.24 at December 31, 2002. The
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ratio of average equity to average assets was 12.51% in
2003 and 12.43% in 2002, ranking Bankshares among the
most strongly capitalized banks in the industry. Excluding
intangible assets, average tangible equity to average tangible
assets was 10.34% in 2003 and 11.45% in 2002. The ratio
in 2003 was lower than in 2002 due to $124.1 million of
the consideration for the F&M acquisition being paid in
cash. The ratio was also negatively impacted by the
increased dividends paid.

‘While maintaining exceptional capital strength and
financing growth of the corporation, Bankshares also has
pursued a share repurchase program. Through December
2003, the Board of Directors authorized the repurchase
of up to 16,000,000 shares with 14,523,700 shares of
common stock repurchased under these programs. At
December 31, 2003, there remained 1,476,300 shares of
common stock authorized for repurchase. The share repur-
chase program has supported management’s strategy to
enhance shareholder value. Management has repurchased
shares in open market transactions and returned capital to
shareholders in the form of dividends during periods when
capital accumulates at a rate in excess of that required to
support the growth of earning assets. See Footnote No. 10
of the financial statements and the “Statements of Changes
in Consolidated Shareholders’ Equity” for details related to
the share repurchase program.

Various bank regulatory agencies have implemented
stringent capital guidelines, which are directly related to a
bank's risk-based capital ratios. By regulatory definition, a
well-capitalized institution, such as Bankshares, faces fewer
regulatory constraints on its operations than institutions
classified at the other end of the spectrum as critically

RISK-BASED CAPITAL RATIOS*

undercapitalized. For instance, only well-capitalized banks
can accept brokered deposits without advance regulatory
approval. In addition, FDIC deposit insurance premium
rates are significantly lower for banks with higher capital
levels, compared to poorly capitalized banks. The “Ruisk-
Based Capital Ratios” graph below shows that Bankshares
has maintained capital levels well in excess of the regulato-
ry minimum over each of the last five years. For a further
discussion of the regulatory capital requirements that apply
to Bankshares, see Footnote No. 10 of the financial state-
ments. Bank regulatory agencies also impose certain
restrictions on transactions among and between subsidiaries
of bank holding companies, including extensions of credit,
transfers of assets and payments of dividends. Historically,
the dividend restrictions have not limited dividend pay-
ments at Bankshares, and it is not anticipated that they will
have a constraining effect in the future. In addition to divi-
dend restrictions, capital requirements also are affected by
off-balance sheet risks. These include such items as letters
of credit and commitments to extend credit. Refer to
Footnote No. 9 of the financial statements for information
regarding Bankshares’ commitments.

Dividends

For the 27th consecutive year, the annual dividend paid
on common stock exceeded the prior year’s level.
Effective with the June 2003 dividend, the quarterly cash
dividend was increased 10% to $.33 from $.30 per share.
Over the last five years, dividends have increased at a
compound growth rate of 8.4%. Management will peri-
odically evaluate the dividend rate in light of Bankshares’
capital strength, profitability and conditions prevailing in

DIVIDENDS PER SHARE

Regulatory Tier I Minimum: 4%
* Tier I and Tier Il equity as percentages of risk-adjusted
total assets at December 31,
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DIVIDENDS

2003 2002
Quarter 4th 3rd 2nd 1st 4th 3rd 2nd 1st
Common dividends. .......................... .33 33 .33 .30 .30 .30 .30 .28

Bankshares has paid quarterly cash dividends on its common stock since September 1970 when such stock was first issued.
Bankshares intends to consider quarterly payment of dividends on its common stock, but such payment is necessarily
dependent on many factors, including the future earnings and financial requirements of Bankshares and its affiliates.

RECENT COMMON STOCK PRICES
Market Price*

2003 2002
Quarter 4th 3rd 2nd 1st 4th 3rd 2nd 1st
High ..o 45.95 42,49 4130 40.47 4039 4140 4480 4536
Low.. oo 39.76  38.91 33.90 30.16 32,60 32.07 3889 41.80

* The stock of Mercantile Bankshares Corporation is traded on the Nasdaq National Market under the symbol MRBK. The quotations represent actual

transactions.
As of February 27, 2004, there were 10,508 shareholders of record.

the economy in general and the banking industry in
particular. The annual dividends paid per common share
were $1.29 in 2003 and $1.18 in 2002. Total cash divi-
dends paid were $95.8 million in 2003 and $81.9 million
in 2002. The “Dividends” table above presents quarterly
dividends paid over the last two years.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements and
Contractual Obligations

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

Bankshares consolidates majority-owned subsidiaries that it
controls. Other affiliates, including certain joint ventures in
which there is less than 20% ownership, are generally car-
ried at lower of cost or fair market value. Bankshares does
not dispose of troubled loans or problem assets by means
of unconsolidated special purpose entities.

Bankshares’ mortgage banking subsidiary, as a Fannie
Mae Delegated Underwriting and Servicing lender, has a
loss sharing arrangement for loans originated on behalf of
and sold to Fannie Mae. In the ordinary course of business,
Bankshares routinely originates and sells mortgage loans on
the secondary market. Typically these loans are sold under
forward commitments on a servicing released basis. Refer
to Footnote No. 9 of the financial statements for additional
information regarding commitments relating to mortgage
banking.

Contractual Obligations and Other Commitments

Through the normal course of business, Bankshares enters
into certain contractual obligations and other commit-
ments. Such obligations generally relate to funding opera-
tions through debt arrangements as well as leases of
premises and equipment. These commitments for 2004
include budgeted requests for approximately $31.6 million

of capital expenditures spread relatively evenly between
improvements to existing banking offices and replacement
of furniture, equipment and technology. While these items
have been included in the budget for 2004, they are sub-
ject to a review and approval process prior to funding. For
further information on commitments, see Footnotes No. 5,
8 and 9 of the financial statements.

As a financial services provider, Bankshares routinely
enters into commitments to extend credit, including loan
commitments, standby letters of credit and financial guar-
antees. While contractual obligations represent future cash
requirements of Bankshares, a significant portion of com-
mitments to extend credit are likely to expire without
being drawn upon. Such commitments are subject to the
same credit policies and approval processes accorded to
loans made by Bankshares. Additionally, Bankshares has
committed to invest funds in third-party private equity
investments.

The table below summarizes significant contractual
obligations and commitments:

Long-term  Operating

(Dollars in thousands) debt leases Total
2004 ... oo $ 7,969 $12,157 $ 20,126
2005 . ... oL 6,382 10,867 17,249
2006 . ..o 66,733 9,498 76,231
2007 ..o 5,333 8,843 14,176
2008 .. 22,038 5,106 27,144
Thereafter . .......... 539,267 24,693 563,960

Total. . ........... $647,722 $71,164 $718,886

Other commitments

Commitments to extend credit $3,608,700
Standby letters of credit and financial guarantees 281,400
Unfunded third-party private equity investments 16,102
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Recent FASB Pronouncements

On January 17, 2003, the Financial Accounting Standards
Board (“FASB”) issued FASB Interpretation No. 46,
“Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities —an interpreta-
tion of ARB No. 51 (FIN 46).” The FASB has deferred
the implementation of FIN 46 for all public entities to the
first reporting period ending after December 15, 2003.
This deferral applies to all variable interest entities both
financial and nonfinancial in nature. Bankshares is current-
ly in the process of evaluating the impact of FIN 46.

This Interpretation does not have a material impact on
Bankshares’ financial statements.

In April 2003, FASB issued SFAS No. 149, “Amend-
ment of Statement No.133 on Derivative Instruments and
Hedging Activities”” SFAS No. 149 amends and clarifies
accounting for derivative instruments, including certain
derivative instruments embedded in other contracts, and for
hedging activities under SFAS No. 133. In particular, SFAS
No. 149 clarifies under what circumstances a contract with
an initial net investment meets the characteristic of a deriv-
ative and when a derivative contains a financing compo-
nent that warrants special reporting in the statement of cash
flows. This Statement is generally effective for contracts
entered into or modified after June 30, 2003 and did not
have a material impact on Bankshares’ financial statements.

In May 2003, FASB issued SFAS No. 150, “Accounting
for Certain Financial Instruments with Characteristics of
both Liabilities and Equity”” SFAS No. 150 establishes stan-
dards for how an issuer classifies and measures certain
financial instruments with characteristics of both liabilities
and equity. This Statement does not have a material impact
on Bankshares” financial statements.

In December 2003, FASB issued SFAS No. 132 revised
2003, “Employers’ Disclosures about Pensions and Other
Postretirement Benefits—an amendment of FASB State-
ments No. 87, 88, and 106.” The revised SFAS No. 132
does not change the measurement or recognition of prior
statements, but requires additional disclosure to those in the
original SFAS No. 132. The revised SFAS No. 132 retains
the disclosures required by the original SFAS No. 132 and
additionally requires disclosures including a description of
the type of plan assets, investment strategy, measurement
dates, plan obligations, cash flows and components of net
periodic benefit cost recognized. This revised Statement
will have no impact on Bankshares’ financial statements.
See Footnote No. 13 of the financial statements for
required disclosure.

In December 2003, the American Institute of Certified
Public Accountants issued Statement of Position (“SOP”)
03-3, “Accounting for Certain Loans or Debt Securities
Acquired in a Transfer,” which addresses the accounting for
differences between contractual cash flows and expected
cash flows for loans acquired in a transfer when those dif-
ferences are attributable at least in part to credit quality. It
includes such loans acquired in purchase business combina-
tions where there is evidence of deterioration in credit

quality since origination. This SOP requires the difference
between expected cash flows and the purchase price to

be accreted as an adjustment to yield over the life of the
acquired loans; the difference between contractual cash
tflows and expected cash flows is not subject to accretion.
This SOP would represent a change from current practice
where the allowance for loan losses is carried over in pur-
chase accounting. The SOP is effective for loans acquired
beginning after December 15, 2004. Bankshares is current-
ly evaluating the impact it will have on operations and
financial staternents. :

Review of Earnings and Balance Sheet for
2002 to 2001

Performance & Operating Analysis

Net income in 2002 was $190.2 million, compared with
$181.3 million in 2001, a 5% increase. Diluted net income
per common share was $2.72 in 2002 compared with
$2.55 in 2001, an increase of 7%. Excluding goodwill
amortization, 2001 net income and diluted net income per
common share would have increased by $8.9 million, or
80.12, respectively. Return on average assets was 1.88%,
and return on average equity was 15.12% in 2002, com-
pared with 1.96% and 15.15%, respectively, in 2001.
Average assets increased 10% to $10.1 billion, average
deposits increased 8% to $7.6 billion and average loans
increased 4% to $7.1 billion for the year ended December
31,2002 compared with the prior year.

Net interest income on a fully tax-equivalent basis, was
$448.0 million in 2002, compared with $424.7 million in
2001. Net interest income was affected by both changes
in the level of interest rates and changes in the amount
and composition of interest-earning assets and interest-
bearing lLabilities. In the fourth quarter of 2002 the Federal
Reserve Board reduced short-term rates by 50 basis
points. Bankshares is asset sensitive, and in the falling rate
environment, the net interest margin (net interest income -
expressed as a percent of average earning assets) tends to
compress, and growth in net interest income tends to slow.
Even though Bankshares was able to improve the net
mterest rate spread, the net interest margin declined to
4.65% in 2002 from 4.83% in 2001, primarily due to the
reduced benefit derived from noninterest-bearing funds.
This benefit fell from 105 basis points for 2001 to 60 basis
points for 2002,

Noninterest income decreased by 1% to $143.8 million
in 2002 from $145.5 million in 2001, largely due to a $3.4
million decrease reported on gains on the sale of equity
securities held in the available-for-sale portfolio. Additionally,
a decrease in ['WM revenue of $896 thousand was primari-
ly due to declines in equity market valuations during 2002.
Mortgage banking related fees for 2002 were down $2.6
million due to lower volumes in commercial mortgage loan
origination and the outsourcing of the retail mortgage
origination business. Other noninterest income, including
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service charges on deposit accounts, remained strong,
increasing by $5.2 million in 2002 compared to 2001.

Noninterest expenses totaled $272.6 million in 2002,
compared with $264.0 million in 2001, an increase of $8.6
million, or 3%. After excluding the amortization of good-
will in 2001, total noninterest expenses for 2002 increased
by $17.7 million, or 7%, over the 2001 total of $254.9
million. More than 70% ($12.5 million) of the increase is
attributable to the increase in salaries and benefits.
Contributing to this overall increase were $2.5 million in
incentive compensation; $1.8 million in stock option and
restricted stock award expense; $1.7 million in severance
costs, mostly associated with the IWM reorganization; $1.5
million in pension costs, mainly due to lower returns on
plan assets; and $1.4 million in health insurance costs.

Net occupancy expense increased by $1.5 million dur-
ing 2002 due mainly to higher rental rates, higher insurance
costs and improvements to branch facilities. Bankshares also
continued to expand its use of its headquarters building,
thereby reducing the number of outside tenants.

Higher software maintenance and rental costs accounted
for most of the $456 thousand increase in 2002 furniture
and equipment expenses. Increases in professional fees of
$1.7 million; charitable contributions of $1.3 million; and
debit card processing fees of $333 thousand accounted for
the remainder of the increase in 2002 noninterest expense.

Segment Reporting

Community Banks

Net income in 2002 was $119.6 million compared with
$98.5 mullion in 2001, a 21% increase. Discontinuing the
amortization of goodwill accounted for 8% of the increase.
Excluding goodwill amortization expense, net income
would have been $106.4 for 2001. For the year ended
December 31, 2002, average assets increased 11% to $6.3
billion, average deposits increased 10% to $5.1 billion and
average loans increased 7% to $4.3 billion. The Community
Banks provided 66% of the average total deposit base and
60% of the average loan base of Bankshares in 2002, reflect-
ing a slight increase in both proportions compared with
2001.

Net interest income on a fully tax-equivalent basis was
$301.5 million in 2002, compared with $282.0 million in
2001. The increase in net interest income was attributable
to a 10% increase in average earning assets, which offset a
12 basis point decline in the net interest margin. The net
interest margin declined to 5.05% in 2002 from 5.17%
in 2001.

Noninterest income increased to $50.0 million in 2002
from $46.3 million in 2001, largely due to a $2.5 million,
or 10%, increase in service charges on deposits and loan
related fees. Additionally, other income consisting of rev-
enues from electronic banking and merchant card process-
ing, safe deposit box rent, travelers’ checks, money orders
and bill collection increased by $1.0 million, or 5%, from
the 2001 levels.

Noninterest expense totaled $151.3 million in 2002,
compared with $145.4 million in 2001, an increase of $5.9
million, or 4%. After excluding the amortization of good-
will in 2001, total noninterest expenses for 2002 increased
by $13.8 million, or 10%, over the 2001 total of $137.5
million. The increase was primarily related to increases in
salaries and employee benefit expense of $5.5 million.
Normal merit increases and incentive compensation con-
tributed to this increase. In addition, occupancy and
equipment expenses increased $6.0 million due to higher
rent and facility and technology maintenance cost.

MSDET Banking

Net income in 2002 was $64.1 million compared with
$63.3 mullion in 2001, a 1% increase. Average assets
increased 10% to $4.1 billion, average deposits increased
4% to $2.7 billion and average loans decreased marginally,
remaining at $2.8 billion for the year ended December 31,
2002 compared to the prior year. MSD&T Banking pro-
vided 34% of the average total deposit base and 40% of the
average loan base of Bankshares in 2002.

Net interest income on a fully tax-equivalent basis was
$148.9 million in 2002, compared with $143.6 million in
2001. This increase in net interest income was attributable
to a 10% increase in average earning assets, consisting
mainly of a 61% growth in average investment securities to
$848 million. This was offset by a 23 basis point decline in
the net interest margin. The net interest margin declined
to 3.81% in 2002 from 4.04% in 2001. The growth in the
average investment securities reflects the investment of the
proceeds from the issuance of $200 million of unsecured
senior notes late in November 2001.

Noninterest income decreased slightly to $40.2 million,
or less than 1%, from $40.3 million in 2001, largely due to
a $2.7 million, or 22%, decrease in mortgage banking fees.
This decrease was attributable to lower commercial loan
originations as well as the outsourcing of retail mortgage
originations. All other noninterest income increased $2.6
million, or 9%, from the 2001 levels.

Noninterest expense totaled $89.9 million in 2002,
compared with $86.1 million in 2001, an increase of $3.8
million, or 4%. After excluding the amortization of good-
will in 2001, total noninterest expense for 2002 increased
by $5.0 million, or 6%, over the 2001 total of §84.9 mil-
lion. The increase was primarily related to salaries and
employee benefit expense increases totaling $3.8 million.
Normal merit increases and incentive compensation con-
tributed to this increase.

WM

Net income in 2002 was $12.1 million compared with
$16.3 million in 2001, a 26% decrease. Pretax profit mar-~
gins were 29.6% and 39.4% for 2002 and 2001, respectively.
These declines reflected declining equity market values and

ongoing reorganization costs for the division. Assets under
administration by IWM decreased by 7% to $36.0 billion
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for the year ended December 31, 2002 compared to the
prior year.

Investment and wealth management fee income
decreased to $68.0 million, or 2%, in 2002 from $69.0
million in 2001. Revenues from IWM represented the
largest source of Bankshares’ noninterest income at 48%.

Noninterest expense totaled $45.6 million in 2002,
compared with $40.5 million in 2001, an increase of $5.1
million, or 13%. The increase was related to an increase of
$3.2 million in salaries and employee benefit expenses.
Approximately half of the salary expense increase in 2002
was related to severance costs associated with the reorgani-
zation of IWM.

Credit Quality Measures

Provision for loan losses was $16.4 million in 2002, com-
pared to $13.4 million in 2001. Net charge-ofts in 2002
were $19.2 million, or .27% of average total loans, com-
pared with $10.6 million, or .15%, in 2001. The allowance
for loan losses was $138.6 million, or 1.90% of total loans
at December 31, 2002, compared with $141.5 million, or
2.05%, at December 31, 2001.

At December 31, 2002, total nonperforming assets were
$33.5 million, or .46% of period-end loans and other real
estate owned, compared with $33.1 million, or .48%, at
December 31, 2001. The 2002 increase was primarily in
the commercial portfolio.

Capital Ratios

The ratio of average shareholders’ equity to average total
assets remained strong at 12.43% at December 31, 2002
and 12.97% at December 31, 2001. Bankshares’ total risk-
based capital ratio at December 31, 2002 was 16.29% and
its Tier [ capital ratio was 15.00%, exceeding the minimum
regulatory guidelines of 8% and 4%, respectively. Bankshares’
leverage ratios were 11.20% and 11.60% at December 31,
2002 and 2001, respectively, exceeding the minimum regu-
latory guideline of 4%. As of December 31, 2002, all of
Bankshares’ bank affiliates exceeded all capital adequacy
requirements to be considered “well-capitalized.” For addi-
tional information on Bankshares’ risk-based capital ratio,
see Footnote No. 10 of the financial statements.

Cautionary Statement

This Annual Report contains forward-looking statements,
within the meaning of and pursuant to the safe harbor
provisions of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act
of 1995. A forward-looking statement encompasses any
estimate, prediction, opinion or statement of belief con-
tained in this report, and the underlying management
assumptions. These “forward-looking statements” include
such words as “believes,” “expects,” “anticipates,” “intends”
and similar expressions. Examples of forward-looking
staternents in this Annual Report are statements concern-
ing competitive conditions, effects of monetary policy, the
potential impact of legislation, identification of trends,
loan growth, customer borrowing trends, anticipated level
of interest rates, business strategies and services, continua-
tion or development of specified lending and other activi-
ties, credit quality, predictions or assessments related to
determination and adequacy of loan loss allowances, mon-
itored loans, internal controls, tax accounting, importance
and effects of capital levels, effects of asset sensitivity and
interest rates, earnings simulation model projections,
efforts to mitigate market and liquidity risks, dividend
payments and impact of FASB pronouncements.

These statements are based on current expectations and

assessments of potential developments affecting market
conditions, interest rates and other economic conditions,
and results may ultimately vary from the statements made
in this report. The following factors, among others, could
cause actual results to differ materially from the anticipated
results or other expectations expressed in the forward-
looking statements: (1) the interest rate environment may
further compress margins and adversely affect net interest
income; (2) results may be adversely affected by continued
diversification of assets and adverse changes to credit
quality; (3) economic slowdown could adversely affect
credit quality and loan originations; (4) loan growth may
not improve to a degree that would help offset continuing
pressure on net interest margin; (5) adverse governmental
or regulatory policies may be enacted; (6) the expected
growth opportunities or cost savings from our merger
with F&M Bancorp may not be fully realized or may take
longer to realize than expected; (7) F&M’s actual earnings
may not be as strong as projected; (8) declines in equity
and bond markets may adversely affect IWM revenues;
and (9) the inability to manage adequately the spread
between yields on earning assets and cost of funds could
adversely affect results.
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Management’s Statement of Responsibility

Management of Mercantile Bankshares Corporation (“Bankshares™) is responsible for the
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements and other financial information
contained in this report. The accompanying consolidated financial statements were prepared
in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America
and include, as necessary, best estimates and judgments by management. Other financial
information contained in this annual report is presented on a basis consistent with the con-
solidated financial statements.

Management understands and recognizes the importance of safeguarding Bankshares’
assets. In connection with this, management believes that Bankshares maintains a system of
internal controls that is adequate to ensure that transactions are properly authorized, that its
assets are safeguarded against unauthorized acquisition, use or disposition, and that its finan-
cial records are reliable. Bankshares maintains systems of controls that it believes are reason-
ably designed to provide management with timely and accurate information about Bankshares’
operations. The system of internal controls includes, but is not limited to, maintaining inter-
nal audit, legal and compliance departments, establishing formal written policies, procedures
and codes of conduct, training personnel and segregating key duties and functions, where
appropriate.

The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors participates in reviewing the adequacy of
the system of internal controls and financial reporting. The Audit Committee consists of
directors who are independent from Bankshares. They meet regularly with management, the
internal auditors and the independent auditors to review the scope of their work and findings.

There are inherent limitations in the effectiveness of any system of internal controls,
including the possibility of human error and circumvention or overriding of controls.
Accordingly, even effective internal controls can provide only reasonable assurance with
respect to financial statement preparation. Further, because of changes in conditions, the
effectiveness of internal controls may vary over time.

The independent accounting firm of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP (PwC) has performed
an audit of Bankshares’ financial statements. As part of the audit, management believes it has
made available to PwC all of the financial records, related data and minutes of shareholders’
and directors’ meetings that PwC believed were necessary in order to render their indepen-
dent audit report. As part of its audit, PwC obtains specific representations from manage-
ment of Bankshares. Management believes that all representations made to PwC during its
audit were valid and accurate. A copy of the independent auditors’ report follows.

Nl /M/

Edward J. Kelly III
President and Chief Executive Officer
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Terry L. Troupe
Chief Financial Officer
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Report of Independent Auditors

To the Board of Directors and
Shareholders of Mercantile Bankshares Corporation

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated balance sheets and the related consolidated
staternents of income and of changes in shareholders’ equity and of cash flows present fairly,
in all material respects, the financial position of Mercantile Bankshares Corporation and its
subsidiaries (the “Company”) at December 31, 2003 and 2002, and the results of their
operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December
31, 2003, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management;
our responsibility 1s to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.
We conducted our audits of these statements in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America which require that we plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial statement pre-
sentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

B i s T oS AU RS 2L T

Baltimore, Maryland
January 27, 2004
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Conéolidated Balance Sheets

DECEMBER 31,
(Dollats in thousands, except per share data) 2003 2002
ASSETS
Cash and due from banks. ... ... o $ 321,882 § 281,130
Interest-bearing deposits in other banks ........... ... 14,583 358
Federal funds sold .. ... oot 26,236 264,293
Total cash and cash equivalents ........ ... ... 362,701 545,781
Investment securities available-for-sale (1),(3). ... ... 3,123,514 2,586,192
Investment securities held-to-maturity (1),(3) ... .. .. ... 49,417 53,391
Loans held-for-sale (7). ... . o i 14,925 -
L0anS () oo 9,272,160 7,312,027
Less: allowance for loan 10sses (1),(4) ... oo i e (155,337) (138,601)
LOanS, IO « .ottt ettt 9,116,823 7,173,426
Bank premises and equipment, net (1),(5) ... 140,922 102,428
Other real estate owned, net (1) ... i 191 132
Goodwill, et (1) .o 522,173 102,705
Other intangible assets, net (19) . ... 56,223 7,530
Other assels . .o 308,583 218,791
TOtal ASSEES. . o\ttt e $13,695,472  $10,790,376
LIABILITIES
Deposits:
Noninterest-bearing deposits. .. .. ......iiiir e $ 2,750,721 § 2,086,745
Interest-bearing deposits ... .. ... i 7,511,832 6,174,195
TOtal dePOSits . oo v ittt 10,262,553 8,260,940
Short-term bOorrowWings (7). . ... oo 809,021 823,385
Accrued expenses and other liabilities .. ... o 134,735 94,479
Tong-term debt (8). .. ..o i 647,722 287,214
Total Habilitles ..o .ov et 11,854,031 9,466,018

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (5),(9)

SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Preferred stock, no par value; authorized 2,000,000 shares; issued and outstanding—None
Common stock, $2 par value; authorized 130,000,000 shares; issued shares — 79,772,705 (2003)

137,672
120,577
1,010,248
55,861

1,324,358

and 68,836,092 (2002); restricted shares — 101,932 (2003) and 76,250 (2002) ........... 159,545
Capital SUrPlUS ...t 548,664
Retained €arnings ... ... un i 1,110,748
Accumulated other comprehensive income {(oss) ........... ... i 22,484

Total shareholders’ equity .. .. ... .. i 1,841,441
Total liabilities and shareholders” equity ... i $13,695,472

$10,790,376

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

€S



Statement of Consolidated Income

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,

(Dollars in thousands, except per share data) 2003 2002 2001
INTEREST INCOME
Interest and fees on loans (1) ... .. o i $472,379  $468,298  $543,020
Interest and dividends on investment securities:
Taxable INterest INCOMIE ottt et e e et e 109,767 109,699 97,064
Tax-exempt INLEIESt INCOMIE .o\ttt ettt ettt et 2,746 1,895 1,993
DIvidends. . ..o 754 1,055 1,283
Other INVEStIMENt IMCOIMIE . .. o\ttt ettt ettt e e 6,968 211 198
Total interest and dividends on investment securities. .........c..o.vvvnve... 120,235 112,860 100,538
Other INterest INCOMNE. . ... .. .t ettt e e e 3,961 5,228 6,208
Total INLErest INCOIMIE . .. ... v\ttt et ettt 596,575 586,386 649,766
INTEREST EXPENSE
Interest on depPosits (6) .. ...ttt 93,190 122,569 199,703
Interest on short-term bOrrOWINGS. ......oouir it 5,604 11,259 25,120
Interest on long-term debt ... ...t 18,451 10,754 6,702
Total INEETEST EXPEIISE. ..ottt ettt ettt 117,245 144,582 231,525
NETINTEREST INCOME . .. ... . . ittt ittt ettt et e e i aas 479,330 441,804 418,241
Provision for loan losses (1),(4) .. ... o i 12,105 16,378 13,434
NET INTEREST INCOME AFTER PROVISION FORLOANLOSSES . . ......... ... ... ... .. ... . .... 467,225 425,426 404,807
NONINTEREST INCOME
Investment and wealth management (T)...... ... ... o i 78,933 68,435 69,331
Service charges on deposit accounts ... ... 36,912 31,454 28,085
Mortgage banking related fees....... ... 11,111 9,945 12,582
Investment securtities gains and (losses) (3)...... ... .. .. 7,137 846 4,248
Other INCOMIE ..o e e 42,498 33,070 31,244
Total NONINLErest INCOMIE L. .\ttt ettt et e 176,591 143,750 145,490
NONINTEREST EXPENSES
Salar IS et 160,326 133,200 123,712
Employee benefits (13) ... ... oo 37,717 32,171 29,175
Net occupancy expense of bank premises (1),(5) ............o i 20,756 15,904 14,440
Furniture and equipment expenses (1),(5). ... i 31,610 24,464 24,008
Communications and supplies .............. 15,188 13,375 13,086
Amortization of goodwill ...... ... o - - 9,072
Other eXpemses .. ...t 71,850 53,494 50,466
Total NONINEErESt EXPETISES « ottt e et ettt et e e e ee et 337,447 272,608 263,959
Income before income taxes . ... ... . i 306,369 296,568 286,338
Applicable income taxes (1),(11). ... .. 109,555 106,330 105,043
NETINCOME. . ... .. . i e $196,814  $190,238  $181,295
NET INCOME PER SHARE OF COMMON STOCK (7 0):
Basic. oo $2.70 $2.74 $2.57
Daluted oo $2.68 $2.72 $2.55
DIVIDENDS PAID PER COMMON SHARE . .....................coovieeniiniienn.. $1.29 $1.18 $1.10

See notes to consolidated financial statements.



Statement of Changes in' Consolidated Shareholders’ Equity

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003, 2002 AND 2001

Accumulated

Other Com-
Common Capital Retained prehensive
(Dollars in thousands, except per share data) Total Stock Surplus Earnings  Income (Loss)
BALANCE, DECEMBER 31,2000 .........ccvvvvenaen... $1,173,301 §142,198 $214,454 § 800,781 § 15,868
NEEINCOME . . oo et e e 181,295 181,295
Unrealized gains (losses) on securities available-for-sale,
net of reclassification adjustment, net of taxes............ 10,361 10,361
Comprehensive InCome ...........ooiiiieiininnnna.. 191,656
Cash dividends paid:
Common stock ($1.10 pershare) ........ ..., (77,597) (77,597)
Issuance of 108,094 shares for dividend
reinvestment and stock purchase plan.................... 4,139 216 3,923
Issuance of 23,754 shares for employee stock
purchase dividend reinvestment plan .................... 933 47 886
Issuance of 139,612 shares for employee stock option plan.. 2,324 279 2,045
Purchase of 1,594,500 shares under stock repurchase plan.. . (65,572) (3,189) (62,383)
Vested stock options. ... ...oviiiiiii i 1,022 - 1,022 - -
BALANCE, DECEMBER 31,2001 .................co.e 1,230,206 139,551 159,947 904,479 26,229
NEt INCOMIE o vttt e e s 190,238 190,238
Unrealized gains (losses) on securities available-for-sale,
net of reclassification adjustment, net of taxes............ 29,632 29,632
Comprehensive income ... 219,870
Cash dividends paid:
Common stock ($1.18 pershare) .............. .. . ... (81,909) (81,909)
Issuance of 107,680 shares for dividend
reinvestment and stock purchase plan............. ... .. 3,872 215 3,657
Issuance of 23,231 shares for employee stock
purchase dividend reinvestment plan ................. .. 921 46 875
Issuance of 237,421 shares for employee stock option plan.. 3,994 475 3,519
Issuance of 76,250 shares for restricted stock awards ........ 3,430 153 3,277
Deferred compensation — restricted stock awards.......... (2,560} (2,560)
Purchase of 1,384,200 shares under stock repurchase plan. .. (53,953) (2,768) (51,185)
Vested stock options. ... 487 - 487 - -
BALANCE, DECEMBER 31,2002 .............cooevnnnn.. 1,324,358 137,672 120,577 1,010,248 55,861
Nt IO L o ettt ettt et e e 196,814 196,814
Unrealized gains (losses) on securities available~for-sale,
net of reclassification adjustment, net of taxes............ (33,377) (33,377)
Comprehensive INCOME .......ooviu it 163,437
Cash dividends paid:
Common stock ($1.29 pershare) ................... ... (95,842) (95,842)
Issuance of 10,379,710 shares for bank acquisition.......... 428,059 20,759 407,300
Fair value of 322,528 options related to
employee stock option plan of acquired bank............ 5,944 5,944
Issuance of 124,268 shares for dividend
reinvestment and stock purchase plan.................... 4,696 248 4,448
Issuance of 23,737 shares for employee stock
purchase dividend reinvestment plan .................... 929 47 882
Issuance of 312,466 shares for employee stock option plan.. 5,744 625 5,119
Issuance of 101,932 shares for restricted stock awards ... .. .. 3,611 205 3,406
Deferred compensation — restricted stock awards .......... (472) (472)
Purchase of 5,500 shares under stock repurchase plan....... (212) (11) (201)
Vested stock options (14} .. ... 1,189 - 1,189 - -
BALANCE, DECEMBER 31, 2003(10) ................. $1,841,441 $159,545 $548,664 $1,110,748 $22,484

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Statement of Consolidated Cash Flows

Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,

(Dollars in thousands) 2003 2002 2001
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
= Yoo ' $ 196,814 $190,238 $ 181,295
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided
by operating activities:
Provision for loan Losses . ... e 12,105 16,378 13,434
Depreciation and amortiZation. .. ... ..u.ueetettnetni e 14,251 13,071 12,456
Amortization of goodwill ... ... - - 9,072
Amortization of other intangible assets............. ... .o i 4,943 1,972 2,082
Provision for deferred taxes (benefits) ............o i i (9,678) 11,093 14,723
Investment securities (gains} and losses . .........ooiiiein i (7,137) (846) (4,248)
Write-downs (income) of investment in private equity funds .................. (243) 2,167 1,063
Write-downs of other real estate owned ........................ 7 54 50
Gains on sales of other real estate owned. .............. ... ... ... ool (366) (51) (272)
Gains on sales of buildings. . ... (228) (456) (801)
Net (increase) decrease in assets:
Interest receivable . ..o i 4,741 1,792 1,039
Other receivables. . ..o (12,928) (678) 902
Bank owned life INSUIANCE ... ..ot (2,003) (869) -
ORT A88EES . . vttt et e e (19,034) (16,437) (20,434)
Loans held-for-sale.. ... . . 31,096 137,950 (131,355)
Net increase (decrease) in liabilities:
Interest payable ... .. . 24,132 (8,637) (2,257)
ACCrued eXPEISES . ..t (49,669) (5,221) (1,305)
Taxes payable ... 10,640 (5,896) 19,438
Net cash provided by operating activities ......... ..., 197,443 335,624 94 882
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from maturities of investment securities held-to-maturity .................. 15,149 3,553 3,870
Proceeds from maturities of investment securities available-for-sale................... 961,583 568,491 642,747
Proceeds from sales of investment securities available-for-sale ........................ 572,615 79,293 4,248
Purchases of investment securities held-to-maturity ............. ... L (2,590) (4,425) (5,386)
Purchases of investment securities available-for-sale.................... ... ... ... (1,488,190) (822,769) (1,237,534)
Net increase in CUSEOMET 0ANS . ... ..ot e (663,922) (425,202) (224,062)
Proceeds from sales of other real estate owned ......... ... ... ... ...l 959 227 1,573
Capital expenditiures ... ...t e (17,355) (14,723) (12,828)
Proceeds from sales of buildings ........ ... .. . 602 975 2,047
Purchase of bank owned life insurance......... ... .. i - (50,000) -
Business acquisitions . ... e (154,139) - (7,000)
Cash from acquired bank .. ... ... 70,450 - -
Other INVeStiNg ACHVIEY. . .. ..o\ttt e e e (4,507) (87,906) (1,476)
Net cash used In INvesting actiVIties. .. ... ..o.vunirienneniitinnneaa. (709,345) (752,486) (833,801)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Net increase (decrease) in noninterest-bearing deposits ... 367,640 202,867 290,375
Net increase (decrease) in checking plus interest and savings accounts................ 146,789 608,722 357,833
Net increase (decrease) in certificates of deposit ... ... it (204,910) 1,978 2,623
Net increase (decrease) in short-term borrowings .......... ... L. (187,374) (29,893) 71,810
Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt....... ... ... ... ... . L. 300,000 - 200,000
Repayment of long-term debt. ... oo (8,638) (8,300) (8,347)
Proceeds from issuance of shares. ... ... .o 11,369 8,784 7,396
Repurchase of common shares .......oo. i (212) (53,953) (65,572)
Dividends paid. ... ... (95,842) (81,909) (77,597)
Net cash provided by financing activities. .................cooii .. 328,822 648,296 778,521
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents ............. ... ... ... ..., (183,080) 231,434 39,602
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period .......... ... oo i 545,781 314,347 274,745
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period.......... .. ... .. ... oL $ 362,701 $ 545,781 § 314,347

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

n ey




Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

1, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A. Basis of Presentation
The consolidated financial statements, which include the accounts of Mercantile Bankshares Corporation (“Bankshares”) and
all of its affiliates, are prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America
and follow general practice within the banking industry. All significant intercompany transactions have been eliminated. For
purposes of comparability, certain prior period amounts have been reclassified to conform with current period presentation.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilides
and contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the disclosure of revenues and expenses during
the reporting period. These estimates and assumptions, such as the accounting for loan losses, depreciation and pension oblig-
ations, are based on information available as of the date of the financial statements and could differ from actual results.

Assets {other than cash deposits) held for others under fiduciary and agency relationships are not included in the accom-
panying balance sheets since they are not assets of Bankshares or its affiliates. Acquisitions accounted for as purchases are
included in the financial statements from the respective dates of affiliation.

B. Investment Securities

Investments are classified as either “held-to-maturity” or “available-for-sale.” Investment securities classified as “held-to-
maturity” are acquired with the intent and ability to hold until maturity and are carried at cost, adjusted for amortization of
premiums and accretion of discounts. Amortization and accretion are computed by methods that approximate level yield
adjusted for the effects of prepayments on the underlying investments. Investment securities classified as “available-for-sale”
are acquired to be held for indefinite periods of time and may be sold in response to changes in interest rates and/or prepay-
ment risk or for liquidity management purposes. These securities are carried at fair value, and any unrealized appreciation or
depreciation in the market value of available~for-sale securities is reported as accumulated other comprehensive income, a
separate component of shareholders’ equity, net of applicable taxes. Realized gains and losses are recognized on a specific
identification trade date basis. Amortized cost is used to compute gains or losses on the sales of securities, which are reported
in the Statement of Consolidated Income.

An assessment is made at the end of each quarter to determine whether there have been any events or economic circum-
stances to indicate that a security is impaired on an other-than-temporary basis. An other-than-temporary impairment may
develop if, based on all available evidence, the carrying amount of the investment is not recoverable within a reasonable peri-
od of time. Factors considered in making this assessment include among others, the intent and ability to hold the investment
for a period of time sufficient for a recovery in value; external credit ratings and recent downgrades; market price fluctua~
tions due to factors other than interest rates; and the probability of collection of contractual cash flows. Securities on which
there is an unrealized loss that is deemed to be other-than-temporary are written down to fair value and the adjustment is
recorded as a realized loss.

C. Loans

Interest income on loans is accrued at the contractual rate on the principal amount outstanding. Loan origination and com-
mitment fees, direct loan acquisition and origination costs, when significant, are deferred and accreted to interest income
over the life of the loan or over the commitment period. Loans held-for-sale in conjunction with the mortgage banking
business are carried at the lower of aggregate cost or fair value. Fees related to loans held-for-sale are recognized as a compo-
nent of mortgage banking income upon the sale of the loan. When scheduled principal or interest payments are past due 90
days or more at quarter-end on any loan, the accrual of interest income is discontinued and subsequent receipts on these
loans are recorded as a reduction of principal, and interest income is recorded only once principal recovery is reasonably
assured. Previously accrued but uncollected interest on these loans is charged against interest income. Generally a loan may
be restored to accruing status when all past due principal, interest and late charges have been paid and the bank expects
repayment of the remaining contractual principal and interest.

Under Statements of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) Nos. 114 and 118, “Accounting by Creditors for
Impairment of a Loan —an amendment of FASB Statements No. 5 and 15,” a loan is considered impaired, based on current
information and events, if it is probable that Bankshares will not collect all principal and interest payments according to the
contractual terms of the loan agreement. Impaired loans do not include large groups of smaller balance homogeneous loans
that are evaluated collectively for impairment (e.g., residential mortgages and consumer installment loans). The allowance for
loan losses related to these loans is included in the allowance for loan losses applicable to other than impaired loans. The
impairment of a loan is measured based on the present value of expected future cash flows discounted at the loan’s effective
interest rate, or the fair value of the collateral if the repayment is expected to be provided predominantly by the underlying
collateral. A majority of Bankshares” impaired loans are measured by reference to the fair value of the collateral.
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D. Allowance for Loan Losses
The allowance for loan losses is maintained at a level considered by management to be adequate to absorb inherent losses in
the loan portfolio. Management’s assessment includes the systematic evaluation of several factors: current econormic condi-
tions and their impact on specific borrowers and industry groups; the level of classified and nonperforming loans; the
historical loss experience by loan type; the results of regulatory examinations; and, in specific cases, the estimated value of
underlying collateral. The assessments of economic conditions, results of regulatory examinations and other risk elements
are determined primarily by management at each affiliate and reviewed by Bankshares.

The allowance is increased by the loan loss provision charged to operating expenses and reduced by loan charge-offs, net
of recoveries. The provision for loan losses is based on a continuing review of the loan portfolios, past loss experience and
current economic conditions which may affect borrowers’ ability to pay.

E. Loans Held-for-Sale

Bankshares enters into commitments to sell loans which it has originated. Generally, these loans are held for a short term.
Amounts reported are at the lower of cost or fair value. Fair value was deemed equal to the carrying amounts because loans
are originated for sale only after obtaining investor commitment to offset changes in market rates in the near term. The
determination of any write-down to market value includes consideration of all open positions and outstanding comimit-
ments from investors. Declines in the market value of loans held-for-sale are recorded as a charge in mortgage banking relat-
ed fees. Sales of loans are recorded when the proceeds are received and any difference between the proceeds and the carry-
ing amount is recorded as gain or loss in mortgage banking related fees.

E Bank Premises and Equipment

Bank premises and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and amortization. Depreciation and amortiza-
tion are computed using both the straight-line and accelerated methods over the estimated useful lives of the properties.
Expenditures for repairs and maintenance are charged to operating expenses as incurred. Expenditures for improvements
which extend the life of an asset are capitalized and depreciated over the asset’s remaining useful life. Gains or losses realized
on the disposition of properties are reflected in consolidated income.

G. Other Real Estate Owned
Other real estate owned consists primarily of real estate obtained through foreclosure or acceptance of deeds in lieu of
foreclosure. Other real estate owned is held-for-sale and is stated at the lower of cost or fair value.

H. Goodwill and Intangible Assets

Goodwill is the excess of the cost of Bankshares” investment over its equity in the net assets of purchased businesses.
Amortization of goodwill was discontinued in 2002, in accordance with SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible
Assets,” which requires that goodwill be reviewed at least annually for impairment. Prior to 2002, goodwill was being
amortized on a straight-line basis over a 15-year period from the respective acquisition dates.

Intangible assets consist mainly of deposit intangibles and customer list intangibles which are being amortized on a
straight-line basis over an original life of between 3 and 15 vears. Bankshares reviews its intangible assets periodically for
other-than-temporary impairment. If such impairment is indicated, impairment is recognized by accelerating the amortiza-
tion of the asset to the extent the carrying value exceeds the estimated fair value. Accumulated amortization for total intan-
gible assets was $13.0 million and $7.9 million at year-end 2003 and 2002, respectively.

Bankshares recognizes as assets the right to service mortgage loans for others. Market quotes were used to determine the
fair value of the mortgage servicing rights at the date of the sale. The capitalized mortgage servicing rights are amortized in
proportionate amounts over the estimated period of net servicing income. Bankshares analyzes the capitalized mortgage
servicing rights for impairment using a discounted cash flow analysis. A valuation allowance is established through a charge
to earnings if the amount of unamortized mortgage servicing rights exceeds fair value.

I. Stock Options and Restricted Stock Awards

Bankshares’ stock-based compensation plans are accounted for in accordance with the provisions of SFAS No. 123,
“Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation.” Under this standard, compensation cost for options is determined based on
the fair value of each option and the number of options that are granted and expected to vest. Compensation expense for
restricted stock awards is based on the closing market value of Bankshares stock on the date an award is granted.

J. Income Taxes

Income taxes are recorded in accordance with SFAS No. 109, “Accounting for Income Taxes.” The asset and liability
approach underlying SFAS No. 109 requires the recognition of deferred tax liabilities and assets for the expected future tax
consequences of temporary differences between the carrying amounts and tax bases of Bankshares’ assets and liabilities.
Deferred taxes are determined using enacted tax rates in effect for the year in which the temporary difference is expected
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to reverse. To the extent tax rates or laws change, deferred tax assets and liabilities are adjusted in the period that the tax
change is enacted. Income tax expense includes: deferred tax expense, which represents the net change in the deferred tax
asset or Hability balance during the year plus any change in a valuation allowance; and current tax expense, which repre-
sents the aggregate amount of tax currently payable to or receivable from tax authorities.

K. Earnings Per Share

Basic and diluted earnings per share (“EPS”) amounts are computed in accordance with the provisions of SFAS No. 128,
“Earnings Per Share” Basic EPS is computed by dividing income available to common shareholders by weighted average
common shares outstanding during the period. Diluted EPS is computed using the same components as in basic EPS with
the denominator adjusted for the dilutive effect of stock options and restricted stock awards.

L. Cash Flows

For purposes of reporting cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include cash and due from banks, interest-bearing deposits
in other banks, federal funds sold and securities purchased under resale agreements. Generally, federal funds are purchased
and sold for one-day periods; securities purchased/sold under resale agreements are purchased/sold for periods of one to

sixty days.

M. Derivatives and Hedging Activities

Derivatives are recognized on the balance sheet at their fair value. Bankshares has entered into derivative contracts that are
classified as interest rate swaps. On the date that the derivative contracts were entered into, they were designated as a hedge
of the fair value of a recognized asset or liability. Changes in the fair value of a derivative that is highly effective as a fair-
value hedge, along with changes in the fair value of the hedged asset or liability that are attributable to the hedged risk, are
recorded in current period earnings.

The relationship between hedging instruments and hedged items is formally documented, as well as the risk manage-
ment objective and strategy for undertaking the hedge transactions. This process includes linking the fair-value hedges to
specific assets and liabilities on the balance sheet. Both at inception and on an ongoing basis, an assessment is made as to
whether the derivatives used in hedging transactions have been highly effective in offsetting changes in the fair value of
hedged items, and whether those derivatives may be expected to remain highly effective in future periods.

N. Third-Party Private Equity Investments
Bankshares invests funds in third-party private equity investments. These investments are included in other assets and are
carried at the lower of cost or fair value. Bankshares’ proportionate share of income or loss is included in other income.

2. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

The following provides information concerning acquisitions completed during the three years ended December 31, 2003.
These acquisitions were accounted for as purchases. The results of operations of these acquisitions subsequent to the acqui-
sition dates are included in Bankshares’ Statements of Consolidated Income. Individually, the results of operations of these
acquisitions prior to the acquisition dates were not material to Bankshares’ results of operations.

In March and April 2003, Bankshares acquired in separate transactions, Boyd Watterson Asset Management LLC
(“BW?), an investment management firm, and Peremel & Company, Inc. (“Peremel”), a directed and discount brokerage
company. In the aggregate, the companies were purchased for approximately $29 million in cash. The BW acquisition has a
potential additional contingent payment of up to $8.6 million which, if paid, will be recorded as goodwill. The contingent
payment will be recorded assuming certain metrics are met and become payable three years from the acquisition date.
Bankshares finalized and recorded approximately $10.1 million of identified intangibles, mostly client relationships, as a
result of these acquisitions. These intangibles are being amortized on a straight-line basis over a range of three to eight
years. Goodwill recorded on these transactions totaled approximately $18.0 million at December 31, 2003.

On August 12, 2003, Bankshares completed its acquisition of F&M Bancorp (“F&M?”), a bank holding company head-
quartered in Frederick, Maryland. The total consideration paid to F&M shareholders in connection with the acquisition
was $124.1 million in cash and 10.4 million shares of Bankshares common stock. F&M transactions have been included in
Bankshares’ financial results since August 13, 2003. Acquired assets on August 12, 2003 totaled $2.2 billion, including $1.4
billion of loans and leases; liabilities assumed were $2.0 billion, including $1.7 billion of deposits. As of December 31, 2003,
Bankshares recorded $400.3 million of goodwill, $36.0 million of core deposit intangible, $5.8 million of mostly client
relationship intangibles (relating to the two insurance subsidiaries) and $1.1 million in a trademark intangible. The weighted
average amortization period for the newly-acquired core deposit intangible is nine years, and the client relationship 1denti-
fied intangible ranges from three to fifteen years. On October 24, 2003, certain assets and liabilities of F&M were
transferred to other Bankshares affiliates in order to align customers’ accounts with the Bankshares affiliate serving the geo-
graphic area where those customers reside.
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F&M, newly acquired in a business combination, falls under the guidance of the Emerging Issues Task Force (“EITF”)
in EITF Issue No. 95-3, “Recognition of Liability in Connection with a Purchase Business Combination.” EITF Issue No.
95-3 requires an entity to recognize a liability for an exit cost on the date that the entity commits itself to an exit plan.
“Exit costs” are defined to include those costs recorded by F&M prior to the merger date and, therefore, are not included
in Bankshares results of operations. Prior to August 12, 2003, F&M has recorded exit costs of $33.6 million relating to sev-
erance, systems conversion, branch consolidation and costs associated with terminating contracts (including leases). As of
December 31, 2003, $21.1 million of these exit costs were paid.

Bankshares’ exit costs, referred to herein as “merger-related” costs, are defined to include those costs for its branch clos-
ings and related severance, combining operations such as systems conversions, integration planning consultant’s fees and
marketing consultant’s fees incurred by Bankshares prior to and after the merger date and are included in Bankshares results
of operations. Bankshares expensed merger-related costs totaling $8.0 million and $0 for the years ended December 31,
2003 and 2002, respectively. The costs associated with these activities are included in noninterest expenses. Merger-related
expenses incurred for the period ended December 31, 2003 consisted largely of expenses for professional services rendered
and marketing in connection with the merger integration plan.

The table below shows the components of the pretax merger-related expenses.
December 31,

(Dollars in thousands) 2003
Salaries & Demelits. . oot e $ 722
Net occupancy expense of bank premises ......... .. ... 1,197
Furniture and eqUIPITIENT EXPEIISES. . . ...\ttt ettt ettt e e e 372
Professional SErVICES . .. e 3,528
Communications and SUPPLEs . . ... ..ot e 336
Advertising and promotional EXPeNSe ... ... ..t e 959
Al Other @XPEIISES. 1.ttt ettt et e e e 900

1 T O $8,014

The following table provides information concerning the purchase price of F&M Bancorp, balance sheet allocations, exit
costs associated with the acquisition and allocation of total intangible assets as of August 12, 2003.

(Dollars in thousands)

Purchase price less tangible equity of F&M ... i $396,222
Fair value purchase accounting adjustments
Financial assets (et OF tAXES) . ..ottt vttt e e e $ 1,067
Premises and equipment (Net Of taXes). ... . .u ittt e (3,243)
Financial liabilities (net of taXes) ... ...t e e 10,666
Total fair value purchase accounting adjustments (net of taxes) ..........c..oovvenenen.. 8,490
Exit cost purchase accounting adjustments
Personnel and employee terminations benefits............... . i 14,610
Occupancy and eqUIPmENt .. ... e 2,977
Contract cancellations .. ... ittt e 9,284
Other. 6,739
TOtal PIE—tAK COSES ... vttt ettt ettt e e et e e e e 33,610
INCOME LAXES .. ettt ettt ettt e e e e e e (12,061)
Total after-tax exit cost purchase accounting adjustments. ...............ooiinvenin... 21,549
Total adjusted purchase price. .. ... .. o i 426,261
Core deposit intangible (net of taXes) ... ...t 21,783
Other identifiable intangibles (net of taxes)............. ... ... .. i 4,171
GoodWill. .o $400,307



3. INVESTMENT SECURITIES

The amortized cost and fair value of investment securities at December 31, 2003 and 2002 were as follows:

2003 2002
Gross Gross Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair
(Dollars in thousands) Cost Gains Losses Value Cost Gains Losses Value

Securities held-to-maturity

States and political subdivisions... $ 28,213 $ 1,905 $ 3 %8 30,115 $ 38,299 $ 2,852 8§ 1§ 41,150
Other investments ............... 21,204 - - 21,204 15,092 — - 15,092
Total ..o $ 49,417 $ 1,905 $ 38 51,319 $ 53,391 $ 2,852 $ 1§ 56,242
Securities available-for-sale
US. Treasury.....cooovveennnean. $ 823,356 $22,437 $ 39 § 845,754 $1,375,703 $46,187 $ — $1,421,890
US. Government agencies ....... 778,916 15,096 401 793,611 695,970 31,659 2 727,627
States and political subdivisions. .. 77,897 2,073 100 79,870 549 28 - 577
Mortgage-backed securities ... .. 1,288,109 7,352 11,831 1,283,630 341,806 6,666 149 348,323
Other bonds, notes
and debentures................. 34,440 319 = 34,759 2,460 151 - 2,611
Totalbonds.................... 3,002,718 47,277 12,371 3,037,624 2,416,488 84,691 151 2,501,028
Other investments . .............. 84,508 1,382 - 85,890 80,222 4,942 - 85,164
Total oo $3,087,226  $48,659  $12,371 $3,123,514  $2,496710  $89,633  § 151 $2,586,192

The amortized cost and fair value of the bond investment portfolio by contractual maturity at December 31, 2003 and 2002 are

shown below:

2003 2002
Amortized Fair Amortized Fair
(Dollars in thousands) Cost Value Cost Value
Securities held-to-maturity
WAthIN 1 year. ..o e $ 4,179 $ 4,245 $ 3,568 $ 3,628
Lo TS o e e e e 13,390 14,114 16,103 17,142
B=10 YOS . . e 8,057 8,861 10,918 11,938
ALtEr 10 YoAIS. . ottt et 2,587 2,895 7,710 8,442
Jotal e $ 28,213 $ 30,115 $ 38,299 $ 41,150
Securities available-for-sale
Within 1 year ..o $ 620,663 $ 628,712 $ 629,085 $ 639,239
15 years .o 1,940,913 1,964,171 1,571,674 1,642,515
=10 YeaTS . o 372,736 375,078 215,470 219,010
After 1O Years. ..t 68,406 69,663 259 264
Total o $3,002,718 $3,037,624 $2,416,488 $2,501,028

At December 31, 2003 and 2002, no single issue of investment securities exceeded 10% of shareholders’ equity. At December 31,
2003 and 2002, securities with an amortized cost of $1.2 billion and $1.0 billion, respectively, were pledged as collateral for certain
deposits as required or permitted by law. At December 31, 2003, there were $94 thousand of individual securities that had unreal-
ized losses for a period greater than one year. At year end 2003, these securities had an unrealized loss of $2 thousand.

The gross realized gains and losses on debt and nondebt securities for 2003, 2002 and 2001 were as follows:

2003 2002 2001

Gross Gross Gross Gross Gross Gross

Realized Realized Realized Realized Realized Realized

(Dollars in thousands) Gains Losses Gains Losses Gains Losses
Securities available-for-sale

Debt oo $ - $985 $ 1 8679 $ - $ 67

Nondebt ... 8,122 - 1,524 - 4,315 —

Total ... $8,122 $985 $ 1,525 $679 $ 4,315 67




4. LOANS AND ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES

Loans at December 31, 2003 and 2002 were as follows:

(Dollars in thousands) 2003 2002
Commercial. . ... o $5,315,853 $4,317,263
Q7o 10 o b ol s (o3 s AU TP 1,064,021 810,985
Residential real estate .. ... ... . .. 1,335,375 1,066,694
L0 1 108 4 1 o A P 1,482,860 1,014,905
Lease fINancCInNgG. . ..ottt et 74,051 102,180

Total . $9,272,160 $§7,312,027

At December 31, 2003 and 2002, $50.4 million and $33.4 million, respectively, were considered nonaccrual loans (loans in
which interest income is recognized only as collected). Interest income on nonaccrual loans that would have been recorded
if accruing was $4.1 million and $2.8 million in 2003 and 2002, respectively. Interest income on nonaccrual loans that was
recorded totaled $2.1 million and $641 thousand in 2003 and 2002, respectively. See Note 1C for an explanation of the
nonaccrual loan policy.

The changes in the allowance for loan losses follow:

(Dollars in thousands) 2003 2002 2001
Allowance balance at beginning of year .......... ... .. $138,601 $141,463 $138,612
Allowance of acquired bank ........ ... .. 13,205 - -
Charge-ofs . ..ot (12,324) (22,221) (13,328)
RiECOVErIES. . 3,750 2,981 2,745
Provision for 10am 1osses . ... ... 12,105 16,378 13,434
Allowance balance at end of year ... ... $155,337 $138,601 $141,463

Information with respect to impaired loans and the related valuation allowance (if the measure of the impaired loan is less
than the recorded investment) as of December 31, 2003 and 2002 is shown below. Refer to Note 1C for an expanded dis-
cussion on impaired loans.

(Dollars in thousands) 2003 2002
Impaired loans with a specific valuation allowance.......... .. .. .. i, $ 26,715 § 13,751
All other impaired 10ans . . ... ..o 18,692 16,813

Total impaired Loans . .. .. ... e $ 45,407 $ 30,564
Specific allowance for loan losses applicable to impaired loans. ...............cooiiiiiiii.. $ 14,925 § 5,251
General allowance for loan losses applicable to other than impaired loans .................... 140,412 133,350

Total allowance for 1oan I0SSes . ... ...t e $155,337 $138,601
Year-to-date interest income on impaired loans recorded on the cash basis ................... $ 443 % 563
Year-to-date average recorded investment in impaired loans during the period ............... $ 31,241 § 53,777




5. BANK PREMISES AND EQUIPMENT

Bank premises and equipment at December 31, 2003 and 2002 consisted of the following;

(Dollars in thousands) 2003 2002
Land . oo e $ 29,370 $ 21,010
Building and leasehold improvements . ......... ... . 158,928 121,180
EqUIpmMIEnt. o e 105,395 79,904

Total bank premises and eqUIPIMENT . ...ttt 293,693 222,094
Accumulated depreciation and amoOrtization . ........vvi e e (152,771)  (119,666)

Bank premises and equipment, met. ... ... .o ii it e $ 140,922  $102,428

Bankshares’ bank affiliates conduct a part of their branch banking operations from leased facilities. Generally, the inital
terms of the leases range from a period of 1 to 15 years. Most of the leases contain options for renewal at the fair rental
value for periods of 1 to 20 years. In addition to minimum rentals, certain leases have escalation clauses based on various
price indices and include provisions for additional payments to cover taxes, insurance and maintenance.

Total rental expense for 2003, 2002 and 2001 was:

(Dollars tn thousands) 2003 2002 2001
Bank premuses™ ..o e $ 8,807 $ 6,092 $ 5,949
Equipment/software eXpense ... ... .. ... 5,984 4,456 4,730

Total rental expense .. ... $14,791 $10,548 $10,679

*Amounts do not reflect offset _for rental income.

At December 31, 2003, the aggregate minimum rental commitments under noncancelable operating leases were as follows:
2004-%$12.2 million; 2005-$10.9 million; 2006-$9.5 million; 2007-$8.8 million; 2008-$5.1 million; thereafter-$24.7 million.

6. DEPOSITS

Included in time deposits are certificates of deposit issued in denominations of $100,000 and over, which totaled $1.3 bil-
lion and $1.1 billion at December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively. At December 31, 2003, the amount outstanding and
maturity distribution of certificates of deposit issued in amounts of $100,000 and over are presented in the following table:

Maturing

Over 1 Over 2 Over 3 Over 4
1 year through through  through  through Over
(Dollars in thonsands) Total or less 2 years 3 years 4 years 5 years 5 years

Certificates of deposit—
$100,000 and over .................. $1,296,148 $987,720 $123,064 851,699 $76,065 $55,168 §$2,432

Interest on deposits for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001 consisted of the following:

(Dollars in thousands) 2003 2002 2001
SAVITLES . o vttt ettt e e e e $ 4,702 § 8,405 § 12,899
Checking plus ILETEST. . ..\ v vttt et e 2,061 2,908 5,255
Money market ... ..o 9,757 14,223 21,839
Time—3§100,000 and OVer. .. ovrvriiit e e e 29,464 34,671 62,350
Other tme ..o e 47,206 62,362 97,360

Total interest On dePOSIES ... vut ittt e e $ 93,190 $122,569 $199,703

L .-



7. SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS

The following table provides selected information on Bankshares’ short-term borrowings and applicable weighted average
interest rates at December 31, 2003 and 2002:

Year-end During Year
2003 (Dollars in thousands) Amount  Rate Highest Average  Rate
Federal funds purchased and securities
sold under repurchase agreements .................. $618,141 .57% $777,450 $627,839 1%
Comumercial Paper.........coovveiiiiiiiiain.. 190,880 .30 261,032 222,714 .49
Other short-term borrowings ......................... - - 1,720 795 2.22
Total. oo $809,021 .51% $851,348 .66%
2002 (Dollars in thousands)
Federal funds purchased and securities
sold under repurchase agreements .................. $564,616 .88% $777,798 $578,547 1.35%
Commercial paper..............ciiiii i 258,769 .60 270,495 229994  1.19
Other short-term borrowings ......................... - - 50,000 37,397  1.90
Total. oo e $823,385 .79% $845,938  1.33%

Other short-term borrowings consist of borrowings from the Federal Home Loan Bank. During 2003 and 2002, commercial
paper borrowings were partially supported by back-up lines of credit of $40.0 million. Unused lines of credit at December 31,
2003 and 2002 were $40.0 million. These lines of credit are paid for quarterly, semiannually or annually on a fee basis of
.09% to .10%.

8. LONG-TERM DEBT

Long-term debt at December 31, 2003 and 2002 consisted of the following:

{Dollars in thousands) 2003 2002
2.00% Federal Home Loan Bank borrowing ..., $ 41 § -
2.00% Federal Home Loan Bank borrowing ........... ..., 38 -
4.24% Federal Home Loan Bank borrowing ....... ... ... o i 15,877 -
4.39% Federal Home Loan Bank borrowing ...........ooo i 26,186 -
4.75% Federal Home Loan Bank borrowing ......... ... i 10,748 -
5.09% Federal Home Loan Bank borrowing ......... ... ... i, 5,229 -
5.32% Federal Home Loan Bank borrowing ........ ... i i 5,305 -
5.44% Federal Home Loan Bank borrowing .......... . ... i 5,327 -
5.51% Federal Home Loan Bank borrowing ... ... o i 10,000 10,000
5.55% Federal Home Loan Bank borrowing ............ ... .. ... .o oo 10,845 -
5.71% Federal Home Loan Bank borrowing ........ .. ... o i i 7,500 7,500
6.12% Federal Home Loan Bank borrowing ............ ... ... i 626 -
6.19% Federal Home Loan Bank borrowing ... i 1,187 -
6.56% Federal Home Loan Bank borrowing ............ ... i i 582 -
6.95% Federal Home Loan Bank borrowing ......... ... ... .. o i i, 641 -
4.625% Unsecured subordinated notes
Book valtie. ... 299,284 -
Interest rate swap adjUSHIIIEIIt ... ..o. .ttt et ettt (7,960) -
Adjusted balance .. ... 291,324 -
5.70% Unsecured senior notes
Book ValUC. . oo 199,672 199,641
Interest rate swap adjusStIment .. ....... oottt 6,594 11,673
Adjusted balance ... .. o 206,266 211,314
6.72% Unsecured SEMIOT TIOTES . ... v ettt it ettt et 35,000 35,000
6.80% Unsecured SENMIOT NOTES . . ..ot .tu ettt ettt ettt e e 15,000 15,000
6.94% UnSecured SETHOT TLOLES . . . vttt ettt e e e e e - 8,400
Total . $647,722  $287,214




The 2.00% Federal Home Loan Bank borrowings are due on November 23, 2015. Principal and interest are payable monthly
on the 1st, until maturity.

The 2.00% Federal Home Loan Bank borrowings are due on February 29, 2016. Principal and interest are payable monthly
on the 1st, until maturicy.

The 4.24% Federal Home Loan Bank borrowings are due on May 10, 2012. Interest is payable quarterly on February 10,
May 10, August 10 and November 10, until maturity.

The 4.39% Federal Home Loan Bank borrowings are due on March 13, 2006. Interest is payable quarterly on March 15, June
15, September 15 and December 15, until maturity.

The 4.75% Federal Home Loan Bank borrowings are due on September 14, 2011. Interest is payable quarterly on March 15,
June 15, September 15 and December 15, until maturity.

The 5.09% Federal Home Loan Bank borrowings are due on September 7, 2005. Interest is payable monthly on the 2nd,
until maturity.

The 5.32% Federal Home Loan Bank borrowings are due on September 7, 2006. Interest is payable monthly on the 1st, until
maturicy.

The 5.44% Federal Home Loan Bank borrowings are due on September 7, 2007. Interest is payable monthly on the 1st, until
maturity.

The 5.51% Federal Home Loan Bank borrowings are due on June 23, 2008. Interest is payable quarterly on March 23, June 23,
September 23 and December 23, until maturity.

The 5.55% Federal Home Loan Bank borrowings are due on August 6, 2008. Interest is payable quarterly on February 6,
May 6, August 6 and November 6, until maturity.

The 5.71% Federal Home Loan Bank borrowings are due on September 28, 2004. Interest is payable quarterly on
March 28, June 28, September 28 and December 28, until maturity.

The 6.12% Federal Home Loan Bank borrowings are due on December 15, 2005. Principal and interest are payable monthly
on the 1st, until maturity.

The 6.19% Federal Home Loan Bank borrowings are due on March 4, 2008. Interest is payable monthly on the 1st, until
maturity.

The 6.56% Federal Home Loan Bank borrowings are due on December 20, 2006. Principal and interest are payable monthly
on the 1st, until maturity.

The 6.95% Federal Home Loan Bank borrowings are due on June 29, 2005. Interest is payable monthly on the 1st, until
maturity.

The 4.625% subordinated notes are due on April 15, 2013. Interest is payable semiannually on April 15 and October 15, unul
maturity. The debt has a face value of $300 million, with an amortized discount of $716 thousand based on an effective rate
of 4.65%. $150 million of these fixed-rate notes were converted to floating rates through interest rate swaps. These swaps
were designed as a hedge of the fair value of the debt; therefore, the debt has been adjusted to reflect the change in the fair
value of the swap.

The 5.70% senior notes are due on November 15,2011, Interest is payable semiannually on May 15 and November 15, until
maturity. The debt has a face value of $200 million, with an amortized discount of $328 thousand based on an effective rate

of 5.725%. These fixed-rate notes were converted to floating rates through an interest rate swap. This swap was designed as a
hedge of the fair value of the debt; therefore, the debt has been adjusted to reflect the change in the fair value of the swap.

The 6.72% senior notes are due on April 30, 2006. Interest is payable semiannually on April 30 and October 30, until maturity.
The 6.80% senior notes are due on April 30, 2009. Interest is payable semiannually on April 30 and October 30, until maturity.

The annual maturites on all long-term debt over the next five years are: 2004 —$8.0 million; 2005 —-$6.4 mullion; 2006 -$66.7
million; 2007 —$5.3 million; 2008 —$22.0 million.



9. COMMITMENTS

Bankshares is a party to financial instruments that are not reflected in the balance sheet, which include commitments to
extend credit and standby letters of credit. Various commitments to extend credit (lines of credit) are made in the normal
course of banking business, Letters of credit are issued for the benefit of customers by affiliated banks. These commitments
are subject to loan underwriting standards and geographic boundaries consistent with Bankshares’ loans outstanding.
Bankshares’ lending activities are concentrated in Maryland, Delaware and Virginia.

Commitments to extend credit are agreements to lend to a customer as long as there is no violation of any condition
established in the contract. Commitments generally have fixed expiration dates or other termination clauses and may
require payment of a fee. Since many of the commitments are expected to expire without being drawn upon, the total
commitment amounts do not necessarily represent future cash requirements. Total commitments to extend credit were $3.6
billion at December 31, 2003 and $3.0 billion at December 31, 2002.

Standby letters of credit are commitments issued to guarantee the performance of a customer to a third party.
Outstanding letters of credit were $281.4 million at December 31, 2003 and $241.1 million at December 31, 2002. In
accordance with FASB Interpretation No. 45, “Guarantor’s Accounting and Disclosure Requirements for Guarantees,
Including Indirect Guarantees of Indebtedness of Others,” the fees received for issuing letters of credit are deferred and
amortized over the life of the commitment. The fees on letters of credit at December 31, 2003 had a carrying value of
$970 thousand representing unamortized fees.

Bankshares” mortgage banking subsidiary, as a Fannie Mae Delegated Underwriting and Servicing lender, has a loss shar-
ing arrangement for loans originated on behalf of and sold to Fannie Mae. The unamortized principal balance of the
underlying loans totaled $149.4 million at December 31, 2003. No allowance has been established for possible losses since
there have been no losses recognized during the six-year history of the arrangement and none is expected as of December
31, 2003. The mortgage subsidiary also has originated and sold loans with recourse in the event of foreclosure on the
underlying real estate. The unamortized amount of principal balance of loans sold with recourse totaled $2.3 million at
December 31, 2003. These mortgages are generally in good standing, are well-collateralized and no loss has ensued and no
future loss 1s expected.

Bankshares has committed to invest funds in third-party private equity investments. At December 31, 2003 and 2002,
$16.1 million and $15.2 million, respectively, remained unfunded.

10. SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

The Board of Directors has the authority to classify and reclassify any unissued shares of preferred stock by fixing the pref-
erences, rights, voting powers (which may include separate class voting on certain matters), restrictions and qualifications,
dividends, times and prices of redemption and conversion rights.

Bankshares has a Dividend Reinvestment and Stock Purchase Plan. The Plan allows shareholders to automatically invest
their cash dividends in Bankshares stock at a price which is 5% less than the market price on the dividend payment date.
Plan participants also may make additional cash payments to purchase stock through the Plan at the market price. The
number of shares of common stock that remain available for issuance under the Plan is 467,703 shares. Bankshares reserves
the right to amend, modify, suspend or terminate the Plan at any time at its discretion.

Bankshares has an Employee Stock Purchase Plan. The Plan allows employees (other than executive officers of
Bankshares) to purchase stock through payroll deduction and dividend reinvestment at the then current market price for
employee purchases and at 95% of market for dividend reinvestment. The number of shares of common stock which
remain available for issuance under the Plan is 764,827 shares. Bankshares reserves the right to amend, modify, suspend or
terminate the Plan at any time at its discretion.

The Board of Directors has approved plans authorizing Bankshares to purchase shares of its common stock. Purchases
may be made from time to time, subject to regulatory requirements, in the open market or in privately negotiated transac-
tions. Purchased shares will be used from time to time for corporate purposes including 1ssuance under Bankshares’ divi-
dend reinvestment plans and stock-based compensation plans. The number of shares remaining available for purchase under
the plans was 1,476,328 shares at December 31, 2003.

Pursuant to a Shareholders Protection Rights Agreement adopted in June 1999, each share of outstanding common
stock carries a right, initially for the purchase of 1/1,000 of a share of preferred stock at an exercise price of $150 (subject
to adjustment). The rights, which do not carry voting or dividend rights, may be redeemed by Bankshares at $.01 per
right. The rights expire on September 29, 2009 unless sooner exercised, exchanged or redeemed. The rights will not
become exercisable and will not trade separately from the common stock until the tenth business day (or such other date as
the Board of Directors selects) after commencement of a tender or exchange offer for, or announcement of the acquisition
by a person or group of, 10% or more of the outstanding common stock. Upon exercisability of the rights after acquisition
by a person or group (acquiring person) of 10% or more of the outstanding common stock or upon certain business
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combinations or other defined transactions involving Bankshares, each right (except rights of the acquiring person, which
become void) will entitle its holder to acquire common stock (or at Bankshares’ discretion, preferred stock) of Bankshares, or
common stock of the acquiring entity in a business combination or other defined transaction, with a value of twice the then
current exercise price of the right. In certain such cases, Bankshares may exchange one share of common stock (or at
Bankshares’ discretion, 1/1,000 of a share of preferred stock) for each right which has not become void. The Board of Directors
has classified 1,600,000 shares of preferred stock as Class A Preferred Stock for potential issuance on exercise of rights.

Cash dividends paid to Bankshares by its consolidated subsidiaries for the years ended 2003, 2002 and 2001 were $310.8
million, $135.7 million and $126.9 million, respectively. In aggregate, our affiliate banks have $409.4 million of capital
beyond the level necessary to maintain *“well-capitalized” status at December 31, 2003. The amount of dividends that
Bankshares” bank and nonbank affiliates could have paid to the holding company without approval from bank regulators at
December 31, 2003 was $343.3 million.

Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share (“EPS”) is computed by dividing income available to common sharcholders by weighted average
common shares outstanding, which were 72,892,409 for 2003, 69,545,591 for 2002 and 70,573,594 for 2001. Diluted EPS is
computed using the same componerts as in basic EPS with the denominator adjusted for the dilutive effect of stock options
and restricted stock awards. The adjusted weighted average shares were 73,421,487 for 2003, 70,067,292 for 2002 and
71,199,340 for 2001. The following tables provide a reconciliation between the computation of basic EPS and diluted EPS
for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001:

Net Weighted Average
2003 (In thousands, except per share data) Income Common Shares EPS
Basic EPS oo $196,814 72,892 $2.70
Dilutive eftect of stock options and restricted stock awards .......... 529
Diluted EPS .o $196,814 73,421 $2.68
Net Weighted Average
2002 (In thousands, except per share data) Income Common Shares EPS
Basic EPS .o $190,238 69,546 $2.74
Dilutive effect of stock options and restricted stock awards .......... 521
Diluted EPS .. o $190,238 70,067 $2.72
Net ‘Weighted Average
2001 (In thousands, except per share data) Income Common Shares EPS
Basic EPS .o $181,295 70,574 $2.57
Dilutive effect of stock options and restricted stock awards .......... 625
Diluted EPS ... o $181,295 71,199 $2.55

Comprehensive Income

The two major components of comprehensive income are net income and other comprehensive income. Other comprehen-
sive income includes such items as net unrealized gains and losses on securities available-for-sale. The following table sum-
marizes the related tax effect of unrealized gains (losses) on securities available-for-sale for each of the three years in the
period ended December 31, 2003. The net amount is included in “Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss)” in
the “Statement of Changes in Consolidated Shareholders’ Equity” above.

2003 2002 2001
Tax Tax Tax
Pretax  (Expense) Net Pretax  (Expense) Net Pretax  (Expense) Net

(Dollars in thousands) Amount Benefit  Amount  Amount Benefit  Amount  Amount Benefit Amount
Unrealized gains (losses) on

securities available-for-sale:
Unrealized holding gains (losses)

arising during the period...... $(46,059) $ 16,996 $(29,063) $47,512 $(17,369) $30,143  $21,601 § (8,672) $12,929
Reclassification adjustment

for (gains) losses included

in net income................. (7,137) 2,823 (4,314) (846) 335 (511) (4,248) 1,680 (2,568)

Total.............. .. $(53,196) $ 19,819 8(33,377) $46,666 $(17,034) $29,632 $17,353  $ (6,992) $10,361




Capital Adequacy

Bankshares and its bank affiliates are subject to various regulatory capital requirements administered by the federal and state
banking agencies. Failure to meet minimum capital requirements can initiate certain mandatory —and possibly additional
discretionary — actions by regulators that, if undertaken, could have a direct material effect on Bankshares’ financial state-
ments. Under capital adequacy guidelines and the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action, Bankshares and its
bank affiliates must meet specific capital guidelines that involve quantitative measures of Bankshares® assets, hiabilities, and
certain off-balance sheet items as calculated under regulatory accounting practices. Bankshares’ capital amounts and classifi-
cation are also subject to qualitative judgments by the regulators about components, risk weightings and other factors.

Quantitative measures established by regulation to ensure capital adequacy require Bankshares and its bank affiliates to
maintain at least the minimum amounts and ratios (set forth in the table below) of Tier I capital (as defined in the regula-
tions) to risk-weighted assets (as defined). Management believes that, as of December 31, 2003, Bankshares and its bank
affiliates exceeded all capital adequacy requirements to which they are subject.

As of December 31, 2003, the most recent notification from the primary regulators for each of Bankshares’ affiliate
banking institutions categorized them as well-capitalized under the prompt corrective action regulations. To be categorized
as well-capitalized, a bank must maintain certain capital ratios above minimum levels, as set forth in the table below. These
capital ratios include Tier I capital and total risk-based capital as percents of net risk-weighted assets and Tier I capital as a
percent of adjusted average total assets (leverage ratio). There are no conditions or events since the last notifications that
management believes have changed the affiliate banks’ category.

Actual capital amounts and ratios are also presented in the table below for Bankshares and Mercantile-Safe Deposit and
Trust Company (“MSD&T”), the lead bank. No deduction from capital is required for interest rate risk.

Minimum Ratio to be

Minimum Ratio Well-Capitalized Under
for Capital Prompt Corrective
Adequacy Purposes Action Provisions
(Dollars in thousands) Bankshares MSD&T Bankshares MSD&T Bankshares MSD&T
As of December 31, 2003
Tier I capital............oooiet $1,248,492 $ 396,186
Total risk-based capital ......... 1,666,064 440,479
Net risk-weighted assets........ 10,020,487 3,529,223
Adjusted average total assets ... 13,011,399 4,353,713
Tier I capital ratio.............. 12.46% 11.23% 4.00% 4.00% 1) 6.00%
Total capital ratio .............. 16.63% 12.48% 8.00% 8.00% (1) 10.00%
Leverage ratio.................. 9.60% 9.10% 4.00% 4.00% (1) 5.00%
As of December 31, 2002
Tier I capital................... $1,151,831 $ 430,375
Total risk-based capital ......... 1,250,550 473,185
Net risk-weighted assets........ 7,677,476 3,407,691
Adjusted average total assets . ... 10,281,071 4,246,480
Tier | capital ratio.............. 15.00% 12.63% 4.00% 4.00% N 6.00%
Total capital ratio .............. 16.29% 13.89% 8.00% 8.00% (@D} 10.00%
Leverage ratio.................. 11.20% 10.13% 4.00% 4.00% M 5.00%

(1) Bankshares is not subject to this requirement.



11. INCOME TAXES

Applicable income taxes on net income for 2003, 2002 and 2001 consisted of the following:

2003 2002 2001
(Dollars in thousands) Federal State Total Federal State Total Federal State Total
Current tax expense ............ $108,555 $10,678 $119,233  § 950,308  $4,929 $ 95237 § 88,436 $1,884 § 90,320
Deferred tax expense (benefit) ... (8,142) (1,536) (9,678) 9,159 1,934 11,093 12,082 2,641 14,723
Total coooooiii $100,413 $ 9,142 $109,555 $ 99,467 $6,863 $106,330  $100,518  $4,525 $105,043

Significant components of Bankshares’ deferred tax assets and liabilities as of December 31, 2003 and 2002 were as follows:

(Dollars in thousands) 2003 2002
Deferred tax assets:
Allowance for 10an 10SSes . .. ... .t $ 59,183 $52,659
‘Write-down of other real estate owned ... ... ... . 114 112
Deferred INCOmE . .. ..o 45,446 38,468
Other . 1,187 -
Total deferred tax assBtS . .\ttt 105,930 91,239
Deferred tax liabilities:
Purchase accounting adjustments. .. ...t 12,868 1,108
Net unrealized gains on securities available-for-sale.................. .. .. ... .. ... ... 13,804 33,623
Depreciation . ... ... 69,643 70,200
Accrued employee benefits . ... ... 10,705 4,939
Prepaid T0emIS. . . o e 152 152
[ 145 <3 S P - 196
Total deferred tax liabilities ... ... . 107,172 110,218
Net deferred tax assets/(lHabilities) .. .. ... oo o $ (1,242)  $(18,979)

A valuation allowance has not been established against Bankshares’ deferred tax assets since management has determined that
it is more likely than not that all such tax assets will be realized in the future.

A reconciliation between actual tax expense and taxes computed at the statutory federal rate of 35% for each of the three
years in the period ended December 31, 2003 follows:

2003 2002 2001
% of % of % of
Pretax Pretax Pretax
(Dollars in thousands) Amount  Income Amount  Income Amount Income
Tax computed at statutory rate ............. $107,229 35.0% $103,799 35.0% $100,218 35.0%
Increases (decreases) in tax resulting from:
Tax advantaged income ................. (3,581) (1.2) (3,243) (1.1) (3,345) (1.2)
State income taxes, net of federal
income tax benefit ................... 5,942 1.9 4,461 1.5 2,941 1.0
Nondeductible goodwill amortization . .. - - - - 3,044 1.1
Other,net ..ot (35) - 1,313 ) 2,185 .3
Actual tax expense ..............oo.... $109,555 35.7% $106,330 35.9% $105,043 36.7%

12, RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In the normal course of banking business, loans are made to officers and directors of Bankshares and its affiliates, as well as to
their related interests. In the opinion of management, these loans are consistent with sound banking practices, are within reg-
ulatory lending limitations and do not involve more than the normal risk of collectibility. At December 31, 2003 and 2002,
loans to executive officers and directors of Bankshares and its principal affiliates, including loans to their related interests,
totaled $98.4 million and $64.3 million, respectively. During 2003, loan additions and loan deletions were $148.7 million and
$114.6 million, respectively.
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13. PENSION AND OTHER POSTRETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS

Bankshares sponsors qualified and nonqualified pension plans and other postretirernent benefit plans for its employees. With regard
to the pension plans, there is no additional minimum pension liability required to be recognized. Included in the other postretire-
ment benefit plans are health care and life insurance. All Bankshares affiliates have adopted the same health care and life insurance
plans, except for one affiliate, which has separate benefit plans. Employees were eligible for company-paid health care benefits if
their age plus length of service was equal to at least 65 as of December 31, 1990. Employees may become eligible for company-
paid life insurance benefits if they qualify for retirement while working for Bankshares.
The following table provides a reconciliation of the changes in the plans’ benefit obligations and fair value of assets for each of
the two vyears in the period ended December 31, 2003:

Pension Benefits

2003 2002 Other Benefits

Non- Non-
(Dollars in thousands) Qualified qualified Total  Qualified qualified Total 2003 2002
CHANGE IN BENEFIT OBLIGATION
Benefit obligation at beginmning of year....... $155,160 $ 5,986 $161,146  $144,043 $ 4,217 $148,260 $ 13,044 $ 11,482
Service cost.....oviiiii 4,563 404 4,967 4,058 390 4,448 205 182
INTETEST COST. oo v vt e et 9,993 314 10,307 9,731 332 10,063 854 939
Amendments. ... o - - - - - - - -
Actuarial (gain) loss ..............o L 8,244 39 8,283 5,213 1,074 6,287 2,010 1,805
ACQUISIEION ...t - - - - - - - -
Benefits paid ... (9,856) (183)  (10,039) (7,885) (27) (7,912) (1,063) (1,364)
Benefit obligation at end of year............. 168,104 6,560 174,664 155,160 5,986 161,146 15,050 13,044
CHANGE IN PLAN ASSETS
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year .. 153,935 - 153,935 155,285 - 155,285 - -
Actual return on plan assets.................. 33,431 - 33,431 (13,589) - (13,589) - -
Acquisition ............ oo - - - - - - - -
Emplovyer contribution ............. ... ... 19,750 183 19,933 20,124 27 20,151 1,063 1,364
Plan participants’ contributions .............. - - - - - - 1,476 1,126
Benefits paid ..o (9,856) (183)  (10,039) (7,885) (27) (7,912) (2,539) (2,490)
Fair value of plan assets at end of year........ 197,260 - 197,260 153,935 - 153,935 - -
Funded status ... oo 29,156  (6,560) 22,596 (1,225)  (5,986) (7,211) (15,050)  (13,044)
Unrecognized net actuarial (gain) loss......... 27,083 2,016 29,099 42,296 2,009 44,3035 4,963 3,106
Unrecognized prior service cost ............. 5,655 189 5,844 6,434 212 6,646 - —
Unrecognized transition (asset)/obligation. . .. - 94 94 - 193 193 - -
Prepaid (accrued) benefit cost................ $ 61,894 $(4,261) S 57,633 $§ 47,505 §(3,572) § 43,933 §(10,087) $ (9,938)
Amounts recognized in the consolidated balance sheets consist of:

Pension Benefits

2003 2002 Other Benefits

Non- Non-
(Dollars in thousands) Qualified qualified Total  Qualified qualified Total 2003 2002
Prepaid benefit cost ................... ... $ 61,894 § - § 61,894 $ 47505 § - $ 47.505 $ - % -
Accrued benefit cost ... - (4,261) (4,261) - (3,572) (3.372) (10,087) (9,938)
Intangible assets ............. ... oL - - - - - - - -
Accumulated other comprehensive income. .. - - - - - - - -
Net amount recognized ..................... $ 61,894 $(4,261) $ 57,633 $ 47,505 $(3,572) 8 43,933  $(10,087) $ (9,938)




The following is a comparison of the projected and accumulated benefit obligation to the fair value of assets for the pension plans:

Pension Benefits at December 31,

2003 2002

Non- Non-
(Dollars in thousands) Qualified qualified Total Qualified qualified Total
Projected benefit obligation . ........... . oo $168,104 $6,560 $174,664 $155,160 85,986 $161,146
Accumulated benefit obligation ......... ... 160,926 5,968 166,894 147,402 5,459 152,861
Fair value of assets ... . oo 197,260 - 197,260 153,935 - 153,935

The components of net periodic benefit cost for the pension plans for 2003, 2002 and 2001 follow:

Pension Benefits

2003 2002 2001

Non- Non- Non-
(Dollars in thousands) Qualified qualified Total  Qualified qualified Total  Qualified qualified Total
Service cost.....oviiiiiiii $ 4,563 $404  $ 4,967 § 4,058 $39 § 4,448 $ 3,650 $223 $ 3,873
TNCerest COSt. . .oovvvreeeinnennnn.. 9,993 314 10,307 9,731 332 10,063 9,236 243 9,479
Expected return on plan assets.......... (12,395) - (12,395) (12,138) - (12,158) (11,582) - (11,582)
Amortization of prior service cost ... ... 779 23 802 996 23 1,019 819 15 834
Recognized net actuarial (gain) loss. ... 2,421 32 2,453 - 94 94 - 36 36
Amortization of transition asset.......... - 99 99 - 99 99 (692) 99 (593)
Net periodic benefit cost............... $ 5,361 $872 § 6,233 § 2,627 $938 § 3,565 $ 1,431 8616  $ 2,047

The components of net periodic benefit cost for the other postretirement benefit plans for 2003, 2002 and 2001 follow:

Other Benefits
(Dollars in thousands) 2003 2002 2001
SEIVICE COSE « v vttt ettt e et e e et e e e et e e e $ 205 § 182 $ 171
IIETESE COSE L.ttt ettt e e e 854 939 872
Expected return on plan assets ... ... - - -
AMmOrtization of Prior SEIVICE COSE ... v vttt et e et e - - -
Recognized net actuarial (2ain) 10ss. .. ... e 153 324 16
AmOortization of tranSitioN ASSEE . ...ttt ettt et e e e e - - -
Net periodic Beneflt COSt ... .. e e e $1,212 §1,4435 $1,059

There was no increase in the minimum lability included in other comprehensive income relating to pension benefits and other
postretirement benefits for 2003 and 2002.

The weighted average assumptions used to determine the benefit obligation are shown in the following table:

Pension Benefits Other Benefits
As of December 31, 2003 2002 2003 2002
DT 0o LA X o - O P 6.25% 6.50% 6.25% 6.50%
Rate of COMPENsation INCTASE. .. ... .\ttt ettt 4.00% 4.00% 4.00% 4.00%

The weighted average assumptions used to determine the net periodic benefit cost are shown in the following table:

Pension Benefits Other Benefits
As of December 31, 2003 2002 2003 2002
DISCOUNE TALE. . ittt et et e et e et e e e 6.50% 7.00% 6.50% 7.00%
Expected long-term return on plan assets . ... 8.00% 8.00% N/A N/A
Rate of compensation IMCIease. .. ...ttt e 4.00% 4.50% 4.00% 4.50%

In determining pension expense for the qualified pension plan, a long-term return on assets of 8% was assumed. This return consists
of an average return of 10% on equity securities and 5% on debt securities.
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Assumed health care cost trend rates are shown in the following table:

As of December 31, 2003 2002
Health care cost trend rate assumed for next year..................... 10.0% 4.5%
Rate to which the cost trend rate is assumed to decline

(the ultimate trend rate)........ . ..o i 5.0% 4.5%
Year that the rate reaches the ultimate trendrate ..................... 2009 2003

For measurement purposes, a 10% annual rate of increase in the per capita cost of covered health care benefits was assumed
for 2004 and assumed to decrease by 1% per annum undl the annual rate reaches 5% and to remain level thereafter. This rate
represents Bankshares’ portion of the annual rate of increase. Assumed health care cost trend rates have a significant effect on
the amounts reported for the health care plans. A 1% change in assumed health care cost trend rates would have the following
effects:

1% Increase 1% Decrease
Effect on total of service and interest cost COMpPONENts ............... $ 65 $ (58)
Effect on postretirement benefit obligation........................ 921 (825)

Pension Plan Assets
Bankshares’ qualified pension plan weighted average asset allocations by category are as follows:
Plan Assets at December 31

Asset category 2003 2002
EQUItY SECUTITIES . ..ottt e 68% 49%
Debt securities . .. ..ot 30 50
Cash . o 2 1
Total. 100% 100%

The return objectives for the qualified pension plan are: (1) provide a growing and predictable income stream from year to
year; (2) achieve an annual return at least equal to the 8% actuarial assumption rate; (3) preserve the capital value of the pen-
sion plan; and (4) achieve growth of capital with comparable pension funds.

Asset allocation targets are between 30% to 50% in debt securities and 50% to 70% in equity securities. At December 31,
2003, assets of the qualified pension plan consisted of 68% equity securities, 30% debt securities and 2% cash.

One final objective of the qualified pension plan is to maintain the fair value of plan assets greater than the plan benefit
obligations. At December 31, 2003, the fair value of plan assets was 117% of benefit obligations.

The qualified pension plan has no investments in Bankshares common stock as of December 31, 2003 and 2002.

Cash Flows
Generally, Bankshares has made cash contributions to the pension plan in amounts equal to the maximum permitted by
Employee Retirement Income Securities Act guidelines. Under those guidelines, Bankshares could contribute up to approxi-
mately $20 million to the pension plan during 2004. The following benefit payments, which retlect expected future service, as
appropriate, are to be paid:

Pension Benefits

Non- Other

Qualified  qualified Total Benefits

200 e $ 8,634 $ 205 § 8,839 $1,169
200 e e 8,937 215 9,152 1,131
2006 . 9,422 225 9,647 1,109
2007 9,954 235 10,189 1,096
2008 e 10,663 245 10,908 1,106
Years 2009-2014 L. oo 64,074 1,350 65,424 4,830
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14. STOCK PLANS

Omnibus Stock Plan (1989)

The Omnibus Stock Plan adopted in 1989 permitted the grant of stock options and other stock incentives to key employees
of Bankshares and its affiliates. The 1989 Plan provided for the issuance of up to 2,902,500 shares of Bankshares authorized
but unissued common stock. Options outstanding were granted at market value and include both stock options which
become exercisable cumulatively at the rate of 25% a year and those which are exercisable immediately on grant. If certain
levels of earnings per share of Bankshares and net income of affiliates are not achieved, all or a portion of those options
which become exercisable at the rate of 25% a year are forfeited and become available for future grants. All options will ter-
minate 10 years from date of grant if not exercised. No further grants will be made under the 1989 Plan.

1999 Owmnibus Stock Plan

The 1999 Omnibus Stock Plan permits the grant of stock options and other stock incentives, including restricted stock
awards, to key employees of Bankshares and its affiliates. The 1999 Plan provides for the issuance of up to 3,000,000 shares of
Bankshares authorized but unissued common stock. Options outstanding were granted at market value and include both
performance-based and nonperformance-based options. Options become exercisable ratably over three or four years. If cer-
tain levels of earnings per share of Bankshares and net income of affiliates are not achieved, all or a portion of the perfor-
mance-based options are forfeited and become available for future grants. All options will terminate 10 years from date of
grant if not exercised. Restricted stock awards outstanding were granted at market value and vest ratably over three years or
in total at the end of a specified three-year period.

The table below summarizes activity under the Omnibus Stock Plan and the 1999 Omnibus Stock Plan during the three
years ended December 31, 2003:

As of December 31,

Options issued Weighted average Options  Weighted average

and outstanding exercise price exercisable exercise price
Balance, December 31,2000 .................. 1,836,584 $20.904
Granted ... ... 131,500 39.546
Terminated/forfeited................... ... (220,934) 27.350
Exercised .............. (143,935) 17.311

Balance, December 31,2001 .................. 1,603,215 21.568 905,000 $17.575
Granted ... ... . 160,250 44,996
Terminated/forfeited.......................... (221,407) 25.360
Exercised ... (238,969) 17.587

Balance, December 31,2002 .................. 1,303,089 24.903 729,522 18.767
Granted ... 421,350 35.653

Options (at fair value) related to option

plan of acquired bank ........... .. .. ... 322,528 20.929
Terminated/forfeited.......................... (202,811) 28.269
Exercised ... ... (332,725) 19.387

Balance, December 31,2003 .................. 1,511,431 27.814 899,039 21.983

The following table provides selected information on stock options outstanding and exercisable at December 31, 2003:

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable
Weighted average

remaining Weighted Weighted
Number contractual average Number average
Exercise Prices outstanding life (years) exercise price exercisable exercise price
$10.500 - $18.630 375,080 1.82 $14.920 375,080 $14.920
$19.550 - $25.740 520,788 6.37 24.540 451,325 24.416
$34.610 - $39.250 416,125 8.97 35.476 15,400 37.789
$42.650 - $45.170 199,438 8.44 44.628 57,234 44.839



The weighted average fair value of options granted during 2003, 2002 and 2001 was $6.82, $11.10 and $8.35, respectively.
Compensation expense associated with the options granted and expected to vest for 2003, 2002 and 2001 were $2.0 million,
$1.2 million and $432 thousand, respectively.

The weighted average fair value of options granted is estimated as of the grant date using the Black-Scholes option pric-
ing model. The following weighted average assumptions were used as inputs to the Black-Scholes model for grants in 2003,
2002 and 2001, respectively:

* Dividend yield of 3.37%, 2.49% and 2.71% » Risk-free interest rate of 3.28%, 4.55% and 4.88%
* Volatility of 26.20%, 26.41% and 26.72% + Expected term of 5.4, 5.4 and 3.8 years

The number of restricted stock awards granted in 2003 and 2002 was 101,932 and 76,250, respectively. There were no
restricted stock awards granted during 2001. Total compensation expense associated with the restricted stock awards for
2003, 2002 and 2001 was $3.0 million, $872 thousand and $0, respectively. Compensation expense is recognized on a
straight-line basis over a three-year vesting period. Due to the separation of personnel from I'WM, restricted stock expense
of $0.8 million was accelerated into the year 2003 that otherwise would have been recognized over future periods.

Compensation costs for stock options and restricted stock awards are included in salary expense. Another form of stock-
based compensation is phantom stock, which is used for Bankshares’ directors’ deferred compensation plan. The compensa-
tion cost for the phantom stock, which fluctuates with changes in Bankshares’ stock price, is included in other expenses.
Stock-based compensation amounts for 2003, 2002 and 2001 are summarized in the following table:

(Dollars in thousands) 2003 2002 2001
Stock OpHIONS EXPenSe. ..o\ttt $2,045 $1,189 § 482
Restricted stock awards eXpense ... ... 2,986 872 =
Subtotal included in salaries expense..........oo i 5,031 2,061 482
Phantom stock eXpense .. ....o. i 1,581 (371) _(601)
Total stock-based compensation eXpense ............ourveer e, $6,612 $1,690 £(119)

|




15. SEGMENT REPORTING

Operating segments are defined as components of an enterprise about which separate financial information is available that
management relies on for decision making and performance assessment. Bankshares has three reportable segments: its 19
Community Banks, MSD&T Banking and IWM. The Community Banks operate in smaller geographic areas than MSD&T,
which operates in a large metropolitan area. The accounting policies of the segments are the same as those described in
Footnote No. 1 of the financial statements. However, the segment data reflect intersegment transactions and balances.

The following tables present selected segment information for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001. The
components in the “Other” column consist of amounts for the nonbank affiliates and intercompany eliminations. Certain
expense amounts such as operations overhead have been reclassified from internal financial reporting in order to provide for
tull cost absorption. These reclassifications are shown in the “Adjustments” line. Goodwill amortization charges for the
Community Banks were §0 for 2003 and 2002, respectively, and $7.9 million for 2001. Goodwill amortization charges for
MSD&T Banking were $0 for 2003 and 2002, respectively, and $1.2 million for 2001. F&M is included in the column
“Community Banks,” whereas Boyd Watterson Asset Management LLC and Peremiel & Company, Inc. are included in the

column “IWM.”

Banking
2003 (Dollars in thousands) WM MSD&T Community Other Total
Net INterest INCOME ..\ vrvt it iee s, $ - $ 141,842 $ 336,286 $ 1,202 § 479,330
Provision for loanlosses .......................... - (13,249) 1,144 - (12,105)
NoONINterest iNCOME .. oo vttt 78,608 42,073 70,536 (14,626) 176,591
Noninterest eXpenses ..........ooeovueirneuanan... (66,633) (94,799) (185,898) 9,883 (337,447)
Adjustments. ... ..o (3,483) 19,421 (9,480) (6,458) -
Income (loss) before income taxes ................ 8,492 95,288 212,588 (9,999) 306,369
{ncome tax (expense) benefic ..................... (3,397) (34,274) (73,469) 1,585 (109,555)
Netincome (Joss) ..ot $ 5,095 $ 61,014 $ 139,119 3 (8,414) § 196,814
Average assels ... - $4,391,805 $ 7,667,609 $ (87,833) $11,971,581
Average eqUITY ..., .. oi it - 450,897 858,580 187,668 1,497,145

Banking
2002 (Dollars in thousands) WM MSD&T Community Other Total
Net Interest INCOMIE . ..o vt $ - § 146,249 $ 297,882 $ 2,327y & 441,804
Provision for loan losses .......................... - (11,735) (4,643) - (16,378)
NORINErEst INCOME oo ottt e 67,965 40,174 49 950 (14,339) 143,750
NORNINErest eXPENSES ..ot eie e, (45,617) (89,927) (151,346) 14,282 (272,608)
Adjustments. ... (2,219) 15,491 (8,419) (4,853) -
Income (loss) before income taxes ................ 20,129 100,252 183,424 (7,237) 296,568
Income tax (expense) benefit ................. ... (8,052) (36,160) (63,782) 1,664 (106,330)
Net income (loss) ... $ 12,077 $ 64,092 § 119,642 $ (5573) % 190,238
AVETage aSSELS ... - $ 4,138,932 $ 6,252,720 § (268,195) § 10,123,457
Average eqUItY ... ..l - 435,308 786,474 36,185 1,257,967

Banking
2001 (Dollars in thousands) WM MSD&T Community Other Total
Net Interest INCOIME ..ottt iieee e $ - § 140,764 $ 278,421 8 944) % 418,241
Provision for loan losses .......................... - (7,238) (6,196) - (13,434)
Noninterest MCOME ..., ..t 69,046 40,314 46,343 (10,213) 145,490
Noninterest eXpenses . .......oeeiieeiineaennee.. {40,469) (86,150) (145,436) 8,096 (263,959)
Adjustmients. ... (1,363) 11,634 (17,968) 7,697 —
Income (loss) before income taxes ................ 27,214 99,324 155,164 4,636 286,338
Income tax (expense) benefic ..................... (10,886) (36,061) (56,678) (1,418) (105,043)
Netincome (1088) .. ..o $ 16,328 § 63,263 % 98,486 $ 3,218 $ 181,295
AVErage asSetS ... ii i - $ 3,746,151 $ 5,657,733 $ (176,682) § 9,227,202
AVErage equIty . ...t - 410,425 674,869 111,764 1,197,058
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16. QUARTERLY RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (UNAUDITED)

The following is a summary of the unaudited quarterly results of operations:

Three months ended

2003 (Dollars in thousands, except per share data) Dec. 31 Sept. 30 June 30 March 31
NeEt INLETESE TNCOITIE .« . v vt ettt et ettt e e e $133,249 $122,232 $112,723 $111,126
Provision for 1oan 10sses .. ... 3,033 3,005 3,051 3,016
NECINCOME oottt e 50,645 47,173 50,010 48,986
Per share of common stock:
Basic ... o .64 .64 73 71
Diluted. ..o .63 .63 .72 71
Three months ended
2002 (Dollars in thousands, except per share data) Dec. 31 Sept. 30 June 30 March 31
Net INterest INCOME . ..o vttt ettt e $112,277 $111,914 $110.425 $107,188
Provision for loan losses ... 4,935 3,244 5,116 3,083
Net INCOMIE . o e s 48,503 48,615 46,945 46,175
Per share of common stock:
Basic. ... s .70 .70 .67 .66
Diluted. .. ... .70 .69 .67 .66
17. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
The estimated fair values of Bankshares’ financial instruments at December 31, 2003 and 2002 were as follows:
2003 2002
Book Fair Book Fair
(Dollars in thousands) Value Value Value Value
ASSETS
Cash and short-term investments. . ........................ $ 362,701 $ 362,701 § 545,781 § 545,781
INVEStMENT SECUTITIES ...\ vvre ettt ittt iee e iinennns 3,172,931 3,174,833 2,564,583 2,567,434
Loans held-for-sale ......... .o o 14,925 14,925 - -
L OanS et 9,272,160 9,272,709 7,312,027 7,377,495
Less: allowance forloan losses ..........oo it (155,337) (138,601)
Loans, net . ..o 9,116,823 7,173,426
Interest rate swaps ... 6,594 6,594 11,424 11,424
Total financial assets. ... ... . ... . . $12,673,974 $12,831,762  $10,295,214  $10,502,134
LIABILITIES
DeposIts .. $10,262,553 $10,269,135  $ 8,260,940 § 8,284,730
Short-term borrowings .........coooiiviiiii i 809,021 809,021 823,385 823,385
Long-termdebt...... ... ... . 647,722 641,110 287,214 301,451
Interest rate SWaps ... ...ttt 7,960 7,960 - -
Total financial liabilities ............. .. ... ... ..... $11,727,256 $11,727,226 $ 9,371,539 § 9,409,566

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair value disclosures for financial instruments as of

December 31, 2003 and 2002:

Cash and Short-Term Investments

The amounts reported in the balance sheet approximate the fair values of these assets. Short-term investments include

interest-bearing deposits in other banks and federal funds sold.

Investment Securities
Fair values of investment securities are based on quoted market prices.



Loans Held-for-Sale
Loans held-for-sale are at book value, which approximates fair value.

Loans

The fair value of loans is estimated using discounted cash flow analyses based on contractual repayment schedules and dis-
count rates which are believed to reflect current credit quality and other related factors. These factors provide for the effect
of interest over time, as well as losses expected over the life of the loan portfolio and recovery of other operating expenses.

Deposits

The fair value of demand deposits, savings accounts and money market deposits is the amount payable on demand at the
reporting date. The fair value of fixed-maturity certificates of deposit is estimated using a discounted cash flow calculation
that applies interest rates and remaining maturities for currently offered certificates of deposit.

Short-Term Borrowings
The amounts reported in the balance sheet approximate the fair values because of the short duration of those instruments.

Long-Term Debt

The fair value of the long-term debt associated with the interest rate swaps is based on quoted market prices. For all other
long-term debt, fair value is estimated by discounting the future cash flows using estimates of rates currently available to
Bankshares and its affiliates for debt with similar terms and remaining maturities.

Interest Rate Swaps
The fair value of existing agreements is based on quoted market prices.

Limitations

The valuation techniques employed above involve uncertainties and are affected by assumptions used and by judgments
regarding prepayments, credit risk, future loss experience, discount rates, cash flows and other factors. Therefore, derived fair
values cannot be substantiated by comparison to independent markets or to other financial institutions. The reported fair
values do not necessarily represent what Bankshares would realize in immediate sales or other dispositions. Changes in
assumptions could significantly affect the reported fair values.

18. DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS AND HEDGING ACTIVITIES

Bankshares maintains an overall interest rate risk management strategy that incorporates the use of derivative instruments to
minimize significant unplanned fluctuations in earnings that are caused by interest rate volatility. Derivative instruments
that are used as part of the interest rate risk management strategy have been restricted to interest rate swaps. Interest rate
swaps generally involve the exchange of fixed-rate and variable-rate interest payments between two parties, based on a
commen notional principal amount and maturity date. Bankshares has entered into interest rate swaps to convert fixed-rate
loans made to borrowers to floating-rate loans and convert its nonprepayable fixed-rate debt to floating-rate debt.

The fair value of derivative instruments recorded in other assets was $6.6 million (notional $203.1 million) and $11.4
million (notional $203.2 million) at December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively. The fair value of derivative instruments
recorded in other labilities was $8.0 million (notional $150.0 million) and $0 at December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively.
For 2003, Bankshares recognized a net gain of $70 thousand which represented the ineffective portion of the fair-value
hedge of fixed-rate loans made to borrowers. For 2002, Bankshares recognized a net loss of $40 thousand. The impact of
the hedge decreased interest income $167 thousand and $151 thousand in 2003 and 2002, respectively. The fair-value
hedges of nonprepayable fixed-rate debt were effective, and the impact of the hedges decreased interest expense $8.5 million
and $5.9 million in 2003 and 2002, respectively.

The following summarizes the gross position of derivatives at December 31, 2003 and 2002:

Weighted Average
Number Notional Years to Fixed Variable Fair

December 31, 2003 (Dollars in thousands)  of Contracts Amount Maturity Rate Rate Value
Gross Position Summary:
Pay fixed/receive variable interest

rate swaps (T)..... ..., 1 $ 3,108 0.33  9.38% 4.00% $ (64
Receive fixed/pay variable interest

rate swaps (2).. ..o 3 350,000 8.44 521% 1.98% (1,366)
Gross off balance sheet position......... 4 $353,108 8.37 $(1,430)



Weighted Average

Number Notional Years to Fixed Variable Fair
December 31, 2002 (Dollars in thousands) of Contracts Amount Maturity Rate Rate Value

Gross Position Summary:
Pay fixed/receive variable interest

rate swaps (7). ... il 1 $ 3,174 1.33  9.38% 4.25% $ (249)
Receive fixed/pay variable interest

rate swaps (2). ... i 200,000 8.88 5.70% 2.28% 11,673

Gross off balance sheet position......... $203,174 8.76 $11,424

(.

(1) Hedges fixed-rate commercial loan.
(2) Hedges fixed-rate long-term debt,

19. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

The following table discloses the gross carrying amount and accumulated amortization of intangible assets subject to
amortization at December 31, 2003 and December 31, 2002:

December 31, 2003 December 31, 2002
Gross Gross
Carrying  Accumulated Net Carrying  Accumulated Net
(Dollars in thousands) Amount  Amortization  Amount Amount  Amortization Amount
Deposit intangibles ..................... $49.881 $  (9,546) $40,335 $13,846 & (6,581) $ 7,265
Mortgage servicing rights............... 2,351 (1,790) 561 1,543 (1,282) 261
Customer lists and other................ 17,010 (1,683) 15,327 50 (46) 4
Total ... $69,242 § (13,019) $56,223 $15,439 % (7,909) $ 7,530

The projections of amortization expense shown for mortgage servicing rights are based on asset balances and the interest
rate environment as of December 31, 2003. Future amortization expense may be significantly different depending on
changes in the mortgage servicing portfolio, mortgage interest rates and market conditions.

Identifiable intangible assets are amortized based on useful lives of up to 15 years. Bankshares recorded an estimated
$36.0 million of core deposit intangibles in connection with the F&M acquisition. Management reviews identifiable intan-
gible assets for impairment yearly (except mortgage servicing rights, which are reviewed monthly), or whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. For those intangible assets subject to
amortization, impairment is indicated 1f the sum of undiscounted estimated future net cash flow is less than the carrying
amount of the asset. Impairment is recognized by accelerating the write-off of the asset to the extent that the carrying
value exceeds the estimated fair value.

The following table shows the current period and estimated future amortization expense for amortized intangible assets:

Mortgage Customer Lists

Deposit Servicing and Other

(Dollars in thousands) Intangibles Intangibles Intangibles Total
Year ended December 31,2003, ... ... ... ... .. $3,012 $286 $1,645 $4,943
Estimate for year ended December 31,

2004, 5,467 410 2,326 8,203
2005, 5,467 151 2,326 7,944
2006, 5,467 - 2,083 7,550
2007 5,321 - 1,890 7,211
2008, 4,605 - 1,708 6,313



The following table discloses the gross carrying amount and accumulated amortization of goodwill at December 31, 2003
and December 31, 2002 by segment:

December 31, 2003 December 31, 2002
Gross Gross

Carrying  Accumulated Net Carrying  Accumulated Net

(Dollars in thousands) Amount  Amortization Amount Amount  Amortization Amount

IWM $ 18,061 § - § 18,061 $ - § - $ -
Banking:

MSD&T .. 19,445 (5,595) 13,850 19,445 (5,595) 13,850

Community ..........oovoviiniian.. 524,448 (34,186) 490,262 123,041 (34,1806) 88,855

Total ... $561,954 $§ (39,781) $522,173 $142,486 § (39,781) $102,705

20. ACCOUNTING CHANGES

In June 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standard (SFAS) No. 141,
“Business Combinations,” and SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets.” SFAS No. 141 requires that the
purchase method of accounting be used for all business combinations initiated after June 30, 2001. Additionally, it further
clarifies the criteria for the initial recognition and measurement of intangible assets separate from goodwill. SFAS No. 142
15 effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2001 and prescribes the accounting for goodwill and intangible
assets subsequent to initial recognition. The provisions of SFAS No. 142 discontinue the amortization of goodwill and
intangible assets with indefinite lives. Instead, these assets will be subject to at least an annual impairment review, and more
frequently if certain impairment indicators are in evidence. SFAS No. 142 also requires that reporting units be identified
for the purpose of assessing potential future impairments of goodwill.

Bankshares adopted SFAS No. 142 on January 1, 2002. In preparing for its adoption of SFAS No. 142, Bankshares
determined its reporting units and the amounts of goodwill and intangible assets to be allocated to those reporting units.
Bankshares determined that any reclassifications between goodwill and intangible assets or any changes in the useful lives of
intangible assets were unnecessary. Application of the nonamortization provisions of the statement resulted in additional net
income of 8.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2002.

SFAS No. 142 requires that goodwill be tested annually for impairment using a two-step process. The first step is to
identify potential impatrment, and the second step is to measure the amount of the impairment loss, if any. No impairment
charges for goodwill impacted either the 2003 or 2002 financial statements.

The following table presents a reconciliation of reported net income and earnings per share to amounts adjusted to
exclude goodwill amortization, net of tax, for 2003, 2002 and 2001.

(Dollars in thousands, except per share data) 2003 2002 2001
NET INCOME

Reported ..o $196,814 $190,238 $181,295
Add: goodwill amortization ... ... .vu e - - 8,924
Adjusted ..o $196,814 $190,238 $190,219
BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE

Reported ..o $ 270 $2.74 $2.57
Add: goodwill amortization ... ...t - - A3
Adjusted ..o $ 2.70 $2.74 $2.70

DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE

Reeported ... o $ 2.68 $2.72 $2.55
Add: goodwill amortization ... ... - - A2
Adjusted ..o $ 2.68 $2.72 $2.67




21. MERCANTILE BANKSHARES CORPORATION (PARENT CORPORATION ONLY) FINANCIAL INFORMATION

BALANCE SHEET
DECEMBER 31,
(Dollars in thousands, except per share data) 2003 2002
ASSETS
Cash Lo 13,597 § 3,950
Interest-bearing deposits with bank affiliates ......... ... .. i 56,000 37,000
Securities purchased under resale agreements with bank affiliates ................. ... ... 60,880 128,769
Cash and cash equivalents . ... ... o 136,477 169,719
Investment in bank affiliates . . ... 1,369,101 1,315,369
Investment in bank-related affiliates. . ... ... . 22,341 20,198
Loans and advances to affiliates . . ..ot e 359,520 58,320
Investment securities available-for-sale ........ ... . ... i 19,610 6,017
GoOodWIlL, met. ..o 400,307 -
O ASSBES. vttt ettt et e e e 101,925 89,183
JOtal. . oot $2,403,281 $1,658,806
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Liabilities:
Commercial Paper ... ... $ 196,880 § 258,768
Accounts payable and other liabilities . .............. o 29,636 17,280
Long-term debt. ... ... o 341,324 58,400
Total Habilities ..ot e 561,840 334,448
Shareholders’ Equity:
Preferred stock, no par value; authorized 2,000,000 shares;
1ssued and outstanding—None
Common stock, $2 par value; authorized 130,000,000 shares;
issued 79,772,705 shares in 2003 and 68,836,092 shares in 2002 ...............coo.... 159,545 137,672
Capital sUrplUS. . ..o e 548,664 120,577
Retained earnings. ........o it 1,110,748 1,010,248
Accumulated other comprehensive income (10ss)......... ... . i 22,484 55,861
Total shareholders’ equity. ... ... 1,841,441 1,324,358
8] Y A A P $2,403,281 $1,658,806
STATEMENT OF INCOME
(Dollars in thousands)
For the Years Ended December 31, 2003 2002 2001
INCOME
Dividends from bank affiliates. . . ... ... $309,980 $134,838 $125,981
Dividends from bank-related affiliates ............. ... ... ... ... ... ... 863 905 952
Interest on interest-bearing deposits with bank affiliates...................... 1,460 819 2,855
Interest on securities purchased under resale agreements with bank affiliates . .. 526 1,224 2,787
Interest on loans to affiliates ... ... 5,920 2,383 5,598
Other INCOMIE . . .ottt e e e e 6,215 198 3,268
Total INCOME ... ..o 324,964 140,367 141,441
EXPENSES
Interest on short-term BOITOWINGS ... ...\ iiuvit it 1,099 2,732 7,635
Interest on long-term debt. . ... . 12,128 4,243 4.819
AMOTtIZation EXPEMSE ...ttt et e tet et e e - - 6,793
Other EXPeIISES. ... ettt ettt et e 6,042 2,269 982
Total eXpenses .. ..ot 19,269 9,244 20,229
Income before income tax benefit and equity in
undistributed net income of affiliates . ......... . 305,695 131,123 121,212
Income tax (benefit). ... ..ot (1,959) (310) 2,272
307,654 131,433 118,940
Equity in undistributed net income of:
Bank affiliates .. ... (110,984) 58,269 61,589
Bank-related affiliates .. ... 144 536 766
NETINCOME . . ... e e e e $196,814 $ 190,238 $181,295




21. MERCANTILE BANKSHARES CORPORATION (PARENT CORPORATION ONLY) FINANCIAL INFORMATION (cont.)

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (Dollars in thousands)
For the Years Ended December 31, 2003 2002 2001
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
A A Yo+ = O PR $196,814 $190,238 $181,295

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided
by operating activities:

Equity in undistributed net income of affiliates ........................ 110,840 (58,805) (62,355)
AMOTTIZAtION EXPENSE. ..ttt vttt ettt et et - - 6,793
[nvestment SeCUrities aINS .. ...ovuet vttt (380) - (3,138)

Net (increase) decrease in Other assets . .......ovviueenin i inaen... (6,390) (83,772) 799

Net increase (decrease) in liabilities:

Interest payable .. ... ... 3,377 - -
ACCTUEd EXPEISES. ..ottt 2,424 (582) (2,377)
Taxes payable ... oo (1,615) (15,065) 21,757

Net cash provided by operating activities .................ccoovu..n. 305,070 32,014 142,774

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Net (increase) decrease in loans to affiliates...............ci it (299,115) 74,445 (180)
Proceeds from sales of investment securities available-for-sale ................ 2,380 500 3,138
Purchases of investment securities available-for-sale .......................... (14,995) (1,000) -
Investment in affiliates .. ... .. o (171,609) - (150)
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities................... (483,339) 73,945 2,808
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Net increase (decrease) in commercial paper.............coviiiiiiiiiain.. (67,888) 14,017 46,806
Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt............. ... oo 300,000 - -
Repayment of long-term debt ... o (8,400) (8,300) (8,300)
Proceeds from issuance of shares .......... o oo 11,369 3,784 7,396
Repurchase of common shares. ... o i (212) (53,953) (65,572)
Dividends paid . ... o (95,842) (81,909) (77.597)
Net cash used in financing activities ..............cooiiiiinn. ... 139,027 (121,361) (97,267)

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents ........... ... .. ... ... (39,242) (15,402) 48,315
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year ............... ... ... ..., 169,719 185,121 136,806
Cash and cash equivalents atend of year ...... ... ...l $130,477 $169,719 $185,121

22. NON-GAAP RECONCILIATION (Unaudited)

For the twelve months ended For the quarter ended
December 31, December 31,
(Dollars in thousands, except per share data) 2003 2002 2003 2002

(1) The net interest margin and efficiency ratios are presented on a fully tax-equivalent (FTE) and annualized basis. The
FTE basis adjusts for the tax-favored status of income from certain loans and investments. Management believes this measure
to be the preferred industry measurement of net interest income and provides a relevant comparison between taxable and
nontaxable investments.

Net interest income (GAAP basis) ..o, $479,330 $ 441,804 $133,249 $112,277
Tax-equivalent adjustment. ................ oo, 6,760 6,193 1,881 1,586
Net interest income - tax equivalent ......................... $486,090 $ 447,997 $135,130 $113,863

o P



(Dollars in thousands, except per share data)

For the twelve months ended

December 31,

For the quarter ended
December 31,

2003

2002

2003

2002

{2) Bankshares presents return on average assets, return on average tangible assets, return on average equity and return on
average tangible equity. Management excludes the balance of intangible assets and their related amortization expense from
its calculation of return on average tangible assets, return on average tangible equity and average tangible equity to average
tangible assets. This adjustment allows management to review the core operating result and core capital position of
Bankshares. This is consistent with the treatment by bank regulatory agencies, which exclude goodwill from their calcula-

tion of risk-based capital ratios.
Return on average assets (GAAP basis).......................
Impact of excluding average intangible assets and amortization . .
Return on average tangible assets ................ ... ...
Return on average equity (GAAP basis)......................
Impact of excluding average intangible assets and amortization . .
Return on average tangible equity .................. ...
Average equity to average assets (GAAP basis) ................
Impact of excluding average intangible assets and amortization . .

Average tangible equity to average tangible assets .............

1.64% 1.88% 1.47% 1.84%
0.07 0.03 0.10 0.02
1.71% 1.91% 1.57% 1.86%
13.15% 15.12% 11.09% 15.10%
3.40 1.57 5.40 1.52
16.55% 16.69% 16.49% 16.62%
12.51% 12.43% 13.26% 12.16%
(2.17) (0.98) (3.75) (0.93)
10.34% 11.45% 9.51% 11.23%

When computing the efficiency ratio and net operating earnings, management excludes the amortization of intangible assets,
merger-related expenses and gains and losses from sales of invesunent securities because of the uncertainty as to timing and

amount of gain or loss to be recognized.

(3) The efficiency ratio is measured by dividing noninterest expenses by the sum of net interest income on an FTE basis

and noninterest income.

Efficiency ratio (GAAP basis) .......ooviiiiiiiiiiii

Impact of excluding:
Securities gains and (10SSES) .. ...oivi it
Amortization of deposit intangibles .......................
Amortization of other intangibles .. .......................
Merger-related expenses. ...

Operating efficiency ratio ...t

50.92% 46.07%
0.56 0.06
(0.45) (0.28)
(0.29) (0.05)
(1.24) -
49.50% 45.80%

54.47% 46.39%
0.04 -
(0.60) (0.25)
(0.40) (0.03)
(2.59) -
50.92% 46.11%

(4) Management presents net operating earnings and diluted net operating earnings per share in order to assess the core

operating results of Bankshares.

Net income (GAAP basis) .. ... i
Less: Securities (gains) and losses,net of tax ..................
Plus: Amortization of deposit intangibles, net of tax ..........
Amortization of other intangibles, net of tax
Merger-related expenses,net of tax ....................

Net Operating  arnings . ...« vuevvreentenenninenmnennreennn..

Diluted net income per share (GAAP basis) ..................
Less: Securities (gains) and losses,net of tax ..................
Plus: Amortization of deposit intangibles, net of tax ..........
Amortization of other intangibles, net of tax
Merger-related expenses, net of tax ....................

Diluted net operating earnings per share .....................

$196,814  §190,238
(4,314) (511)
1,821 1,017
1,167 175
4,844 -
$200,332  $190,919
$2.68 $2.72
(0.06) (0.01)
0.02 0.01
0.02 -
0.07 -
$2.73 $2.72

$ 50,645  $ 48,503
(74) -

670 221

446 27
2,847 -

$ 54,534  § 48751
$0.63 $0.70
0.01 -
0.01 -
0.04 -
$0.69 $0.70




Five -Year Selected Financial Data

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,
(Dollars in thousands, except per share data) 2003 2002 2001 2000 1999
NETINTERESTINCOME. ..................... ... $ 479330 $ 441,804 § 418,241 § 409,385 § 369,086
NETINCOME . ...........coitiiiininannanns $ 196,814 $ 190,238 § 181,295 § 175,230 § 157,737
NET INCOME PER SHARE OF COMRION STOCK
Basic ... ... $2.70 $2.74 $2.57 $2.53 $2.27
Diluted............. .. ... .. $2.68 $2.72 $2.55 $2.51 $2.25
TOTALASSETS .. ...t eeenn $13,695,472 $10,790,376  $9,928,786  $8,938,030  $7,895,024
LONG-TERMDEBT. ... ... ...t $ 647,722 § 287,214 § 269437 § 92547 § 82,683
PROVISION FORLOANLOSSES . ................... $ 12,105 § 16,378 $ 13,434 § 17231 § 12,056
PER SHARE CASH DIVIDENDS
COMIMON. .. .. i et $1.29 $1.18 $1.10 $1.02 $.94
CASH DIVIDENDS DECLARED AND PAID
On common stock.......................... $ 95,842 § 81,909 $ 77,597 § 70,641 § 65,113
YEAR-END LOAN DATA
Commercial ................................ $ 2,577,021  § 2,300,956  $2,228,750 $2,215,039  $1,984,358
Commercial real estate . ..................... 2,738,832 2,016,307 1,819,268 1,406,987 1,220,100
Construction . ......c.ovrtiie i 1,064,021 810,985 652,486 824,752 650,745
Residential real estate ...................... 1,335,375 1,066,694 1,060,519 1,086,674 878,900
CONSUMET . .ot e e e 1,067,360 775,673 801,474 832,206 707,359
Home equity lines ................. ..., 415,500 239,232 189,867 168,944 147,560
Lease financing ..ot 74,051 102,180 153,882 155,692 123,108
Totalloans. ... 9,272,160 7,312,027 6,906,246 6,693,294 5,712,130
Less:
Allowance for loan losses................. (155,337) (138,601) (141,463) (138,612) (117,997)
Loans, met....oooviiii i $ 9,116,823 § 7,173,426 $6,764,783  $6,554,682  $5,594,133

e
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Five -Year Statistical Summary

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,

(Dollars in thousands) 2003 2002 2001 2000 1999
AVERAGE BALANCE SHEET STATISTICS
Loans:
Commercial ............................... $ 4,795,334 $4,283,322  $3,978,335  $3,534,898 $3,094,713
Construction ..., 929,939 733,237 795,931 738,393 606,771
Residential real estate ...................... 1,171,194 1,072,297 1,059,798 950,531 874,947
CONSUMET ...t 1,192,515 999,988 998,792 945,810 800,936
Total loans ..., 8,088,982 7,088,844 6,832,856 6,169,632 5,377,367
Federal funds sold, etal ....................... 250,462 178,624 141, 245 29,434 15,762
Securities:
US. Government obligations ............... 1,731,032 2,089,004 1,705,543 1,628,477 1,807,264
States and political subdivisions............. 69,888 38,799 40,359 25,170 12,024
Mortgage-backed securities. ................ 927,235 216,391 48,203 21,252 2,916
Other investments® ........................ 124,009 23,578 22,299 19,505 20,557
Total securities ..........c.oovvuieenni . 2,852,164 2,367,772 1,816,404 1,694,404 1,842,761
Total earning assets ................... $11,191,608 $9,635,240 $8,790,505 $7,893,470 §7,235,890
Deposits:
Noninterest-bearing deposits ............... $ 2,269,720 $1,856,706 $1,618,838  $1,438,578 $1,334,282
Savings deposits®™* ... 3,597,185 2,936,197 2,471,674 2,345,808 2,375,075
Time deposits. ......ocovvviiiini .. 3,124,949 2,839,507 2,958,158 2,412,468 2,186,868
Total deposits ...ovvvvneineiie e, $ 8,991,854 $7,632,410 $7,048,670 $6,196,854 $5,896,225
Borrowed funds:
Short-term borrowings. .................... $ 851,348 $ 845938 § 744,907 $ 860,241 $ 594,106
Long-term debt................ooiiiill. 517,386 279,471 117,823 87,679 70,836
Total borrowed funds. ................... $ 1,368,734 $1,125409 § 862,730 $ 947920 $§ 664,942
AVERAGE RATES***
Loans:
Commercial ............ i i 5.77% 6.51% 7.99% 9.14% 8.58%
Construction . ....vveiiii i 5.41 6.09 7.96 9.66 9.03
Residential real estate ...................... 6.46 7.30 7.94 7.98 7.96
ConNSUIMET .. oot i i 6.25 7.12 8.28 8.70 8.50
Totalloans . ...........coooiiaii... 5.90 6.67 8.02 8.96 3.52
Federal funds sold, etal ....................... 1.56 2.92 4.38 6.31 4.95
Securities:
U.S. Government obligations ............... 4.25 4.67 5.48 5.67 5.65
States and political subdivisions............. 6.50 8.08 8.17 8.26 7.98
Mortgage-backed securities................. 3.90 5.59 7.47 7.48 5.69
Other investments® ..................... .. 6.33 5.99 7.48 8.51 9.44
Total securities ............... ... ... 4.29 4,83 5.62 5.77 5.70
Composite rate earned ............... 5.39% 6.15% 7.46% 8.26% 7.79%
Deposits:
Savings deposits™* ... 46% 87% 1.62% 2.06% 2.04%
Time deposits.......coovvieiiiiiiini ... 2.45 3.42 5.40 5.56 5.01
Total interest-bearing deposits ........... 1.39 2.12 3.68 3.83 3.46
Borrowed funds:
Short-term borrowings..................... .66 1.33 3.37 5.66 4.59
Long-term debt.............. ... ... ..., 3.57 3.85 5.69 6.79 6.80
Total borrowed funds.................... 1.76 1.96 3.69 5.77 4.83
Composite rate paid.................. 1.45% 2.10% 3.68% 4.16% 3.64%

* Includes interest-bearing deposits in other banks.

** Includes savings, checking plus interest and money market deposit accounts.

##+ Presented on a tax-equivalent basts.

N VLY




(Dollars in thousands) 2003 2002 2001 2000 1999
RETURN ON EQUITY AND ASSETS
Average total assets ....... ... . $11,971,581 $10,123,457 $9,227,202 $8,299.316  $7,628,660
Average shareholders’ equity ................ $ 1,497,145 § 1,257,967 §1,197,058 $1,054,071 § 971,837
Return on average total assets .............. 1.64% 1.88% 1.96% 2.11% 2.07%
Return on average shareholders’ equity .. ... 13.15% 15.12% 15.15% 16.62% 16.23%
Average shareholders’ equity as a percent
of average total assets..................... 12.51% 12.43% 12.97% 12.70% 12.74%
Dividends paid per share as a percent
of basic net income per share ............ 47.8% 43.1% 42.8% 40.3% 41.4%
SOURCES OF INCOME
Commercial loans.......................... 35.2% 37.7% 39.4% 41.3% 38.5%
Construction loans ......................... 6.3 5.9 7.9 9.2 7.9
Residential real estate loans................. 9.8 10.7 10.6 9.8 10.2
Consumerloans..........coooeviineinn... 9.6 9.8 10.4 10.7 10.0
Federal funds sold,etal.................. ... .5 7 8 2 1
Securities ........ ..o 15.8 15.5 _12.6 125 154
Total interest income ................. 77.2 80.3 81.7 83.7 82.1
Investment and wealth management ........ 10.2 9.4 3.7 9.1 9.5
Otherincome.......... ..o .. £‘_6_ _10.3 96 _7.2 8.4
Totalincome ...................cins 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
NET INTEREST INCOME
(Tax Equivalent)
Interest earned:
Loans ..ot $477,276 $473,120 $547,970 $552,548 $457,936
Federal funds sold, etal.................. 3,901 5,213 6,190 1,857 781
Taxable securities. ....................... 117,615 111,111 98,732 95,625 104,144
Tax-exempt securities ................... 4,543 3,135 3,298 2,080 959
Total interest income ................. 603,335 592,579 656,190 652,110 563,820
Interest paid:
Savings deposits ... 16,520 25,536 39,993 48,362 48,442
Time deposits .. ..oovveiii i, 76,670 97,033 159,710 134,086 109,555
Total interest-bearing deposits......... 93,190 122,569 199,703 182,448 157,997
Short-term borrowings.................. 5,604 11,259 25,120 48,711 27,267
Long-term debt........... ..., 18,451 10,754 6,702 5,951 4 818
Total interest expense................. 117,245 144,582 231,525 237,110 190,082
Net interest iIncome ............... $486,090 $447,997 $424,665 $415,000 $373,738




Five-Year Summary of Consolidated Income

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,

(Dollars in thousands) 2003 2002 2001 2000 1999
INTEREST INCOME
Interest and feesonloans...................... $472,379 $468,298 $543,020 $547,942 $453,825
Interest and dividends on securities............ 120,235 112,860 100,538 96,687 104,556
Other Interest INCOME. . ..o, 3,961 5,228 6,208 1,866 787
Total interest income.................... 596,575 586,386 649,766 646,495 559,168
INTEREST EXPENSE
Interest on deposits ...t 93,190 122,569 199,703 182,448 157,997
Interest on short-term borrowings............. 5,604 11,259 25,120 48,711 27,267
Interest on long-term debt .................... 18,451 10,754 6,702 5,951 4,818
Total Interest eXpense ................... 117,245 144,582 231,525 237,110 190,082
NETINTERESTINCOME. . .................c..ou.... 479,330 441,804 418,241 409,385 369,086
Provision for loan losses . ...................... 12,105 16,378 13,434 17,231 12,056
NET iNTEREST INCOME AFTER
PROVISIGN FOR LOAM LOSSES ................... 467,225 425,426 404,807 392,154 357,030
NONINTEREST INCOME
Investment and wealth management........... 78,933 68,435 69,331 69,850 65,036
Service charges on deposit accounts ........... 36,912 31,454 28,085 24,346 23,043
Otherincome ......... .. ... i, 60,746 43,861 48,074 31,345 33,912
Total noninterest income ................ 176,591 143,750 145,490 125,541 121,991
NONINTEREST EXPENSES
Salaries and employee benefits................. 198,043 165,371 152,887 140,391 134,665
Net occupancy and equipment................ 52,366 40,368 38,448 34,607 32,959
Amortization of goodwill ............ ... L. - - 9,072 5,213 3,832
Other expenses ..o, 87,038 66,869 63,552 63,294 58,964
Total noninterest expenses............... 337,447 272,608 263,959 243,505 230,420
Income before income taxes................... 306,369 296,568 286,338 274,190 248,601
Applicable income taxes....................... 109,555 106,330 105,043 98,960 90,364
METINCOME .. ...t $196,814 $190,238 $181,295 $175,230 $157,737




Principal Affiliates

EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

DIRECTORS

BALANCE SHEET (Dollars in thousands)

December 31, 2003

<>

Robert E. Henel Jr.

President and

George R. Benson Jr.
Clarence A. Blackwell

ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

MERCANTILE Chief Executive Qfficer Ralph W. Crosby Cash and due Total deposits $374,625
Carolyn D. O’Lear . . from banks $ 11,116
THE ANNAPOLIS Exea?;ivc Vice Pm,r{dcn? grall:a: E IC_;Iardllnjer Jr. o Short-term borrowings 20,899
BANKING AND Ernest R. Amadio obert . Henel Jr. Earning assets 428,588 L
TRUST COMPANY Senior Vice President JOhn K. Hopkms Ot;wrrl];zgﬂclse;i::e? 799
Main Street and William J. Bush JOhn. R Moses Allowance for ce *p
Church Circle Senior Vice President Patricia A. Roche, Ph.D. loan losses (4,135) Long-term debt 3,900
A . William A. Busik Harry A. Seymour Jr. L .
Ml:lna\[laa(:uljs,7 1401 Senior Vice President Lawrence W. Ulvila Jr. Other assets 6,906  Shareholders’ equity 42,252
4o Mary Jo Greenley Total liabilities
410-268-4285 Sorvor Vice President 1
Of Milcg:"d‘;e. :;’ en Total assets $442,475 and equity $442,475
i1 ces ed L. Henry _— _—
Senior Vice President, Secretary _
103 Employees and Treasurer Net income $ 8,605
Chartered in 1905 M. John Miller Jr.
Senior Vice Prestdent
Charles E. Ruch Jr.
Senior Vice President
Ann W. Shymansky
Senior Vice President
Robert E. Dickerson R. Carol Campbell-Hansen ASSETS LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
<> Dresident and Robert E. Dickerson
MERCANTILE Chief Executive Officer David C. Doane Cash and due Total deposits $295,216
D. Brent Hurle from banks $ 15,963
g/(\)l&lgﬂAONl;\'/E TRUST Senior Vice pms,'dz” g‘iir::; IHE::]?; Short-term borrowings 21,905
Jarmes D. Barx Merrill C. Moore Earning assets 349,583 5per Jiabilities and
??E\Xii Church Street B. Philip Lynch Jr. Jay C. Mufray Allowance for accrued expenses 1,441
I;ela}iware’19975 Vice President and Cashier John E. Willey Jr. loan losses (4,276) Long-term debt 18,400
302-436-8236 Other assets 8,197 Shareholders’ equity 32,505
8 Offices Total liabilities
106 Employees Total assets $369,467 and equity $369,467
Chartered in 1903 Net incorme $ 9,690
Wesley E. Hughes Jr. Roy G. Hale ASSETS LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
‘) Prestdent and Wesley E. Hughes Jr.
MERCANTILE ] Chv‘af!l:‘:xegf;t;ioﬂ?ccr Evelyn Susan Hungerford Cafsh ang dL]l(e o 6465 Total deposits $196,464
ames E. DiMisa St R. Mot rom banks X ) _
28E¥HC[)§[[:{N i.cn{o,r Vice President and R::;f:t I Sc]:)icek A Short-term borrowings 9,582
ashier Earning assets 232,544 e
MARYLAND James M. Burke Stephen H. Scott Other liabilities and
304 Charles S Vice President John L. Spragu.e Allowance for accrued expenses 678
La Plataar o8 street J- Wayne )Velsh J- Blacklock Wills Jr. loan losses (2,156) Long-term debt 11,300
§ Vice President
Maryland 20646 Diane M. Kestler Other assets 4,588  Shareholders’ equi 23,417
301-934-1000 — ey I—
-934-100 Chief Financial Officer Total Liabilities
5 Offices Total assets $241,441 and equity $241,441
58 Emplovees
Net income $ 5,795

Chartered in 1906




EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

DIRECTORS

BALANCE SHEET (Dollars in thousands)

December 31, 2003

<>

Lloyd B. Harrison III

President and

Charles R. Bailey Jr.
Barbara J. Beers

ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

MERCANTILE C[fhfd'EmeiViOﬁfn Gordon E Bowen Cafsh ang dlll(e s 7205 Total deposits $231,195
ristine L. Lewis : rom banks 2 )
CALVERT BANK AND Senior Vice President Ilsloyd I\l?l }-Iarrlson 11 Short-term borrowings 4,785
TRUST COMPANY ana V. Jones i 255.2 o
- Dge::jlrdwl[\:[.[)f:;s'gns Jr. Larry D. Kelley, RPh Earning assets 255,293 Other Tabilities and
g:}?lver_t\/lﬂcage Senior Credit é_ffxter Maurice T. Lusby III Allowance for accrued expenses 710
Pé)pgér;gsggnter Kimberly H. Freeland John A SimpS(}n Jr. loan losses (2,694) Long-term debt 2,300
P o Frederick Vice President and Treasurer Guffrie M. Smith Jr.
J\;;mleanée,)ggl;%’ W. David Sneade Other assets 5,207 Shareholders’ equity 26,021
410-286-5901 Total Habilities
Total assets $265,011 and equity $265,011
6 Offices E— —
71 Employees Net income § 6,415
Chartered in 1963
R. Raymond Tarrach John M. Ashley III ASSETS LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
‘) President and Edward M. Athey
MERCANTILE ihidi;eq\tfue Officer Alton E. Darling Sr. Cagh ang dlll(c 5 5493 Total deposits $178,387
ohan M. Trum, rom banks 492
THE CHESTERTOWN 4 Executive Vice p,e_gg;,,, gleorge HAGI-(I)dﬁlixy § ‘ Short-term borrowings 4,369
BANK F MARYLAND arence A. awKins . . 2 o
0 Spseeer:ce;iW.PE\;e)r?tt R. Raymond Tarrach Earning assets 209,89 Other liabilities and
211 High Street fer Ve Fresiden Robert D. Willard A accrued expenses 844
Chestertown . Allowance for
Maryland 21620 Eugenia C. Wootton loan losses (3,110) Long-term debt 14,100
410-778-2400 Other assets 6,675 Shareholders’ equity 21,250
8 Offices Total liabilities
63 Employees Total assets $218,950 and equity $218,950
hartered in 1904
Chartered in Netincome — § 4,419
Glenn L. Wilson Larry P. Bormel ASSETS LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
‘) President and William H. Carter Jr.
MERCANTILE Rflzdire:};zigl?ﬁ?m N Charles E. Castle Jr. Caéh ang dlll(e 5 29205 Total deposits $ 878,762
char: . nmacht : TOIMN Danks ,200
THE CITIZENS Executive Vice President and John .N' Faigle Short-term borrowings 83,819
NATIONAL BANK Senior Commercial Lender Marfln L. Gooz,rnan Earning assets 1,035,456 T
Kathl M.B.Ki Daniel H. Melvin T Other liabilities and
517 Main Street e P8 Michele K. R; accrued expenses 5,722
Laurel Senior Vice President ichele 1. tyan Allowance for ’
Maryland 20707 and Seror Credit Offcer Glenn L. Wilson loan losses  (11,288)  Long-term debt 37,000
301-725-3100 Joseph F. Pipitone
e Executive Vice President, Other assets 31,483  Shareholders’ equity 79,553
Washu_)gton. Community Banking, and T abilit -
J01-953-30%4 Secretary Total 1,084,85 Tomldl P 1,084,856
Baltimore: John S. DiPietro otal assets $1,084,856 and equity $1,084,85
410-792-7626 Executive Vice President, .
33 Offices Bank Support Netincome § 15744
Kathleen R. Schoffstall
225 Employees Senior Vice President
Chartered in 1890 and Controller
Harold B. Wright
Senior Vice President
and Senior Consumer Lender
S. Dell Foxx S. Dell Foxx ASSETS LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
¢> Chairman and Samuel M. Gawthrop Jr.
MERCANTILE Chief Executive Officer Ruth N. Graybeal Cash and due Total deposits $329,140
COUNTY BANKING Raymond W. Hamm Jr. Raymond W. Hamn Jr. frombanks — $ 10658 g ortcterm borrowings 9,705
& TRUST ) ‘ arry E. Hammon . .
COMPANY B Kesth webstar Howard D. McFadden Earning assets 377,867 Guher liabilities and
123 North Street .Exerutive Vice President G. E“g'ene M?c!de Allowance for accrued expenses 1,431
PO, Box 100 Franklin T. Williams IIT loan losses (5399 Long-term debt 15,900
?\E/}tgﬁx’nd 21921 Other assets 14,214 Shareholders’ equity 41,164
410-398-2600 Total liabilities
10 Of Total assets $397,340 and equity $397,340
ces _ —_—
116 Employees Net income

Chartered in 1908

$ 7,279



EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

DIRECTORS

BALANCE SHEET (Dollars in thousands)

December 31, 2003

<>

O. James Talbott II

President, Chairman of the

W. Bert Anderson
Marvin E. Ausherman

ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

MERCANTILE g;rd and Chief Executive Beverly Byron Ca{sh ang dllie s 2000 Total deposits $1,076,924
fcer . H TOIN bankxs U,
FARMERS & David R. Stauffer David P. Chapin Short-term borrowings 115,654
MECHANICS BANK Senior Exceutive Vice President Alber_t H. Cohen . Earning assets 1,430,400 R
. and Vice Chairman Maurice A. Gladhill Other liabilities and
110 Thomas Johnson Drive Stephen K. Heine Bradley C. Guyton Allowance for accrued expenses 24,034
Iizfye;;z’% 202 gxmmw,lffc {I;re;‘dcf;r;g . gﬂzle;\z I;offlIII loan losses (12,013)  Long-term debt 122,532
= ommercial an etail Banking cnar - Kessler
301-662-8231 David L. Hoffman Christopher T. Kline Other assets 88,250  Shareholders’ equity 188,093
19 Offices ?;‘ff;’;’gfﬁfo%jj“"’f {;m?csi I;[ Kfiuttz Total liabilities
i . avi eadows Total assets $1,527,237 and equity $1,527,237
400 Employees Kaye A. Simmons —_ —_—
Chartered in 1817 Exeautive Vice President, Il:;.te]: Hl SP]am.ondon Jr.
Chief Financial Officer 1chael Smariga Net income  § 16,345
Larry A.Van Sant —_—
David R. Stauffer
O. James Talbott II
Thomas R. Winkler
Ted D. Duer Kelly B. Conklin ASSETS LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
¢> President and Gene H. Crockett
MERCANTILE ?”fﬁ"g”g" Offcer Jeffery L. Davis Ca;h ang d\ll(e s 5136 Total deposits $200,946
ulie M. Badger : rom banks ,12
FARMERS & J enior Vice Prffden and M. Carter Davis Jr. ! ” Short-term borrowings 6,505
5 ! John H. Duer III
MERCHANTS BANK- Chief Financial Officer . Earning assets 239,670 T
EASTERN SHORE Robert J. Bloxom Ted D. Duer QOther liabilities and .
25275 Lankford Hichway Senior Vice President and Croxton Gordf)n Allowance for accrued expenses 828
I—)DC; Box 6,)30r 1ghway Senior Lending Officer W. Revell Lewis 11 loan losses (3,731) Long-term debt 17,400
Smlew. Elizabeth A. Kerns Thomas J. Mapp Jr.
8,“ ¥, 23418 Senior Vice President Robert L. Simpson Other assets 11,186  Shareholders’ equity 26,582
7377874111 and Secretery Michael T. Tolbert Total liabilicies
27 R74_3050 - A. lurner Total assets 2, ana equi s
757-824-3052 C.A.T I Total $252,261 d equity $252,261
Richard W. Young = =
6 Offices Net income S 4,021
73 Employees =
Chartered in 1909
‘> J. Brian Gaeng C. Joseph Cunningham III  ASSETS LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
President and J. Brian Gaeng
ML c(}’ii'eif‘i’:‘ﬁﬁﬁgham m oeoree W. Lapp Jr. e g qagpy o deposis BT
THE FIDELITY BANK .Exemrz'ue Vice President }:f—.};:rg \g'orl);?bus Sr. ’ Short-term borrowings 5,050
128 West Washington R};l::;:{i]@?/{i\’}ja;f{l];:l’l juil E Emmett Srith Earning assets 260,001 Other liabilities and
ilt;egitrstown David W. Turnbull Allowance for accrued expenses 788
Maryland 21740 Lynn H. Workmeister loan losses (1,721)  Long-term debe 9,000
301-733-6300 Other assets 8,959  Shareholders equity 23,705
11 Offices Total liabilities
104 Employees Total assets $281,218 and equity $§281,218
Chartered in 1902 . .
Net income (loss) §  (415)
John A. Candela Martin A. Barley ASSETS LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Chairman of the Board Joseph E. Bell I1
MERCANTILE Willia:im T.dSturgis Edward S. Burroughs Ca;h :mg d\};: 5 7345 Total deposits $335,470
President rom banks \
THE FIRST ot Bt John A. Candela e Short-term borrowings 10,760
Chief Executive Officer Ford L. D
NATIONAL BANK Dan Kubican orel L. Jean Earning assets 390,452 L
OF ST. MARY'S Senior Vice President and Frances P. Eagan l Other llaslhtles and 1,140
41615 Park Avenue Senior Loan Officer George A. F:erguson Allowance for accrued expenses '
PO. Box 655 Marilyrlx/L.Jut?alon ;{Ogefl 1}2 ;{ll? hell loan losses (4,323) Long-term debt 15,900
DU Senior Vice President, oseph F Mitche]
I&:::;?:i?‘;'gés() Cashier and Secretary to William T. Sturgis Other assets 9,863  Shareholders’ equity 40,067
’ = the Board T
301-475-8081 . Total liabilities
e Ll;iapifi:?ss Total assets $403,337 and equity $403,337
rees Human Rc:or:vccs
95 Employees R. Timothy Storch Net income $ 8,570
. Vice President, -
Chartered in 1903 Lending Division Manager
Charles W. Roach
Assistant Vice President
and Controller
‘> A IFrM A AAITIETE RARNCEIABEC 7~ADRBADP ATIAR AN ACCIL LATEC an




EXECUTIVE OFFICERS DIRECTORS BALANCE SHEET (Dollars in thousands) December 31, 2003
Paul E. Peak Richard E. Kinard ASSETS LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
¢> President and C. Ray Mann
MERCANTILE M‘Chli:fjsive];l‘i:ﬁ Officer Paul E. Peak Cagh ang iie 12,097 Total deposits $292,134
THE FOREST HILL Ilfier::?w Vice Pfel;lidenr llzaﬁsra Iéeesliudi)lph rom banks $ Short-term borrowings 38,187
STATE BANK Russell R. Cullum - Edward Schueler Jr. Earning assets 360,774 T
Executive Vice President Gregory A. Szoka Other liabilities and
éfi?[iiciuth Bond Street Craig A. \Varc! Allowance for accrued expenses 1,215
Maryla;‘ld 21014 Farrell D. Whiteford loan losses {4,441) Long-term debe 13,500
4107838_6131 Other assets 10,230 Shareholders’ equity 33,624
Baltimore: i _70Pet
410-879-1475 Total labilities
7 Of Total assets $378,660 and equity $378,660
ces = =
98 Employees Net income $ 6,883
Chartered in 1913
Michael A. Ewing Randolph S. E. Carter ASSETS LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
‘) President and Wm. Hunter deButts Jr.
MERCANTILE Chief Executive Officer Michael A. Ewing Cash and due Total deposits $110,613
Kevin A. Le fi bank: 8,692
MARSHALL NATIONAL z‘z:niye ViceePresident ;{;u?m;s 1_113 Glascock rom banks Short-term borrowings -
BANK AND TRUST vin . Henry i
OMPANY Caren M. Eastham Richard C.Riemenschneider LoM8 3568 116749 per yiabilvies and
C Senior Vice President and .
8372 West Main S Chief Financial Qfficer Norris A. L. Royston Allowance for accrued expenses 236
est Viain Street Carol C. Merewether George R. Thompson Jr. loan losses (1,441)  Loneg-term debt 3.000
PO. Box 38 . g ’
Marshall Senior Vice President and Evelyn D. Trumbo _
Vi;rlginia 20116 Corporate Secretary Lewis S. Wiley Orther assets 13,993  Shareholders’ equity 22,144
540-364-1555 Donald R. Yowell Total labilities
> Of Total assets $137,993 and equity $137,993
ces ES——— _—
47 Employees Net income $ 1,892
Chartered in 1905
Edward J. Kelly III Cynthia A. Archer ASSETS LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
¢> Chairman of the Board and R. Carl Benna
MERCANTILE Chief Exei;tive C:{l??m Richard O. Berndt Cash and due Total deposits $3,211,174
. Marshall Rei
MERCANTILE-SAFE J- Marshall Rei Howard B. Bowen from banks § 234036 ) e term borrowings 478,957
DEPOSIT AND Chief Operating Officer Wl]]?am R. Brody, M.D. Earning assets 4,001,695 Other liabilig d
TRUST COMPANY Kevin A. McCreadie Eddie C. Brown g s a1 54.130
Two Hopkins Plaza Chigf Executive Officer and George L. Buntm.g Jr Allowance for accrued expenses Rl
Balsimore, Chief Isestment Offcr Anthony W. Deering loanlosses  (58543)  Long-rerm debt 206,266
nyestiment an. { .
idlgryzlgr;d_%lo%ol Management Freeman A. Hrabowski III  Other assets 216,965  Shareholders’ equity 443,626
e Kenneth A Bourne Jr. Edward J. Kelly IIT Total liabilities
26 Offices Excecutive Vice President, Robert A. Kinsley Total assets  $4,394,153 and equity $ 4,394,153

1,217 Employees
Chartered in 1864

-

Banking Division
Deborah A. Kakaris
Executive Vice President,
Operations and Technology
David L. Meyer
Execitive Vice President,
Chief Operating Officer,
Investment and Wealth
Management
Margaret M. V. Preston
Executive Vice President,
Private Wealth Management
Terry L. Troupe
Chief Financial Qfficer
John L. Unger
Senior Vice President, General
Counsel and Secretary

e

Jenny G. Morgan
Morton B. Plant
Christian H. Poindexter
J. Marshall Reid
Clayton S. Rose

James L. Shea

Donald J. Shepard
Brian B. Topping

Officers and Directors as of
March 2004

Net income  §

57,088



EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

DIRECTORS

BALANCE SHEET (Dollars in thousands)

December 31, 2003

John H. Chichester John H. Chichester ASSETS LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
‘) Chairman of the Board John E Fick
MERCANTILE Williamm B. Young Lewis W, Graves Cafsh ang dL]\(e s 5498 Total deposits $306,237
President and om banks 4
THE NATIONAL rlff; egx;t’;zivc Officer Lucy G. Harman ! ! Short-term borrowings 29,540
Chief A John A. Janney .
BANK OF John B. Daniel Charl . A. MeC k Earning assets 361,756 Other liabilities and
FREDERICKSBURG Senior Vice President, Bank .af s A. C ormac cerued expens 2418
2403 Eall Hill Avenue Operataions & Adminsistration William E. Milby Allowance for accruec expenses -
l_:redericksbur Gordon R. Humes Jr. Gaf)’ M. N‘}Ck(’ls loan losses (3,616) Long-term debt 7,000
PPN g Senior Vice President and Neil 8. Sullivan
Virginia -2;40] Senior Credit Officer William J. Vakos Other assets 12,447  Sharcholders’ equity 33,890
>40-899-3200 Marcia J. Hagwood William B. Young Total liabilities
8 Offices Senior Vice President, :
Marketing and Retail Services Total assets $379,085 and equity $379,085
103 Employees Vicki M. Gray
Chartered in 1865 Vice President, Investment & Net income $ 5,993
Wealth Management Division -
Mary Louise Holmes
Vice President,
Human Resources
Catherine M. Phillips
Assistant Vice President,
Chief Financial Officer
Jetfrey F Turner William E. Esham ]Jr. ASSETS LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
¢> President and Frank B. Hanna Sr.
MERCANTILE Chief EE“_”F“';‘? Oficer Henry H. Hanna III Cagh ang die . Total deposits $653,017
Henry E. Tilman Jr. . rom banks $ 23,842
PENINSULA Exﬂz’,,',,c Vice p,m,‘d‘:l,, Charles R. Jenkins Sr. Short-term borrowings 41,875
BANK . o John B. Long II . .
Retail Banking Willi C. Mari Earning assets 755,044 5 er lisbilities and
11738 Somerset Ave F. Winfield Trice et d 5
PO. Box 21(; nue Executive Vice President Hugh P. MCLa“ghhn Jr. Allowance for accruec expenses 3512
Princess Anne and Senior Loan Officer George A. Purnell loan losses {11,402)  Long-term debt 20,900
Marviand 718’53 Deborah S. Abbott John B. Robins IV
ary a_n ,)“ Senior Vice President and E. Scott Tawes Other assets 51,818 Shareholders’ equity 99,998
#10-651-2400 Regional Officer Casey L. Todd Total liabilities
25 Offices H;:»:Zr %ecf)fg?::re:}ld Jeffrey F. Turner Total assets $819,302 and equity $819,302
237 Employees Senior Regional Officer Robert B. Twilley Jr.
Chartered in 1889 Ronald L. Laws Netincome — § 14,689
Senior Vice President -
W. Thomas Mears
Senior Vice President and
Repional Officer
E Dennis Parker
Senior Vice President and
Regional Officer
Michael R. Walsh
Senior Vice President
and Secretary
Patrick M. Bilbrough A. Curtis Andrew ASSETS LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
¢> President and Patrick M. Bilbrough
MERCANTILE Chief Executive Officer Richard A. Edwards Cash and due Total deposits $ 88,237
THE PEOPLES Haines B. Holt frombanks 4374y borrowi 6,125
_ Oort-term borrowings s
BANK OF Frederick L. Hubbard .
° Randolph P. Moore Earning assets 100,653 o Jiabilities and
MARYLAND
207 Marke S Joseph D. Quinn Allowance for accrued expenses 387
2 arket Street oF
Denton, Philip G. Yost loan losses (1,344)  Long-term debt 2,100
ﬁ;ryi;r;dilo%” Other assets 3,971  Shareholders’ equity 10,805
) B Total liabilities
5 Offices Total assets $107,654 and equity $107,654
37 Employees
Chartered in 1919 Net income

$ 2,051



EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

DIRECTORS

BALANCE SHEET (Dollars in thousands)

December 31, 2003

<>

James J. Cromwell
Chairman of the Board

Stephen E. Chase
Jay Milton Clogg

ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

MERCANTILE Kenn:th Cl} Cook Kenneth C. Cook Cafsh ang dLlJ(e s 16724 Total deposits $615,046
President an TOM banks N
POTOMAC CrhiefExecun‘ve Officer James J. Cromwell Short-term borrowings 73,066
Bruce Mackey .
VALLEY BANK Andrew E Flott Charl Nl Earning assets 766,399 Other liabiliti d
702 Russell Avenue Executive Vice President, ey T accruedlel lefszr?sis 3,847
Gaith r\bur Finance Division Manager A‘lexa‘nder Y. .Thomas Allowance for *p ’
Maarylilrid 2§é77 and Corporate Secretary C. Clifton Veirs III loan losses (8.101)  Long-term debt 32,500
William W. West
301-963-7600 Executive Vice President and Other assets 16,782 Shareholders’ equiry 67,345
16 Offices Chief Lending Qffcer Total Jiabilities
- John M. Bruning o
152 Employees Senior Vice Precider Total assets $791,804 and equity $791,804
Chartered in 1974 C. R. (Rick) Carder IV )
Senior Vice President Net income $ 9,387
Gary L. Coffman
Senior Vice President
Arrel E. Godfrey
Senior Vice President
Jack Green
Senior Vice President
Brett Kaplowitz
Senior Vice President
Anne R. Kline
Sentor Vice President
Eugenia M. Long
Senior Vice President
Patricia S. Oliphant
Senior Vice President
Eddie Parra
Senior Vice President
Joan Price
Senior Vice President
Carolyn Roberts
Senior Vice President
William W. Duncan Jr. William W. Duncan Jr. ASSETS LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
‘) President and Pamela P. Gardner
MERCANTILE Chief Executive Officer Mary B. Hoff Cash and due Total deposits $167,859
from bank: $ 5,300
ST. MICHAELS J. Brent Raughley s Short-term borrowings 46,296
BANK Norman M. Shannahan III Barning assets 238112
R. Ivan Thamert g =t Other liabilities and
%]C.;) ”}l;aizo_;oStreet John R.Valliant Allowance for accrued expenses 872
St. Michaels, Donald R.Young loan losses (3.950)  Long-term debt 9,200
241%‘"_‘/711';‘35%196163 Other assets 5,540  Shareholders' equity 20,775
_ Total liabilities
5 Offices Total assets $2435,002 and equity $245,002
38 Employees
Chartered in 1890 Net income § 5064
Mark G. Pohlhaus Glenn S. Bair ASSETS LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
‘) President and David S. Bollinger
MERCANTILE Chicf Executive Officer David L. Brauning Cash and due Total deposits $696,727
Charles H. Devaud Jr. : from banks  $ 15,268
WESTMINSTER e o pauc ] Todd L. Herring Short-term borrowings 27,467
UNION BANK Retail Banking/Operations ona shiget Earning assets 794,271 R
) : K. Wayne Lockard ' Other liabilities and
117 East Main Street M. Lynn Rill i accrued expenses 2,174
Westminster Executive Vice President and John T. Maguire I Allowance for P ’
Marvland 21157 Senior Loan Officer Mark G. Pohlhaus loan losses (7.651)  Long-term debt 42.900
413(‘)1'}’81% 5300 Samuel W. Taylor Ferdinand A. Ruppel Jr. '
oo Vice President and Robert T. Scott Other assets 58,962  Shareholders’ equity 92,282
20 Offices Chief Financial Officer Ethan A. Seidel Total Liabilities
197 Employees Total assets $860,850 and equity $860,850
Chartered in 1898
Net income § 9,481
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Paul W. Parks

President and

John D. Long
Paul W. Parks

ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

MERCANTILE Chief Exeautive Officer J. Marshall Reid Cash and due Total deposits $ -
Michael S. Cordes from banks § 6,625 )
MERCANTILE Exectitive Vice President, Short-term borrowings 274,000
MORTGAGE Multifamily Finance Earning assets 289,648 I
CORPORATION John D. Long Other liabiliies and -
i S ) . accrued expenses 5,502
(a subsidiary of Senior Vice President, Construction Allowance for ~
Mercantile-Safe Deposic Lending loan losses (4,345)  Long-term debt -
and Trust Company) Kevin J. Michno
. President, Other assets 12,647  Shareholders’ equity 25,073
T\\.'o Hopkins Plaza Mercantile Mortgage LLC oRilie
Suite 900 Joseph J. O’Brien Jr. 1 304.575 Totaldhabll;tles 304.575
Baltimore, Senior Vice President, Construction Total assets %—ﬁ_’__-b—- and equity $_—_——L_D
Maryland 21201 Lending
410-347-8940 John M. Schwanky Net income $ 7,270
47 Empl Senior Vice President, Servicing -
mployees Herschel M. Conaway
Incorporated in 1972 Vice President, Construction Lending
Nancy Hauprich
Vice President, Construction
Lending
David C. Thompson
Vice President,
MuitiFamily Pinance
John W. Renner
Manager of Operations,
Columbia National Real Estate
Finance LLC
Stewart P. McEntee Kenneth A. Bourne Jr. ASSETS LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
¢> President Peter W. Floeckher Jr.
MERCANTILE Dennis W. Kreiner Stewart P. McEntee Ca;h ang dt}z{e s 81 Total deposits $ -
Secretary 3R : rom banks >
MBC AGENCY, INC. \Vii;;::i T. Skinner Jr. y‘“‘atf g‘ Skinner Jr. Short-term borrowings -
Two Hopkins Plaza Vice President and Treasurer erry . lroupe Earning assets 3,259 Other liabilities and
Baltimore, Al & accrued expenses 1,361
Maryland 21201 owance ior
410-347-8294 loan losses ~  Long-term debt -
Other assets 38  Shareholders’ equity 2,787
Total liabilities
Total assets $4,148 and equity $4,148
Net income $ 302
Ronald D. Mettam Dennis W, Kreiner ASSETS LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
¢> President Ronald D. Mettam
MERCANTILE W, Josepl‘; Smith Jr. J. Marshall Reid Caéh ang dtlx(e S - Total deposits $ -
Vice President rom banks 5
MBC REALTY, LLC De;;inism%/.e;(reiner Terry L. Troupe ‘ Short-term borrowings 2,085
Two Hopkins Plaza Secretary . Earning assets T Other liabilities and
Baltimore, William T. Skinner Jr. accrued expenses 1,044
Maryland 21201 Theasurer Allowance for
410-237-5377 loan losses ~  Long-term debt -
25 Employees Other assets 20,459 Shareholders’ equity 17,380
Total liabilicies
Total assets $20,509 and equity $20,509
Net income $ 1,094
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Other Affiliates

MERCANTILE
AGENCY, INC.

(a subsidiary of
Mercantile-Safe Deposit
and Trust Company)

Two Hopkins Plaza
Baltimore,
Maryland 21201
800-418-4084

EXECUTIVE OFFICERS DIRECTORS
Bonnie B. Stein Kenneth A. Bourne Jr. Financial data included with
President Stewart P. McEntee Mercantile-Safe Deposit and Trust Company

David L. Meyer

<>

MERCANTILE

MERCANTILE CAPITAL
ADVISORS, INC.

(a subsidiary of
Mercantile-Safe Deposit

and Trust Company)

Two Hopkins Plaza
Baltimore,
Maryland 21201
410-237-5840

Kevin A. McCreadie
Chairman, Chief Executive
Officer and Chief Investment
Officer

Kevin A. McCreadie
David L. Meyer
J. Marshall Reid

Financial data included with
Mercantile-Safe Deposit and Trust Company

MERCANTILE
SECURITIES, INC.
{a subsidiary of
Mercantile-Safe Deposit
and Trust Company)

Two Hopkins Plaza
Baltimore,
Maryland 21201
888-472-8499

Bonnie B. Stein
President and
Chief Executive Officer

Kenneth A. Bourne Jr.

David L. Meyer
Stewart P. McEntee

Financial data included with
Mercantile-Safe Deposit and Trust Company

BOYD WATTERSON
ASSET MANAGEMENT,
LLC

(a subsidiary of
Mercantile-Safe Deposit

and Trust Company)

1801 East 9th Street

Cleveland, Ohio 44114
216-771-3450

Clyde E. Bartter
Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer

Timothy M. Hyland
President

Brian L. Gevry
Executive Vice President and
Chief Operating Officer

R. Davis Hoke

Executive Vice President

Financial data included with
Mercantile-Safe Deposit and Trust Company

<>

MERCANTILE

PEREMEL & CO.,
INC.

(a subsidiary of
Mereantile-Safe Deposit
and Trust Company)

1829 Reisterstown Road
Baltimore,

Maryland 21208
410-486-4700

0

Harold N. Peremel
President

Mitchell B. Peremel
Vice President

William T. Skinner Jr.
Treasurer

Jennifer E. Vollmer
Secretary

Harold N. Peremel
Bonnie B. Stein

Financial data included with
Mercantile-Safe Deposit and Trust Company
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Mercantile Bankshares Corporation

OFFICERS

Edward J. Kelly III
President and Chief
Executive Officer

Alexander T. Mason
Vice Chairman

J- Marshall Reid

DPresident & Chief Operating
Officer, Mercantile-Safe Deposit
and Trust Company

Kenneth A. Bourne Jr.
Executive Vice President,
Banking Division, Mercantile-
Safe Deposit and Trust Company

Peter W. Floeckher Jr.
Executive Vice President,
Affiliate Management

Kevin A. McCreadie
Chief Executive Officer and
Chief Investment Officer,
Investment & Wealth
Management, Mercantile-Safe
Deposit and Trust Company
Terry L. Troupe

Chief Financial Officer

and Treasurer

John L. Unger

Senior Vice President,
General Counsel and Secretary
Michael M. Paese

Chief Administrative Officer
Deborah A. Kakaris
Executive Vice President,
Operations & Technology
Services

Frank K. Turner Jr.
Executive Vice President,
Business Development
Priscilla S. Hoblitzell
Senior Vice President,
Strategic Planning

Robert C. Smith
General Auditor

Williarn T. Skinner Jr.
Controller

DIRECTORS

*° Cynthia A. Archer
Vice President of Marketing
and Development, Sunoco,
Inc., a major oil refiner

R. Carl Benna

President of North American
Housing Corp., a manufac-
turer of modular structures
sold to builders for resale

tRichard O. Berndt
Managing Partner of the
law firm of Gallagher,
Evelius & Jones, LLP

Howard B. Bowen
Chairman of the Board and
Chief Executive Officer of
Ewing Oil Company, a
gasoline distributor

° William R. Brody, M.D.
President of The Johns
Hopkins University

+° Eddie C. Brown
President of Brown Capital
Management, an investment
management firm

t#4George L. Bunting Jr.
President and Chief
Executive Officer of
Bunting Management
Group, a private financial
management compary

4 Anthony W. Deering
Chairman of the Board and
Chief Executive Officer of
The Rouse Company,

a corporation _focusing on
regional shopping centers and
community development
Darrell D. Friedman
Consultant — American
Jewish Joint Distribution
Committee

° Freeman A.
Hrabowski III
DPresident of University of
Maryland-Baltimore County

tEdward J. Kelly III
Chairman of the Board,
President and Chief
Executive Officer of
Mercantile Bankshares
Corporation and Chairman
of the Board and Chief
Executive Officer of
Mercantile-Safe Deposit
and Tiust Company

Robert A. Kinsley
Chairman of the Board and
Chief Executive Officer of
Kinsley Construction, Inc.,
a general and heavy
construction firm

Jenny G. Morgan
President and Chief
Executive Officer of VIPS,
Inc., a health care informa-
tion solutions company

*Morton B. Plant
Vice Chairman of the
Board of Keyuwell
Corporation, a recycler
of stainless steel and high
temperature alloy scrap
metal

1+*a Christian H. Poindexter
Retired Chairman of the
Executive Committee of the
Board of Constellation
Energy Group, Inc., a public
utility holding company

*4 Clayton S. Rose

Managing Partner of Logan
Pass Partners, LLC, a
private investment firm

tJames L. Shea
Managing Partner of the
law firm of Venable, LLP

4 Donald J. Shepard
Chatrman of the Executive
Board of AEGON N.V,
Inc., a holding company
owning insurance and
insurance related companies

DIRECTOR CHANGES

Messys. Eddie C. Brown
and Anthony W. Deering
joined the Board in April
2003, and Messrs. R. Carl
Benna and Howard B.
Bowen joined the Board in
August 2003, Ms. Jenny G.
Morgan joined the Board in
March 2004.

In September 2003,
Mr. Wallace Mathai-Davis
retired from the Board.

t Member of Executive
Committee

* Member of Audit
Committee

1 Member of Compensation
Committee

° Member of Nominating
and Corporate Governance
Committee

Listings as of March 2004



Corporate Information

CORPORATE PROFILE
Mercantile Bankshares Corporation
is a multibank holding company,
organized in 1969 under the laws of
Maryland. On January 1, 2004, its
principal afhiliates were 20 locally
managed and directed community
banks.

The affiliated banks are engaged in
a general personal and corporate bank-
ing business. The Corporation’s largest
bank, Mercantile-Safe Deposit and
Trust Company, alsa provides a full
range of investment and wealth man-
agement services as well as specialized
corporate banking services. Mortgage
banking services are available through
the affiliate banks and through
Mercantile Mortgage Corporation, a
subsidiary of Mercantile-Safe Deposit
and Trust Company.

HEADQUARTERS

Two Hopkins Plaza, PO. Box 1477
Baltimore, Maryland 21203
410-237-5900

www.mercantile.com

MERCANTILE BANKSHARES
CORPORATE COMMUNICATIONS

PO. Box 1477
Baltimore, Maryland 21203
410-237-5971

MERCANTILE BANKSHARES
INVESTOR RELATIONS

PO. Box 1477

Baltimore, Maryland 21203
410-347-8039
www.mercantile.com

VTN

ANNUAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS
10:30 a.m., Tuesday,

May 11, 2004

Two Hopkins Plaza

Baltimore, Maryland

ANNUAL REPORT TO SECURITIES &
EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Form 10-K will be furnished to
shareholders without charge upon
written request. Exhibits thereto
furnished upon payment of §3.00 per
set. Direct request to:

Mercantile Bankshares Corporation
P.O. Box 1477

Baltimore, Maryland 21203
Attention: Corporate Secretary

STOCK INFORMATION

The common stock of Mercantile
Bankshares Corporation is traded on
the Nasdaq National Market under
the symbol MRBK.

DIVIDEND DISBURSING AGENT AND
TRANSFER AGENT FOR STOCK

American Stock Transfer &
Trust Company

For telephone inquiries:
800-937-5449

For written inquiries about
Mercantile Bankshares Corporation
stock, including questions about stock
certificates and changes of address:

American Stock Transfer &
Trust Company

Customer Service

59 Maiden Lane

New York, New York 10038

www.amstock.com

DIRECT DEPOSIT OF CASH DIVIDENDS
Shareholders of Mercantile Bankshares
Corporation common stock may have
their cash dividends deposited auto-
matically, on date of payment, to a
checking, savings or money market
account in a financial institution that
participates in an Automated Clearing
House.

Shareholders will receive confirma-
tion by mail from the Dividend
Disbursing Agent of the amount
deposited. Shareholders who wish to
enroll in the direct deposit service
should contact the Dividend Disburs-
ing Agent.

AUTOMATIC DIVIDEND REINVESTMENT AND
STOCK PURCHASE PLAN

Mercantile Bankshares Corporation
offers its registered shareholders a Plan
whereby they may automatically invest
their cash dividends in Mercantile
stock at a price that is 5% less than
the closing market price on the divi-
dend payment date. Plan participants
also may make additional cash pay-
ments to purchase stock through the
Plan at the same closing market price.
Mercantile Bankshares Corporation
absorbs all fees and transaction costs.

Shareholders who wish to enroll in
the Plan should contact the Corpora-
tion’s Transfer Agent:

American Stock Transfer &

Trust Company
Mercantile Bankshares Corporation
Dividend Reinvestment and Stock
Purchase Plan
59 Maiden Lane
New York, New York 10038
800-937-5449

ACCOUNTANTS
PricewaterhouseCoopers, LLP
250 West Pratt Street
Baltimore, Maryland 21201
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